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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial

Bank, Limited (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Bank are provision of

banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank's subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the

Bank” to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 37.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$3,144,000.

Shares Issued

No shares were issued by the Bank during the year. Details of the issued shares of the Bank are set out in Note 33 to the Financial

Statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Board of Directors

Chairman:

Vice Chairman:

Directors:

Zhang Weidong*

Chen Xiaozhou*

Chan Sai Ming

Yang Yingxun®

Liang Qiang®

Sun Jiandong

Liu Jun

Lau Hon Chuen*

Lan Hong Tsung, David*
Chang Hsin Kang*

Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna
Li Shu Pui*

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors

(appointed effective from 2 November 2020)

(resigned effective from 2 November 2020)

(appointed as Vice Chairman effective from 8 January 2021)

(appointed effective from 16 September 2020)
(resigned effective from 25 February 2020)

(appointed effective from 8 January 2021)

(resigned effective from 1 July 2020)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors (continued)

Save for Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou®, Chan Sai Ming and Sun Jiandong being also directors of a subsidiary of the Bank, other directors

of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Cheng Zeyu Zhang Zaiming Shen Jiamu Xiao Wogen®# Ye Yonggang Cheng Zhenghong
Xia Jun Hui Wai Hing Hui Hoi Suen* Ng Kwok Yuen** Chong Wing Kwan  Lam Kin Ho*
Lee Hon Chuen”*

# resigned as director of subsidiary of the Bank effective from 13 April 2020; resigned as director of the Bank effective from 2 November
2020.

## resigned effective from 9 March 2020.

* resigned effective from 8 October 2020.

** resigned effective from 3 June 2020.

A appointed effective from 3 June 2020.

A appointed effective from 1 September 2020.

In accordance with Article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Mr. Chan Sai Ming and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna retire by

rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 82 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, Messrs. Zhang Weidong, Yang Yingxun and Liu Jun retire at

the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Interests in Equity or Debt Securities
At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any

other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group's business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Bank or his/her connected entity had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were

entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, every Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Bank against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Bank. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of Directors against liability which may

lawfully be insured by the Bank.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 comply with the requirements set out in the Banking

(Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and offer

themselves for re-appointment at the 2021 annual general meeting.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Weidong
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance and followed CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally

Incorporated Authorised Institutions” of the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business.
As at the end of the year, the Board comprises eight Directors with a variety of different experience and professionalism. Among them,
two are Executive Directors, while the remaining six are Non-executive Directors. Of the six Non-executive Directors, four are
Independent Non-executive Directors whose indispensable function is to provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and
five board meetings were held in the year with attendance rate of 89% in the year. The Management, led by the Chief Executive, is
responsible for formulating and implementing detailed programmes to effect the approved strategies and policies, and providing
detailed reports on the Group’s performance to the Board on a regular basis to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities
effectively. The Board currently has set up the following five committees to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the

committees are given below:

16
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Development Committee

Strategy and Development Committee is responsible for the consideration and suggestion of the medium and long term development

strategies of the Group. Its main duties include:
- preparation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies for the Board’s approval;

- examination, proposing, monitoring, review and update of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and recommend the

Board on necessary adjustments of the strategies;

- examination of the formulation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and ensure all the potential plans in a certain

selective scope have been adequately considered;

- monitoring the implementation of medium and long term strategies in accordance with established standards and provide

directive guidance to the Senior Management on the implementation;

- examination of material merge and acquisition plans proposed by the Senior Management and advise the Board on the plans;

and

- giving advice to the Board on the Bank’s major investment, capital expenditure and strategic commitment and monitoring the

implementation of the aforesaid.

During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee has convened four meetings. As at the end of the year, members of the
Strategy and Development Committee included Messrs. Zhang Weidong* (Chairman), Chan Sai Ming and Sun Jiandong. Among them,

Chan Sai Ming and Sun Jiandong were executive directors of the Bank.

* Appointed as the Chairman effective from 2 November 2020.

17
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process;

- internal control system;

- performance of internal audit functions and internal auditors;

- appointment of external auditor and evaluation of external auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards and legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and
- enhancement of the corporate governance framework.

During the year, the Audit Committee has convened four meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of Audit Committee were
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna (Chairman), Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David, Mr. Li Shu Pui* and Mr. Yang Yingxun®. All
were Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen, Mr. Lan Hong Tsung,

David and Mr. Li Shu Pui were Independent Non-executive Directors.

* Appointed as member effective from 26 August 2020.

# Appointed as member effective from 16 September 2020.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk management of the Group in the

following areas:
- formulation/review of the risk management framework and risk management strategy of the Group;

- oversight of all risk profile of the Group, and identification, assessment and management of material risks faced and foreseen by

the Group;
- oversight of the subsidiaries’ risk management, internal control and all risk profile which have impact on the Group;

- review, oversight and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management policies, procedures, system

framework, risk management systems, infrastructure, resources and internal control;
- review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group and monitoring of the implementation of the aforesaid;

- assessment on the remuneration system which should align with the risk culture and risk appetite from the risk management point

of view; and

- monitoring the Group’s sustainability-related risk management, and employing effective strategy, control and mitigation measures

to climate change.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee has convened six meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the Risk
Management Committee were Mr. Li Shu Pui (Chairman), Mr. Yang Yingxun* and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna. All were Non-executive

Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Li Shu Pui and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna were Independent Non-executive Directors.

* Appointed as member effective from 16 September 2020.

Connected Transaction Committee

The Connected Transaction Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of connected transaction of the Bank in

the following areas:
- review and approve the Bank's connected transaction policy;

- regularly receives connected transactions information and fully understands the management of connected transactions of the

Bank and gives guidance; and

- in accordance with the provisions of laws and administrative regulations and fair and equitable business principles, timely approve

the bank’s major connected transactions.

During the year, the Connected Transaction Committee has convened four meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the
Connected Transaction Committee were Messrs. Lau Hon Chuen (Chairman), Lan Hong Tsung, David and Chan Sai Ming. All were

Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David were Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at 31 December 2020, including one Non-executive

Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors. It was chaired by Mr. Lan Hong Tsung, David. The Independent Non-executive

Directors represent 67% of the Committee members.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group in, among others,

the following areas:
- human resources, remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group;
- monitor the culture-related matters of the Group;

- selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and certain senior executives as designated by the Board from

time to time (defined as “Senior Management”);

- structure, size and composition of the board of directors and committees shall be governed by the principle of diversity of board
members (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical location,

professional experience, skills and knowledge etc.) of the Board and Board Committees;
- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and
- training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management.
Key tasks performed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2020 included the approval, review and proposal to the
Board on the following according to its responsibilities and authorities:

- formulation, review and amendment on major human resources and remuneration policies, including the review of the

“Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Deferral Variable Remuneration Policy” etc.;
- the total resources for 2019 variable remuneration pool, 2020 fixed remuneration review;
- performance appraisal results of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2019;
- proposal on staff bonus for year 2019, salary adjustment for year 2020 of the Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- key performance indicators of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2020;
- review of the Mandate, Working Rules and Standing Agenda of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
- review of Directors’ Independency Policy;
- election of Directors for 2020;
- Directors’ independency report and performance assessment report for 2019;
- self-evaluation report of the Board and Board Committees for 2019;
- consideration of the matters relating to the adjustment and appointment of the Directors and Board Committee members of the

Group;

- consideration of the appointment, resignation, promotion and related remuneration matters of Senior Management and Key

Personnel;
- 2019 Independent Review Report on Compliance of Guildeline on a Sound Remeuneration System;

- self-assessment, related policy review, evaluation report and quarterly progress update on related measures on Bank Culture

Reform.

There were four Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings held during 2020. The attendance rate of all the Directors was
100%.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration
management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance their

performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA'’s “Guideline on

a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

®  “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the

HKMA'’s “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

» “Senior Management”: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-
wide strategy or material business lines, including Executive Director, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief Human Resources Officer, Board Secretary and General

Manager of Audit Department.

» “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may have
significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of major
subsidiaries, General Manager of Risk Management Department, General Manager of Credit Management Department,
General Manager of Basel Management Department, General Manager of Finance Department, General Manager of
Information Technology Department, General Manager of Operation Management Department, General Manager of Chief

Executive's Office as well as General Manager of Human Resources Department.

[ Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfill the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, Human Resources Department is responsible for proposing the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will
seek consultation of the risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance if necessary, in
order to balance the needs for staff motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The proposed
Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board
of Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from
other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under the

circumstances.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the performance management at the levels
of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down under the framework of balanced
scorecard whereby the performance of the Senior Management and different units (including business units, risk control units
and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, building blocks/key tasks, risk management and
compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through
the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be appraised on their achievement against targets,
their contribution towards performance of their units and fulfilment of risk management duties and compliance, etc. Not only
is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk exposure involved during the course of work could also be evaluated

and managed, ensuring secured and normal operation of the Group.

2. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on the risk adjustment method
of the Group, the key risk modifiers of the bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of
the Group. Risk adjustment focuses on major issues such as risk compliance, internal control audit, risk management, liability
and liquidity management. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is subject to the risk adjusted performance
results approved by the Board and is subject to its discretion. This ensures the Bank to decide the Bank’s variable
remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk management through the

remuneration mechanism.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)
®  Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of the fixed and
variable remuneration for individual staff members shall strike a balance depending on job grades, roles, responsibilities and
functions of the staff. In general, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the responsibilities, the higher will be the
proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and

sound long-term financial stability. Variable remuneration will be granted to staff members in the form of cash.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors
including the remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on
the affordability of the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above,

performance assessment criteria include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the Bank Bonus Funding Policy, the size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is determined by the
Board on the basis of the financial performance of the Bank and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets
under the long-term development of the Bank. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process. The size of the pool is subject to the Board’s approval and the Board can make discretionary adjustment to it if
deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Bank’s performance is relatively weak, no variable

remuneration will be paid out that year in principle. However, the Board reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
risk-adjusted performance of the units, and that of each individual staff. The performance and remuneration arrangement of
risk control personnel are determined by the achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business
they oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and performance evaluation is applied to ensure
the suitability of performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance

of the unit and the individual staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

®  Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value
creation of the Group

To realize the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risks and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required
to be deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The higher amount of the variable remuneration

granted to the staff, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for three years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting
conditions are closely linked to the annual performance of the Group and the individual behaviour of the staff concerned.
When the Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred variable remuneration would be vested
following the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial
factors used in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been manifestly worse
than originally understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour / management style pose negative impacts to the
business unit and even the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, etc., the unvested

portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.
5. Annual Review of Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy of the Group is subject to annual review with reference to regulatory requirements, market

conditions, organizational structure and risk management requirements, etc.

) Disclosure on remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the

HKMA to disclosure information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.
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Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
ﬁ* Central, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 37 to 277, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
Y 1 Tim Mei Avenue
E a’* Central, Hong Kong

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to significant accounting policies in Note 2.14, : We obtained an understanding of the Group’s
critical accounting estimates and judgements in : credit management policies and practices. We
applying accounting policies in Note 3.1, and : evaluated the Group’s impairment methodology,
disclosures on credit risk and loan impairment : including the management judgment over portfolio
allowances in Note 4.1 and Note 22 to the financial : segmentation, the criteria of significant increase in
statements. credit risk, and the measurement approach for
expected credit losses.

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected
loss impairment model to estimate the expected : We tested the design and operating effectiveness
credit losses (“ECLs”) on its advances to customers. : of the key controls over credit assessment; loan
The assessment of credit risk and the measurement : classification; stage classification; and calculation
of ECLs are required to be based on unbiased and : of impairment allowance processes. Our control
probability-weighted  possible  outcomes and : testing on the loan impairment processes included
reasonable and supportable information at the : an evaluation of the governance over economic
reporting date about past events, current conditions : scenarios. We have also tested the system
and forecasts of future economic conditions. : interfacing of inputs or other data sources such as
Significant management judgement and estimation : internal loan grading and probability of default.

are involved in developing and using models and the
selection of inputs into the calculation of ECLs, : We adopted a risk-based sampling approach for
including: our loan review procedures. We selected samples
based on the characteristics of individual items,
1) segmentation of financial assets according to : including the industry and the geographic location

credit risk characteristics; of the operations of borrowers, internal loan
2) estimation of the probability of default, loss given : grading and past due history throughout the year.
default, exposure at default; We formed an independent view on the loan
3) identification of criteria for determining : staging through reviewing the borrowers’
significant increases in credit risk; and information focusing on their financial

4) selection and estimation of macroeconomic : performance, expected cash flows, valuation of
factor forecasts; and the probability weightings of : collaterals and other available information.
forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios.
For the expected credit loss allowance as at 31
December 2020, we performed testing of the data
quality by sample checking to the data source and
re-computed management’s calculation of the
impairment allowance. Also, we involved our
inhouse specialists in assessing management’s
consideration of forward-looking information,
including macroeconomic factor forecasts and
probability-weighted economic scenarios by
comparing to market forecasts from external data
providers.
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Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter (continued)
Impairment assessment of loans and advances to

As at 31 December 2020, gross advances to
customers amounted to HK$279,723 million,
representing 55.31% of total assets; and the
impairment allowance for advances to customers
amounted to HK$3,028 million, representing 86.03%
of the total impairment allowance for financial
instruments.

Because of the significance of the impairment
allowance recorded by the Group and the
management judgements and estimates involved,
the impairment assessment of loans and advances to
customers is considered a key audit matter.

Valuation of financial instruments

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in
Note 2.12, critical accounting estimates and
judgements in applying accounting policies in Note
3.2, and disclosures on fair values of financial
instruments in Notes 5.1 and 5.2 to the financial
statements.

The Group has applied valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques require significant observable inputs
other than quoted prices and significant
unobservable inputs, involving management using
subjective judgments and assumptions. With different
valuation techniques and assumptions applied, the
valuation results can vary significantly.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(continued)

customers (continued)

For loans and advances classified as Stage 3, we
re-calculated the impairment allowance with
consideration such as expected cash flows and
valuation of collateral on a sample basis. For each
sample selected, we also assessed the
reasonableness of expected cash flows and
reviewed the collateral value used where
applicable.

In connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, we
expanded our loan review samples’ selection
criteria. We assessed the loan classification and
loan staging taking into account the additional risk
control measures implemented by management.
Also, we evaluated the forward-looking
macroeconomic factor forecasts and probability-
weighted economic scenarios adopted by
management considering the uncertainties in
economic conditions due to COVID-19.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key controls related to
credit risk disclosures. We also assessed the
completeness of the credit risk disclosures against

the requirements of HKFRSs.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls related to the

valuation of financial instruments, including
independent price verification, review and
approval.

On a sample basis, we selected financial
instruments that were classified as level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy to evaluate their valuation. Where
applicable, we checked to observable market data
against the parameter inputs used in the valuation.
For financial instruments where the fair value was
determined based upon broker quotes, we
compared the executable quotes observed from

the market against the inputs wused by
management.
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

Valuation of financial instruments (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial | With the assistance of our inhouse valuation
assets and liabilities measured at fair value | specialists, we focused on the valuation
amounted to HK$154,055 million and HK$8,534 | methodologies and assumptions used in valuation
million, respectively, representing 30.46% and 1.93% | of financial instruments that were classified as level
of total assets and total liabilities respectively. | 3 in the fair value hierarchy. For observable inputs,
Financial instruments which had significant | we compared against independent sources and
observable inputs other than quoted prices in the | externally available market data. We evaluated the
valuation were categorised within level 2 of the fair | unobservable inputs and assumptions for
value hierarchy. In contrast, financial instruments | individually significant items, such as the discount
which had significant unobservable inputs in the | rate adopted from similar transactions which were
valuation were categorised within level 3 of the fair | observable. On a sample basis, we also re-
value hierarchy. Higher degree of estimation | performed valuations to evaluate valuation
uncertainty was involved in valuation of financial | techniques, assumptions and estimates adopted
instruments categorised within level 3 of the fair value | by the Group in the discounted cash flow models,
hierarchy. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s | which are commonly used in the market.

financial assets measured at fair value which were
categorised within level 2 and level 3 amounted to @ We also assessed the completeness of the fair
HK$136,155 million and HK$16,470 million, | value measurement disclosures against the
respectively. The Group’s financial liabilities ' requirements of HKFRSs.

measured at fair value which were categorised within
level 2 amounted to HK8,445 million.

Because of the significance of the financial
instruments recorded by the Group and the
management judgements and estimates involved in
the valuation, valuation of financial instruments is
considered a key audit matter.

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 34
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)

To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 35
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
To the members of Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Huen Chun Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2021

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 36
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Interest income

Interest expense
Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading gain

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances
Net charge of impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

Net (loss)/gain from disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends

FEE
Notes 2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
12,499,239 14,936,075
(6,130,752) (8,285,886)
6 6,368,487 6,650,189
1,707,266 1,599,991
(87,810) (70,869)
7 1,619,456 1,529,122
8 80,867 182,515
435,846 398,797
9 249,769 219,063
10 18,588 22,712
8,773,013 9,002,398
11 (1,359,147) (1,160,079)
7,413,866 7,842,319
12 (3,184,611) (3,382,564)
4,229,255 4,459,755
13 (2,950) 16,573
14 (7,899) 365
4,218,406 4,476,693
15 (403,136) (525,397)
3,815,270 3,951,296
16 - -

The notes on pages 45 to 277 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HEDHEWER Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HE12 A 31 HibERE For the year ended 31 December 2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
SR Profit for the year 3,815,270 3,951,296
He RN EH s =N Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
IHH - to income statement:
A EE T AHA 2 HEUL Equity instruments at fair value through other
i Z B TR comprehensive income:
A refEg bat A= M2 mEUL Change in fair value of equity instruments at
B TEAYA e fair value through other comprehensive
1t income 22,946 (670)
JRE: Premises:
BEEEG Revaluation of premises (184,028) 139,747
PRAERRIH Deferred tax 46,489 (9,529)
(137,539) 130,218
FERSEAETE Defined benefit plan:
E T EREEEE Actuarial losses on remeasurement (21,720) (15,760)
IRIEFRTE Deferred tax 3,584 2,600
(18,136) (13,160)
(132,729) 116,388
Hig o] B BRI Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
HE ¢ income statement:
A EE T AHA 2 EIL Debt instruments at fair value through other
BB LA : comprehensive income:
A refEg bat A= A2 mEUL Change in fair value of debt instruments at
e ER LR Z A fEs fair value through other comprehensive
= income 247,506 493,357
THEHME A Z R E (b Changes in allowance for expected credit
losses 13,352 11,112
R E A EE b A A Release upon disposal of debt instruments
EHUGEEIIER T A 8 at fair value through other comprehensive
BEHEREREE income reclassified to income statement (261,805) (221,044)
A SESE B A M 2 E Amortisation with respect to debt
W (s T L & DA instruments at fair value through other
BRECAEST R 2 M comprehensive income transferred to at
B R amortised cost reclassified to income
statement 9,524 10,173
EIEFRIA Deferred tax 30,167 (48,324)
38,744 245,274
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December

Change in fair value of hedging instruments

under net investment hedges
Currency translation difference

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

39

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

(132,309) 35,974

1,113,091 (282,624)

1,019,526 (1,376)

886,797 115,012

4,702,067 4,066,308

The notes on pages 45 to 277 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

40

(i3
Notes 2020 2019
BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

19 58,173,310 41,327,261
19 555,979 10,456,347
20 22,913,313 14,654,347
21 1,031,063 589,616
22 277,085,133 262,413,180
23 132,889,241 146,758,937
24 341,080 355,230
25 8,220,738 8,602,036
- 27,275

31 430,257 58,000
26 4,058,047 4,346,618
505,698,161 489,588,847

33,064,316 30,984,121

27 6,650,987 5,048,559
21 1,882,953 587,563
28 351,629,928 345,887,782
29 24,014,435 15,471,116
30 18,724,809 25,908,840
421,732 626,564

31 864,890 845,124
32 5,416,390 5,438,386
442,670,440 430,798,055
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SreEEAER (8) Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

FFEE:
W12 H 31 H As at 31 December Notes 2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B EQUITY
RN Share capital 33 3,144,517 3,144,517
it Reserves 50,568,314 46,331,385
5 T A B PR PR A AN WA Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 53,712,831 49,475,902
BHNEARTE Additional equity instruments 34 9,314,890 9,314,890
BEARLEER Total equity 63,027,721 58,790,792
B R E ARG Total liabilities and equity 505,698,161 489,588,847

545 F 277 H s EALE&ME;  The notes on pages 45 to 277 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Wz BT -

KEHGH 2021 4£3 H 23 HiE#  Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
AN N ERREE

FRAHIER Chan Sai Ming 2185 Liu Jun
HH Director HH Director

41



5 NCB #:§#1% 441

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

it
Reserves
AV IS
LEt AHA 2
T2 (S
B Reserve for
HINEATHE A fair value
[[EZN Additional  EAEEHRE Premises through other g G RFEF
Share equity Capital revaluation comprehensive Regulatory Translation Retained Yazt
capital __instruments reserve reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BT BT BT BT AT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201941 H1H At 1 January 2019 3,144,517 9,314,890 605 6,374,413 176,761 2,478,179 (159,596) 33,865,034 55,194,803
EREEF] Profit for the year - - - - - - . 3951296 3,951,296
HA £ m s Other comprehensive
income:
B Premises - - - 130,218 - - - - 130,218
FEFZEEFETEZ  Actuarial losses on
HERSE defined benefit plan - - - - - - - (13,160) (13,160)
AfefE#E(EsT AEAL  Financial instruments at
LHEEZ SR T fair value through
B other
comprehensive
income - - - - 244,604 - - - 244,604
FEEER ISR T Change in fair value of
BZAnE%{E hedging instruments
under net
investment hedges - - - - - - 35,974 - 35,974
G Currency translation
difference - - - (5,059) (4,747) - (272,818) - (282,624)
LU EEH Total comprehensive
income - - - 125,159 239,857 - (236,844) 3,938,136 4,066,308
[R5 e H B 2 38 Release upon disposal of
premises - - - (2,199) - - - 2,199 -
Y EESNEA T HEEE  Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments - (470,319) - - - - - - (470,319)
TS E A RLF Transfer from retained
eamings - 470,319 - - - 216,198 - (686,517) -
2019412331 H  At31December 2019 3,144,517 _ 9,314,890 605 _ 6,497,373 416,618 _ 2,694,377 _ (396440) _ 37,118,852 _ 58,790,792
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

1
Reserves
AR
BEETARA S
E SR
EE Reserve for
BINEEATR EfEEE fair value
BE Additional EARHEE Premises  through other 5o BB BHEEF
Share equity Capital  revaluation comprehensive Regulatory  Translation Retained st
capital _instruments reserve reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
BT BETT A¥TT BT BT AT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2020 3,144,517 9,314,890 605 6,497,373 416,618 2,694,377 (396,440) 37,118,852 58,790,792
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3,815,270 3,815,270
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises - - - (137,539) - - - - (137,539)
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit
plan - - - - - - - (18,136) (18,136)
Financial instruments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income - - - - 61,690 - - - 61,690
Change in fair value
of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges - - - - - - (132,309) - (132,309)
Currency translation
difference - - - 21,125 16,565 - 1,075,401 - 1,113,091
Total comprehensive
income - - - (116,414) 78,255 - 943,092 3,797,134 4,702,067
Distribution payment
for additional equity
instruments - (465,138) - - - - - - (465,138)
Transfer from/(to) retained
earnings - 465,138 - - - (240,898) - (224,240) -
At 31 December 2020 3,144,517 9,314,890 605 6,380,959 494,873 2,453,479 546,652 40,691,746 63,027,721

FI CEEARAGE I SR T TR )

or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses

5 45 £ 277 H B AL &% The notes on pages 45 to 277 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
R ST -
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HATESRESR Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
b5
e 12 A 31 HibFEE For the year ended 31 December Notes 2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000
REBEGEZHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
R EHle > mA CR) Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before
taxation 35(a) 1,071,347 (21,102,025)
YAEEER Hong Kong profits tax paid (793,029) (114,085)
(L) I BIEFIMER Overseas profits tax (paid)/refund (40,623) 35,568
FBzm 7 HERA CRl) /#4E  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating
activities 237,695 (21,180,542)
REREZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
AW ~ 230 R Purchase of properties, plant and equipment 25 (144,978) (315,011)
HEYZE - 230 M TS EE Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 320 1,781
R RSP Net cash outflow from investing activities (144,658) (313,230)
MEREHERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITIERS S 5 A Issue of debt securities and certificates of
deposit 8,543,319 3,278,142
BITIRIE AR Issue of subordinated liabilities - 5,447,665
FATETREAENRA Cost paid for issuance of subordinated
liabilities (168) -
TNEHINERTHER Distribution payment for additional equity
instruments (465,138) (470,319)
T REAEEE Distribution payment for subordinated
liabilities (206,187) -
M E A& E Payment of lease liabilities (267,165) (266,719)
RS RS AR Net cash inflow from financing activities 7,604,661 7,988,769
e NEERESIEEMNIN, (&) Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 7,697,698 (13,505,003)
W1 A1 HZ RS REERSTEH Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 41,173,772 54,740,625
VRSN S R HEEIRESTEE N Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
-7 cash equivalents 867,757 (61,850)
R12 B 31 OZ2HE&RrERBE4EIEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December  35(b) 49,739,227 41,173,772

5 45 2 277 H Mz EALi &/ The notes on pages 45 to 277 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
R SHRER Y -
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A SRR M st Notes to the Financial Statements
1. FEER 1. Principal activities

BRI EIRTTARATNE S Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong (hereinafter as the

SRR CTRE TARSRTT ) K “Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the

HIff B A B A R I Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong
(AT EEASRITEME " A% Kong Banking Ordinance.

1) KT B AiR & AR T

ERBIFT R E SR v 2 FERRERT -

AT T ERE BT R The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking and related financial services.
ERlAR IS - AERAT IR A SR The principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of
FEEEHEGA 8% — AT the Bank”. The address of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
M@ AE AN - AT Z AERE Kong.

i St i Ay A s o R R A

151 5% -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value,
investment properties which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at
fair value or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Repossessed assets are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.23.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.
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MR (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEeESR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Bit2020E1H1H (@) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and are initially adopted for

B G s EEE accounting period beginning on 1 January 2020

REEMHBE XA

HEET

ioyiar |z i
Applicable for
&3] HNE financial years
Amendments Content beginning on/after
TRV MRS AR 3 98 (KEET) HERER 202041 H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
EAEEEHEAIE 1 50F05 8 5 (K& HEAMNERE 20201 H1H
i)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 January 2020
FR SRR 9 5% - g ERENRYCE 2020 E1 H 1 H
RIS 39 SEAIE B RS IS 7 9%
(&fEaT)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020
and HKFRS 7
BT RIS 16 57 (KK4E3T) THE 202046 51 H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Leases 1 June 2020
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2, FEEHER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Bit2020E1H1H (@) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and are initially adopted for

B G s EEE accounting period beginning on 1 January 2020 (continued)
REEMHME XA
HfEsT ()

o HBI S HEAEAIZE 3 « Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Definition of a Business”. The amendments clarify
FROKIEET )T BN the definition of a business, with the objective of assisting entities to determine
EF o HEBEITRH whether a business combination transaction should be accounted for as a
THENES  HHVZ business combination or as an asset acquisition. The amendments have been
B ERSHEE B S applied prospectively. The application of this amendment does not have a
BB = EEAE Ry b material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
SO OFEE E YU A
IR - (EETTWERIIS R
H - ZAEETHIERI RS
HAREENMB®E
BEEE A -

EEe s ERIE 1 95K Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, “Definition of Material”. The amendments

FE s 8 5k 4K clarify the definition of materiality of information and align the definition used
BaT) T ERKMENE across other accounting standards. The amendments have been applied
= BEEXEBESETE prospectively. The application of these amendments does not have a material
BEEEHNES > W impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HArgar R HE

EFE—H - BRI
WEVERRA] - BEEETHY
J&FARA A SR BRI
BHERELERNTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@) BiR2020FE1E1H

(@) Amendments that are relevant to the Group and are initially adopted for

itk i)
FEREEWE XA
HEET (&)

HE B S R
9 5% HhEEEAIE
39 SEMIE R EHE
R 7 5% (&E5T)

M ECRERIRRIEAEET -
FAEET BE Btk
TE VR E R - B2
LR ER TR R IR L
oA SEap AN OF v A
B AR R EE
FHEPPH AR
WM A TE
wal o FEZEETHE
B gR AT R
AR R 1k (i) B R
KU EEE RS
BB RN A HEE AR IR
BE 5 (i) E B ER e
A A SR SRR
EREDRT o E AR
RS RA AR YR
T A SRR R
W EEIRGEE - 1257
WA - %iE
STHE A A BASEE
WIS AR A
g;ﬁ o

T % s 2R
16 SR (&RMEFTTHHE -
#ZIEET B E B
RAFT AR AR
2019 FEIRHHEIENS
BT B RS e £
REGEsIBHESE
B Mt SEEE
FIFHEEE R -

AT 202046 6 F 1
H 4% 0 3 R
2020 £ 1 H 1 H$BE
2021 4% 6 F 30 FIARS
R 2019 ERIFEES
BRI 4 S PR
L B (A - HRA%
SR EEAR S E

A H R E L E R
a .

« Amendments to HKFRS 16,

accounting period beginning on 1 January 2020 (continued)

« Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, “Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform”. The amendments modify certain specific hedge accounting requirements
to provide temporary relief allowing the continuous use of hedge accounting under
the uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (“IBOR reform”) on the
cash flows of the hedge relationships. Pursuant to the amendments, the relief would
deem to be ended at the earlier of (i) when there is no longer uncertainty arising
from IBOR reform over the cash flows of the hedging relationships, and (ii) when
the hedging relationship to which the relief applied is discontinued, or in case of
cash flow hedges, when the entire amount accumulated in the cash flow hedge
reserve with respect to the discontinued hedging relationship has been reclassified
to profit or loss. The amendments have been applied retrospectively. The
application of these amendments does not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

“Leases” . The amendments provide a practical
expedient that exempt lessees from evaluating whether rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and,
instead, account for those rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

The amendments are effective on 1 June 2020 and applicable to COVID-19-related
rent concessions that reduce lease payments from 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2021.
The adoption of the amendments does not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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AT (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHESE () 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEIEE () 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) EfRMEALE R (b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not
Hifi kA& EER yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2020
R 2020 FEHERTERGT
Z eI Kadig
DU BRI Z BT R The following amendments and interpretation have been issued and are mandatorily
SRS 2021 F£1 A1 effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021:
HEE s & BIT S
ST RTERIMEAE R -
EMREH  EE
Applicable for
1851/ %R NE financial years
Amendments/interpretation Content beginning on/after

AR SRR O 0 - TOREFHER  FOeRRRNEE s R
5 39 5k ~ MBS EELENIE 7 5t - Bk

AR A ISR 4 9 s A PR T S

5516 5% (KfEET)

202241 H1H

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2021
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

EE SRS 3 5% (84EaT) TEREZ 2 20221 H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
EAGETAERIE 1 98 (%(E5T) RENEFER BN & HEI 20231 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Current or Non-current liabilities 1 January 2023
FRFIE 5 (2020) MBHRES] - O8RS E I B 2023 4£1 5 1 H
HK Int 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the 1 January 2023

Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

50



) NCB #:f %% 4kt

MR (8
2. FEEHBOR (8

21 GEREE (8D

(b) 05 fif B A 45 4L )

L AR 56 Rl MR 4 3 e
RIS 2020 FFEZRTEREN
ZEET KRR (&)

o7 A FEL B A
I 10 75 S B 7 2
Bl ZRHO T

MBS EE 9
5 TGRS 39
%~ T B AR
F T BB WS
HEHIZE 4 5% R B/ I
HEENE 16 98 (K
fE3T) BRI AR E L
ZPER ) o e IERTIES
& 1 S R AR IR L
B R AR A R
(A =3=—F-S =il )
BE 52 B I 155 i 2 Y ]
e B EET 2R 2019
FEEARNIESTHIRA -
HREUTNE
- GYEESRENEE
— AN EER R E
it 2R Y ZE AR &8 1k
T B A 2 S i T
HAIRE 5 - 2
e B BT T IR IR DA
52 Bl o B AR ] R
HyE(L
- BPrE AR
FFaRMmEhgs
Q> HIAEARME
R HETT T B
B Ay B R o Ok
BdEEt sk
ENioE =L Rk
REAEFRRAE 24
&l 3 A 53 BbfEE > Al
B {6 AE 45 7€ H B
oy B M E B AN E
BRI AT DURPES
RESFBRHREER
I & QYRR T 1Y B
sy

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2020
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is as follows:

« Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, “Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2”. The amendments address issues that might
affect financial reporting when an entity replaces the old interest rate benchmark
with an alternative benchmark rate as a result of the IBOR Reform. The
amendments complement those issued in 2019 and relate to:

- changes to contractual cash flows—a company will not have to derecognise or
adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate;

- hedge accounting—a company will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting
solely because it makes changes required by the reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; furthermore, if an entity reasonably expects that an
alternative benchmark rate will be separately identifiable within a period of 24
months, it can designate the alternative reference rate as a non-contractually
specified risk component even if it is not separately identifiable at the designation
date; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2020
(continued)

- disclosures—a company will be required to disclose information about new risks
arising from the reform and how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively, except regarding designation of
hedging relationships. The comparatives are not restated. Early application is
permitted. The Group is considering the financial impact of the amendments on the
Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”. The
amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in 2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability, that for some types of liabilities
and contingent liabilities, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS
37. The exception has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of updating
the reference to the Conceptual Framework. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time or earlier an entity
also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, issued in June 2018. The application
of the amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Amendments and interpretation issued that are relevant to the Group but not

yet mandatorily effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2020
(continued)

« Amendments to HKAS 1, “Classification of Current or Non-current liabilities”. The

amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping
entities determine whether, in the balance sheet, debt and other liabilities with an
uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due or potentially due to
be settled within one year) or non-current. The amendments include clarifying the
classification requirements for debt an entity might settle by converting it into equity.
The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted.
The Group is considering the financial impact of the amendments on the Group’s
financial statements.

HK Int 5 (2020), “Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause “. This
interpretation is revised as a consequence of Amendments to HKAS 1,

“Classification of Current or Non-current liabilities” issued in August 2020, to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion. The amendments
are to be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is
considering the financial impact of the interpretation and the timing of its application.
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AR EE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2, FEEHER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 GREUERE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) BEEFBRMBEHREE (c) Improvements to HKFRSs

]

o SR EEIS s « “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs which
HI A& T B s the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that
RN ZIEEBET & result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose
e A g AE as well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual
B AE ST JE B H Db HKFRSs. These improvements will not have a material impact on the Group’s
o BEIEHHET) financial statements.
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5 NCB #:§#1% 441

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 SEEWRE 2.3 Segmental reporting
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The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating decision maker of the
Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating segments.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining
operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount
of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 SNEE ()

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
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Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are included in other
comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

« assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period;

» income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the translation reserve in equity
through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in the translation reserve. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to in the income statement, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value
is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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Certain derivatives embedded in financial liabilities are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.

For derivative instruments being designated as hedging instrument in an effectively
hedge, the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of the economic relationship, credit risk, the hedge
ratio and an evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedging instruments in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These criteria should be met before
a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge accounting. Hedge accounting
may become ineffective if the hedging instrument and the hedged item lose economic
relationship, or a significant change of the counterparties’ credit risks that dominates the
fair value change of the hedging instruments or the hedged items.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

25 fTESMT ER#HhEst

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(#)
(G EE2 (@) Fair value hedge
BREBARZ A E Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as effective

b BT AR TR
B T
JE\b 2 ¥ E B R A A
ZANSEEEE) —HERNUL

fair value hedges are recognised in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk.

N o AE B st o For fair value hedge relationships where the hedged items are debt instruments
EORIEE BN R EEEA carried at fair value through other comprehensive income, changes in fair value are
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(b)

When the
hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated

recorded in the income statement whilst hedge accounting is in place.

for reasons other than derecognition, the cumulative effective hedged portion of fair
value change recognised in the income statements are amortised by the effective
If the hedged item is
derecognised, the unamortised cumulative effective hedged portion of fair value

interest method back to the revaluation reserve.

change recognised in the income statement are reclassified to revaluation reserve
immediately.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Accumulated
gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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2.6 Offsetting financial instruments
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

nterest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest income or
interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate debt securities are disclosed
on a net basis together with net interest income/expense arising from the hedging
instrument such as interest rate swap.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.
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(continued)

Fee income from services are recognized over time at a fixed or variable price on a
systematic basis over the life of the agreement when the contract requires services to be
provided over time such as account service and credit card fees, or recognized at a point
in time under transaction-based arrangements when service has been fully provided to
the customer such as broking services and loan syndication arrangement.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition and subsequently measured
financial assets as: (i) at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”"), (ii) at amortised cost
(“AC”) or (iii) at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The
classification depends on the entity’'s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments, or the
election of fair value option. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. Except
for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction costs of
financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has three sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception, and financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Afinancial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

61



5 NCB #:§#1% 441

MR (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEeESR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 &RiEE (8) 2.8 Financial assets (continued)

Q) MUz sz AE (1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
# ZEHEE ()

SREENRERE DL TE Afinancial asset can be designated as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss,

i —IEGRME T E T g if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is so designated by the Management:

FUE B LA e E #ALEE A

RS SR E
H] DU R e R DA - eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
EAR T E S E (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
FEZ (EH » SR measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
TEESTE o TR — different bases; or
Bz 5t = SR L

(—Mepdmny T asteh

(D=1
JERN—4HEREE - - applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
SREEE -~ NWEFE its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
MaHE » HAETHRRE risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided
o E LAY E R internally on that basis to the Management; or
P BRE A SREE ACE T

HRFURR N ol R
WAt A% LR
W% AR TR AV

] & B g F H N D R

&5 =

EAE s —{E B 2 ([ o el - relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded derivative that
HOT4 e T B significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial assets.

HEEARA - HiE ik
AT SR T HEE
SRR SR EL
ESoNZ-

iB e DA o EET ) These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly to
WD X B A E T A the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Wzs2e > WA E#ETR

e

HEBENN CEEERT Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets are reported in net trading
ARG T AR B gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Wt HSIRESE R LA
Rl Lat AR % 2 SRl
THFUEs H51A -

62



) NCB #:f %% 4kt

AT (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2, FEEHER (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 &RiEE (8) 2.8 Financial assets (continued)
Q) Ltgr A2 2% (2) Financial assets at amortised cost
HEE
YOS e DU T Wi iR > Al Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of the
SR E oy S R DU eR R following conditions are met: (i) the financial assets are held within a business model with
ARG & - (1) & the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and (ii) the
EDEBEARA > HEW contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
BEAHESMEE IS solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. They are
[EERAR » PAS (i) 4=Fh initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are
HENGHFERILEEH subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
HAE AR R SR E allowances for impairment losses. Interest income which includes the amortisation of
Fo R HIAREBAESHTF premium or discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in
B EFfRIMUAnEE the income statement. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
I _EAT AR B 25 B <X Sk derecognised, modified or impaired.
AN - HAR(E B EA =
T BB AR AR R 25 R

EAEF R R - ST
B SH T RIS AR 12 B ET
BEFE AT RS A U
Ko EHEELILTEY - &
IR IR W BRI AE
R PHERT -

63



5 NCB #:§#1% 441

MR (8
2. FEEHBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 &REE (8

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

Q) UL EZE AR
2 E K Z &
E
WO 2 DU i iR Al
B LA RN E
BALat AR EY s ¢
(i) sl DRI
A FA BRZIELETE
BERAEHE - DU (i)
SR E AR G EIRETS
TE F I A R E T > a4
TRERA S RAREER S
HHAIFIE -

DLy e e S et A HAt 4
W s 2 S R EE DL 2
EIN - E R BRI A 5 2
FHHEFTHIIB AR AELAL 2
HETRA R W& HR

B R B TR L
TR A RS T E %
S < L T E 4 L M BRR
B 2 AUt A P 2 A
oY B A R B TR
AWGERR A - BRI
HES YR S AR IR B
B SR RS Y
Ko

BRI DUE TR
TR HE1T 1 W] R Y 22
1 DU R BN
Hetgr sz i A nEE
W sdRk  MEERRIF A T
(B Wi s 2R SR BT 0 M
ZEfRE CRAEE) - 5
(EfERE B R AIRE - A
D REELE AR
Wz BRI T H 2
B AEA BB =R HE
UETERVAISR IR TN
ERE - FE E Ry DL S
(b5t A A 2 T W 2 O R
T RAATE R E RS -

DLy e e S et A HAt 4
I U i 2 56 27 Y S A2 3R
HY R T A R M s
24-

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments are classified as subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met: (i) the financial asset
is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling, and (ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially recorded
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investments are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest
income which includes the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the
effective interest method and is recognised in the income statement.

For equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to
recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains or losses in other comprehensive
income without subsequent reclassification of fair value gains or losses to the income
statement even upon disposal (non-recycling). Dividends on equity instruments classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised in other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

The treatment of translation differences on fair value through other comprehensive
income securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

(3) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities,
and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and
other liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities or designated at fair value
through profit or loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period using the effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts and undrawn loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder
and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under
such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) an ECL provision and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over
the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the
commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer.

2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets subsequently measured at FVPL, at FVOCI and
AC are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells the
assets. Loans and advances and other financial assets are recognised when cash is
advanced to the counterparty. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained
control. If the contractual cashflow of FVOCI or AC financial instruments are renegotiated
or modified, the modified contractual cashflow should be discounted using the original
effective interest rate, and compared with the original amortised cost before impairment.
If the difference is material, the original financial instrument should be derecognised and
then re-recognised with the present value aforementioned. Otherwise, the difference is
adjusted to the original carrying value and accounted for in the profit or loss.
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2.11 Recognition, derecognition and modification of financial instruments (continued)
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Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at FVPL, debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue and subordinated liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits
that are not designated at FVPL are recognised when money is received from customers,
other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are
derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a pre-
determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are referred
to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-
sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a
resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash received
from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements
are not derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income. Reverse repos or securities borrowing
are initially recorded in the balance sheet as Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the
counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference between sale and
repurchase price is recognised as interest income or interest expense over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method.
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The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of the
fair value of financial instruments, where appropriate, includes using on the residual of
the net offsetting risk position of portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities in
cases the Group manages such groups of financial assets and liabilities according to
their net market risk exposures. Despite the Group measures the fair value of these
groups of financial instruments on a net basis, the underlying financial assets and
financial liabilities are separately presented in the financial statements unless the
offsetting criterias are fulfilled.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are
initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or
losses on precious metals are included in net trading gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- debt securities measured at FVOCI; and

- loan commitments and financial guarantees issued, which are not measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including equity securities measured at FVPL,
equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) and derivative financial assets,
are not subject to the ECL assessment.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments and financial guarantees outstanding, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the loan commitment draws down on the
loan/the beneficiary of the financial guarantee claims on the financial guarantee and (ii)
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down/the financial
guarantee is claimed.

70



5 NCB #:§#1% 441

MR (8
2. FEEHBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

214 SREERE (8)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

IR AEERA R B R AP
TAHARYER Sk &7 DLURGER
P EE - {55 THEE IR I
B B Y i R IR S
FTrE ARz & & 1F
HH -

FEETETEIIE HBRKE &4
M &5 E S mmEiLE
BEHI A S ) H AT 52
FEE - SEEAMBEE
B BRI AR AR
ARRFEHIRIEE -

FAEE FIHR AL LT Ho
— R EAtE

- 12 {& 5 I FEHIE 1R
K RTERHERS O
Witk 12 (8 H NH TR
SR EN BRI
Bk

KOG HEL « it
Fe TR TEIAE FH 4R
PRI ER P Y IH H 2 THH
Fan N HFTA TR E
NBEMEBEIEE -

E VAR % T R LA
I - AEERHEARZ 12 (H
HAWTESME FRRE A
— P -l BAERARERR %
15 PR BB B SR IS - 1545
B TRHIE AR A HERE e
CPEEE UR B R A
HIfhiEt R A S R A
TR B — I S TS
rEAE L AT B E R
BT RS S THIE
JHIR TR R 26 = P B H.
FAERH SR =P B R A
EEATIRRIR A AR T A -

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted where the effect of discounting is material.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; or

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months as Stage 1
when those financial instruments are initially recognised; and to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there has been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition. Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognised for credit-
impaired financial instruments as Stage 3 if one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred and
interest will then be accrued net of the impairment amount of the respective Stage 3
financial assets.
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The Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to act on such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment and financial guarantee) has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. The Group takes
into account following information, including but not limited to:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or
internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the group.

For loan commitments and financial guarantees, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that the Group becomes a party
to the irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment and financial
guarantee, the Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on the loan and
guarantee to which the loan commitment and financial guarantee relates.
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Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in income statement. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve.

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note 2.7 is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired (Stage
3), in which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

73



) NCB #:f %% 4kt

MR (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEeESR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
214 SRIEENE (&) 2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
&R E A B £ When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
SERFTE ERR T R HEE impairment losses. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have
BAEHR AEEHZE been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. The assets written off
BTG MR Y are still subject to enforcement activity. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
EFRAR AR % written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income statement.

s B AT 2 R BT
By - s 1 U [ B BRK 2 2
R UL i 2% o Y B RORR

EHEk -

YR AAE B AT ST R EH If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases and
i > BE R AT ER D the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
H 253D BT R E 1% was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
LR F R recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
W AAS FH EF A L allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Z) A2 AIE A RE
BRAHER LN ZATE
B2 B R R
Y LAEIE - (Bl A
W zE A HERE, ©

EERIRR K E T EET % Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms are
B AR IR B A N 0 2% no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.
ERCR W R i R0

i1F R SRk R -

74



5 NCB #:§#1% 441

MR (8
2. FEEHBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

215 $TB AT KIEEREE 2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

ZBE

WA 3 A SR B DL L
B BT B < IR I B
HHER M E] > A TR
HE B E S
HHEEZHE - 15 &
B ECE BRI T I
BRI EEHEANRENR
HIT B 2R H R AR -

PN IVRIDR =) SN
EFEHE - i "R A
O FAEARTS B A
FHALERFAH -

7 Y R T R 2 T U
[ B BHAT 0 0 B e R
AR - AT B 1S
B RO SO AEATER 5
A% B R B E R
& o R FHUBERTAS - H2E
J4% Hodg /N AT o B G A
B (BT B
T - N B
> ORI ENEE
HEATERR A E R El -

ATV EE AL W
SIS N B B Y R
M EAL R E IR R 2
W KA SEAEASRTTHY
R T b 8 A LR TR
BEENCEER T
USRI REE Sl o
M, -

2.16 KEYIRE

Fof 1 S L B Ui =
B E R ESE B
A7 FF AR BT S F A
M Z )2 (RS R e
HYAH & AR A I A
HE) Y IWERE Y - th
HPAEREAN NS Z Y
S EGINCiPAzp et
DI RICERE KNG G
T R BE -

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is also
required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on
which properties are situated) that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are
classified as investment properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are
classified as investment properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as
premises in consolidated financial statements.
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Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The work in progress item is stated
at fair value. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement up to the amount previously debited.
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Properties (including right-of use assets arising from leases over leasehold land on which
properties are situated) are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown
at fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external independent
valuers less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying amount of
premises, by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and adjustments
are made when there has been a material change.

All plant and equipment and right-of-use assets other than leasehold land are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and installation of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis
of its respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises revaluation
reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred from the
premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Properties

Over the life of government land leases
Plant and equipment

2 to 15 years
Right-of-use assets

Shorter of useful lives and lease terms

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of each
reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement on
date of disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to the income statement.
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At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use over the contract
period.

(1) As a lessee

On the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable over the lease term, after taking into account payments to
be made in the optional period if the extension option is reasonably certain to be
exercised, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
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(1) As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses except for the following types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are carried at fair
value; and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and buildings that do not meet the definition
of investment property where the Group is the registered owner of the leasehold interest
are carried at revalued amount.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in income statement if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘Properties, plant and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities separately in
“Other accounts and provisions”.
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(2) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is
a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets
to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions, short-
term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made.
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(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as
a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from
those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves are
non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitiement is not used in full. Except
for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entittement on leaving the Group.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 g RHEM (8)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
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(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plan, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to income statement in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in income statement at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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2.21 g RHEM (8)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(4) REFaiFFlzt&] (&) (4) Defined benefit plan (continued)
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability.
The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
“interest expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement by
function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements

net interest expense

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)
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The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions, depreciation
of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including at fair value
through other comprehensive income securities and premises. However, the deferred
income tax is not recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of securities at fair value through other
comprehensive income and revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or
charged to other comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is determined
based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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2.23 Repossessed assets
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Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured
at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as “non-current
assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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2.25 RAREBBRAREE(E) 2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)
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3. EAesEEREIE2E A 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
et ihet BT accounting policies

AREEWEHATEHESTRIEGEE  The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
WERE N~ EENEEM  liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
EEIEREE - 25 S LA and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
B AR 1 R 5B 4 K events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to
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3.1 &RIEEREEX 3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets
RIBEE B @S A 995 The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across all categories of financial
B RTAE RN SR E E TR assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
{HIESET =198 F AT - B cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying

accounting policies (continued)

3.1 Impairment requirements on financial assets (continued)

Development of ECL models, including the determination of macroeconomic scenarios
and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

Forward-looking macroeconomic factor forecasts maintain a consistent Group’s view
on future macroeconomic environment.

- Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.
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3. ERE=1BURIFZE A 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
et Rl (&|) accounting policies (continued)

3.2 $T4E£R T RN NME 3.2 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

WRAEERTSWME S TES The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are
BT HE > HA\ESHRBS determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include discounted
BT AR E » Friff 2 f51E cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions available in externally acquired
FEAEGRE SR E T financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the industry such as option
o AR PESNEIREA - Wit sE pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data. In addition,
&2 B 2 BAF& 43 A L valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not considered in
I e L5 NEEE » 41 the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates are required for the
HAMEE (EIEAY - (R IRIERE selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques.
ATTHIEA T  EEE A E Further details will be discussed in Note 5.
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R T HIRM(E TR in Note 21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to
recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and processes
for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensure various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, evaluate, monitor,
report, and control various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and
procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business
strategies. Various groups of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk
management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest decision-
making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk management. The
Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary responsibility for the formulation
of risk management strategies and risk appetite, establishing a sound risk culture and
ensuring that the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, reviewing and
approving high-level risk management policies and monitoring their implementation,
recommending senior risk management organisational framework to the Board, including
credit approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit approval for the Credit
Approval Committee. The Risk Management Committee would refer any specific transaction
to the Board if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk
Management Committee, from the risk management viewpoint assesses whether incentives
created by the remuneration system are aligned with the risk culture and risk appetite, and
whether remuneration awards appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and consequences.
It also assists to fostering a strong risk culture within the Group. The Audit Committee assists
the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control system.

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for reviewing or approving credit business or
credit management related matters within the authorisation granted by the Board of Directors,
monitoring the credit activities of the Group and reporting to the Risk Management Committee
regularly. The Chief Executive is responsible for organising and implementing the risk
management strategies and objectives established by the Board of Directors, managing
various risks and approving significant risk exposures or transactions within the authorisation
granted by the Board of Directors.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent from
the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of risks.
Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating
various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisational structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management, respective
product management units are responsible for formulating business and product development
plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic development
unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Units that are
responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units work closely with
relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk evaluating
units conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the corresponding risk
management measures. Products can only be launched upon completion of the product due
diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our customers. All new treasury
products require approval from a specialised committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility
for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management committee authorised by
the Chief Executive, is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk management
strategies as well as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence. The risk management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring,
evaluating, monitoring, reporting and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks
and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. They report directly to the Chief Risk Officer, Credit and Loans
Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit Approval Committee and Risk
Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up independent risk
monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits management information and reports
to the Bank on a regular basis.
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The Board of Directors
delegates credit approval authority to the Credit Approval Committee and the Chief
Executive. Based on management needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the
credit-related subordinates within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group
sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature, rating, the
level of transaction risk, and the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revising
its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit applications
will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before
approval, with exceptions given to designated advances which satisfy certain conditions.
After funding being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business units. Obligor
ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default)
are assigned to credit applications for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail
internal rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans, etc.
Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to
support credit approval.
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories with
reference to the HKMA'’s guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its repayment obligations
and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit ratings,
assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/security issuer
basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the investment. For derivatives,
the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk involved and follows the same
approval and control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-
loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the failure of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities.
Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. If necessary, collateral is
insured with the Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2019: Nil).
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology

For impairment assessment, an impairment model is introduced in complance with
HKFRS 9, it requires the recognition of ECL for financial instrument held at amortized cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income. Under HKFRS 9, ECL is assessed
in three stages and the financial assets and commitments are classified in one of the three
stages.

Stage 1: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination and the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
loss allowance is measured at an amount up to 12-month ECL;

Stage 2: if the financial instrument is not credit-impaired upon origination but the credit
risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL;

Stage 3: if the financial instrument is credit-impaired, with one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred, the loss allowance is also measured at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL.
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Group leverages the parameters implemented under Internal Ratings-Based (“IRB”)
models and internal models where feasible and available to assess ECL. For the portfolios
without models, all other reasonable and supportable information such as historical
information, relevant loss experience or proxies are utilized. The measurement of ECL is
the product of the financial instrument’s probability of default (“PD”), loss given default
(“LGD”) and exposures at default (‘EAD”) discounted at the effective interest rate to the
reporting date.

ECL is measured at an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The Group adopts three economic scenarios in the ECL
measurement to meet the requirements of HKFRS 9. The “Base case” scenario
represents a most likely outcome and the other two scenarios, referred to as “Upside”
scenario and “Downside” scenario, represent less likely outcomes which are more
optimistic or more pessimistic compared to Base case scenario.
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Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

The Base case scenario is made reference to macroeconomics forecast provided by
internal economic research unit. For the Upside scenario and Downside scenarios, the
Group makes reference to the historical macroeconomics data.

The macroeconomic factors in the major operating countries/regions such as HK GDP
growth rate, HK Inflation, HK unemployment rate, HK Property price growth, China GDP
growth rate and China unemployment rate are applied in the economic scenarios. These
macroeconomic factors are considered to be important to the Group’s ECL in statistical
analysis and business opinion.

The probability assigned for each scenario reflects the Group’s view for the economic
environment, which implements the Group’s prudent and consistent credit strategy of
ensuring the adequacy of impairment allowance. A higher probability is assigned to the
Base case scenario to reflect the most likely outcome and a lower probability is assigned
to the Upside and Downside scenarios to reflect the less likely outcomes. The probabilities
assigned are reviewed each quarter.

The ECL methodology has been validated by independent Model Validation Unit and
approved by the Risk Management Committee. The Management is responsible to review
model performance and changes in ECL.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) Methodology (continued)

Summary of credit risk by stage distribution at 31 December 2020 is, as follows:

2020
ARESEME
Gross carrying amount
R ERBST
R EAM SRS 1=19°4
HIEEER AR SRIE  HMEE  UHRER HRRIE )
Balances and
placements
with banks
and other Advances
financial and other Financial Other  Financial Loan
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees commitments Total
ARETIT A¥TRT BT BT BT ARETIT  ABETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
58,106,346 274,747,138 132,366,431 3,390,840 39,793,209 127,006,157 635,410,121
- 2,973,052 536,138 4,637 5,868 563,061 4,082,756
75,380 2,494,903 - 3,830 - - 2,574,113
58,181,726 280,215,093 132,902,569 3,399,307 39,799,077 127,569,218 642,066,990
2019
WETHI4E(E
Gross carrying amount
FEIRR E R T
F ARl =794
HY45ER HAhRIE R HAhERE  WEER ERURE st
Balances and
placements
with banks
and other Advances
financial and other Financial Other Financial Loan
institutions accounts investments assets guarantees commitments Total
AT AT BETT EETIT BT AT HERETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
51,141,832 260,388,835 146,781,298 4,228,848 29,161,431 94,781,502 586,483,746
- 2,962,628 - 10 3,784 91,945 3,058,367
70,768 1,865,454 - 3,361 - - 1,939,583
51,212,600 265,216,917 146,781,298 4,232,219 29,165,215 94,873,447 591,481,696
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The internal rating and PD estimation process

The Group leverages the internal rating models where possible, with adjustments to
incorporate forward looking information and the HKFRS 9 stage classification of the
exposure to determine the PDs for HKFRS 9 ECL calculations. This is repeated for each
economic scenario as appropriate. The Group uses various internal rating models for its
key portfolios in which its wholesale customers or retail accounts are rated or assigned to
specific internal grades or risk pools. The internal rating models incorporate both
qualitative and quantitative information and, in addition to information specific to the
borrower, utilise supplemental information such as borrower’s/ account’s behaviour.

Wholesale lending

For wholesale lending, the repayment ability of borrowers are assessed by designated
divisions of the Group. The credit risk assessment is based on a credit rating model that
takes into account various financial information and qualitative information (such as
management quality, industry risks, group connection, negative warning signals).

Retail lending

Retail lending comprises personal loans, overdrafts and retail mortgages. These products
along with and some of the less complex small business lending are rated by automated
scorecards or statistical PD models.
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(A) EERBRRE (A) Credit exposures
REE Y BEEEH The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
T AR T AR AT without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-
R A = balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
B GRA EoR R K amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
& - WNEEABER maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are called
WEZE - s s8R upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum exposure
g AR ERE R HR to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.
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DUT B PRl o & The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
Hith = EEEAN effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

M R AR E

HEREENEER

i

TESRTT e Hofh 5 i Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
TSR 4EER K BRTFI

B e 58 5 T Collateral is generally not sought on these exposures in consideration of the
H o —fEReEi L counterparty nature. However, other mitigation will be taken.

BHE RIS - E

B BRI A 4 T

it

A nEELE AlEe Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments
Z S RE R N B EE

“

— ARG EGE 5 Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement’) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual framework
under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative transactions are
conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following the
occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form part of the Schedule
to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, margin is passed from one counterparty
to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 100. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 119 to 120. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity
to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates.
For contingent liabilities and commitments, 11.37% (2019: 11.69%) was covered by
collateral as at 31 December 2020.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised

by product type as follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Trade bills

Advances to banks and other financial

institutions

2020 2019
ARTIT AT T
HK$°000 HK$°000

29,167,672 26,262,424
57,024 73,191
28,633,974 25,978,247
214,086,093 200,628,952
7,777,808 10,160,418
279,722,571 263,103,232
390,401 2,017,812
102,121 95,873
280,215,093 265,216,917

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the principal
or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) S8E R R EHAIETE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&

A — TR S % TE Advances are credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
EEEIZENRK impact on the estimated future cash flows have occurred. Credit-impaired advances
IR 40 EE AR R Ry are classified as Stage 3. The Group identifies the advances as impaired if the
wE S HEREBENR exposure is past due for more than 90 days or the borrower is unlikely to pay in full
BiERBERE -3 for the credit obligations to the Group
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Advances that were neither overdue nor credit-impaired are analysed by internal

credit grade as follows:

2020
BEME  REEUUT
=y Special Substandard gzt
Pass mention or below Total
BAETT AT AT BAETT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 28,896,196 20,649 - 28,916,845
- Credit cards 54,923 - - 54,923
- Others 28,372,829 32,055 - 28,404,884
Corporate
- Commercial loans 209,852,398 935,832 - 210,788,230
- Trade finance 7,433,123 27,079 - 7,460,202
274,609,469 1,015,615 - 275,625,084
Trade bills 390,401 - - 390,401
274,999,870 1,015,615 - 276,015,485
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor credit-impaired (continued)

2019
FERE  RBEDT
&g Special  Substandard 4=t
Pass mention or below Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 25,819,818 26,189 - 25,846,007
- Credit cards 67,814 3 - 67,817
- Others 25,677,779 24,382 - 25,702,161
Corporate
- Commercial loans 196,177,066 2,244,651 - 198,421,717
- Trade finance 10,137,179 19,449 - 10,156,628
257,879,656 2,314,674 - 260,194,330
Trade bills 2,017,812 - - 2,017,812
259,897,468 2,314,674 - 262,212,142
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(B) HEERRHAARH

€:-))
(b) BEAREHRE
=14
HEAHAAAE R
HEFTA
T
BFEK Advances to customers
EPN Personal
- {448 - Mortgages
- EHF - Credit cards
- A, - Others
AH] Corporate
- REEEGK - Commercial loans

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not credit-impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not credit-impaired is analysed as

follows:
2020
A
3fEH
EAREE B
6 fEH 6 fEH
B3 @A Overdue {EREHB
BT for 14
Overdue six months Overdue preng-is|
for or less for one 14
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one wEE
or less months six months year Total
BT BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
182,320 - - - 182,320
1,271 - - - 1,271
204,932 - - - 204,932
1,316,182 - - - 1,316,182
1,704,705 - - - 1,704,705
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4.1 FEER (8
(B) HEERRHAARH

€:-))
(b) BEAREHRE
g3 (8D
g Advances to customers
EPN Personal
- 1%51% - Mortgages
- EHF - Credit cards
- Hith - Others
NE] Corporate
- PEEEERK - Commercial loans

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not credit-impaired (continued)

2019
A
3{EH
(EEN Y A
6 & H 6 {E A
i 3 E Overdue ERNEEh
E4YEN for 14
Overdue six months Overdue ATHA
for or less for one i1
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one 4=
or less months six months year Total
BT BT BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
311,502 - - - 311,502
2,500 - - - 2,500
255,937 - - - 255,937
569,382 - - - 569,382
1,139,321 - - - 1,139,321
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Advances to banks and
other financial
institutions

Impairment allowances -
Stage 3

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to
banks and other financial institutions
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2020 2019
e R
H{E [
WER Market = Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT BETT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
68,507 191,615 104,915 265,166
830 - 2,874 -
24,158 44,955 20,149 51,841
1,981,681 554,497 1,637,853 232,674
317,606 2,024 3,790 -
2,392,782 793,091 1,769,581 549,681
102,121 - 95,873 -
2,494,903 793,091 1,865,454 549,681
1,804,583 1,411,506
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
793,091 549,681
552,798 263,484
1,839,984 1,506,097
102,121 95,873
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 R (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BERHMIEE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€ )]
(c) BREEX (&) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
HUEAEH T S The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
A ESER S fE A collateral in respect of such advances.
(g
DU1E1E °
#2020 4E 12 H As at 31 December 2020, there were no impaired trade bills (2019: Nil).
31 H » JGARE
Z 8 5 F2 B
(2019 4F 1 4iE )
¥ E S BB E Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
2R PR M
A
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RS IEECRE Gross classified or impaired advances to
E SRR customers 2,392,782 1,769,581
FHE T HEURE Gross classified or impaired advances to
S customers as a percentage of gross
P EGREREREE advances to customers
2% 0.86% 0.67%
B PR R E Impairment allowances - Stage 3
r 1,702,462 1,315,633
W5 T oy FE B R E Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
JRPEHER classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
HAREEHERE loan quality, or classified as Stage 3.

BT R

R A
B HEE =R
HYEERK -
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed

as follows:

2020 2019
e ay= et | & P SRR
Btk Bkt
% of gross % of gross
ot | advances to S advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 31,102 0.01% 13,501 0.01%
- one year or
less but over
six months 94,566 0.03% 494,515 0.19%
- over one year 259,019 0.09% 218,974 0.08%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 384,687 0.14% 726,990 0.28%
Impairment
allowances —
Stage 3 258,891 582,435
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 R (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SRERREAEREIR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€:-))
(d) #HA#EE 3 EA (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZEK (#)
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
fi Ml VI SEw Y] Current market value of collateral held
ENE PSR against the covered portion of such
R TE advances to customers 250,172 226,851
AR EE Covered portion of such advances to
ZEFEER customers 103,029 95,466
G AR Uncovered portion of such advances to
HEZBREERK customers 281,658 631,524
i HA B 3K ek K (E Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
SRR ST charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
AN 5 RS corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FHETHNEAE
EUEERESR
BT EARER
H T {ETEE
Y -
#2020 4£ 12 H As at 31 December 2020, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
31 H 4 AmiE months (2019: Nil).
B3EAEHE

5 (2019 4« 4 )~
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 88 (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SRERREAEREIR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€ )]
(e) LZXEAHERK (e) Rescheduled advances
2020 2019
fEday e | 1% = Sk diEE
Eath E
% of gross % of gross
S5 advances to S| advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
KEHF P EHFH Rescheduled
(EfREER advances to
T igTHAAR M 3 (@ customers net
ZEFK G EY) of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 90,110 0.03% 317,854 0.12%
MEHERT S Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
ZERBWHBRA renegotiated between the bank and borrowers because of deterioration in the
S ol 4 AT A0 HA financial position of the borrower or of the inability of the borrower to meet the
B MR TEL original repayment schedule, and the revised repayment terms, either of interest
KPR HEEE or the repayment period, are “non-commercial” to the Group. Rescheduled
K EE G E advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the
ZEFO Mz ER revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than three
EEET Y B R months”.
(B R
FHARR )8 I s 2
T o (ERT RG]
%2 K EHEK
A AR 3 {lE
A AIEREE M@
EREE 3 WA 2 &
%/XJ W °
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

() EFERETE

() 7 3 5 2

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

PR
TN EE The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
EARBEE AT based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
ST H HKMA return of loans and advances.
TENBTS
HE A BH &R R
BHRE2ER
WRAVE RS
4R -
2020
EFREE _ ERIE_R
ZESE  BENE e e
ZFER4ES % Covered BORE ARG FAE R
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment Impairment
advances to or other or HA allowances- allowances-
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 Stage 1 and 2
ERTT ERTT ERTT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEEBIH & Loans for use in Hong Kong
T REaRicE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VEESE - Property development 27,990,244 16.02% - - - 165,523
- VA - Property investment 26,111,852 71.22% - 3,544 - 111,870
- SRisE - Financial concerns 17,617,652 8.21% - 18,168 - 37,490
- REERARL - Stockbrokers 373,590 100.00% - - - 40
- SR TR - Wholesale and retail trade 11,124,157 62.56% 248,681 1,523,638 88,849 65,935
- BhEE - Manufacturing 8,184,730 33.43% 135,339 141,356 108,271 61,927
- g S - Transport and transport
equipment 4,840,456 4.95% - - - 15,232
- (R EEy - Recreational activities 2,008 40.93% - - - 3
- TR - Information technology 862,037 4.51% - - - 11,656
- Hith - Others 20,104,284 60.77% - 3,124 - 61,619
{EA Individuals
- e EE AR - Loans for the purchase of
A EERE flats in Home
SN E R Ownership Scheme,
T2 &R Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 235,082 99.88% 95 1,258 - 84
- WEHM P - Loans for purchase of
EBK other residential
properties 11,218,032 99.75% 1,457 48,360 - 7,831
- EHFEX - Credit card advances 487 0.00% - - - 58
- HAth - Others 21,851,449 93.19% 948 149,907 812 27,441
AT B Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 150,516,060 52.41% 386,520 1,889,355 197,932 566,709
ORI Trade finance 7,777,808 24.82% 317,606 317,606 137,727 25,255
TEEHRLIY MR £k Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 121,428,703 45.57% 1,688,656 1,528,925 1,366,803 733,374
Gross advances to
s | customers 279,722,571 48.67% 2,392,782 3,735,886 1,702,462 1,325,338
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

P E R
(&)

FERAEERZ S
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H PR

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Wholesale and retail trade
- Manufacturing
- Transport and transport

equipment

- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties

- Credit card advances

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong
Kong
Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong
Kong

Gross advances to
customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2019
N BRI
AR ) PesE
ZHEt FrEDNHE PR B2
KA % Covered B RAE R Impairment
Gross by collateral Classified Impairment allowances-
advances to or other or HIHA allowances- Stage 1 and
customers security impaired Overdue Stage 3 2
AT BT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
21,391,495 10.37% - 246,968 - 119,059
23,852,305 65.23% 9,891 28,565 898 208,599
13,199,323 7.19% - - - 36,104
190,593 100.00% - - - 24
11,420,922 54.76% 22,367 12,133 14,209 67,008
14,999,257 14.12% 198,130 5,505 164,112 58,264
3,428,490 15.65% - - - 27,853
2,550 34.29% - - - 8
2,467,905 1.68% - - - 13,143
20,356,221 55.27% 1,515 10,333 - 86,929
201,928 99.58% 195 3,367 - 66
11,158,468 99.66% 8,427 95,164 - 4,067
654 0.00% - - - 37
20,082,698 91.67% 4,774 215,051 300 26,991
142,752,809 48.23% 245,299 617,086 179,519 648,152
10,160,418 18.24% 3,790 3,790 3,790 42,979
110,190,005 40.01% 1,520,492 1,651,901 1,132,324 700,929
263,103,232 43.63% 1,769,581 2,272,777 1,315,633 1,392,060
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement,
and classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Wholesale and retail trade
- Manufacturing
- Transport and transport equipment
- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of flats in
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

- Credit card advances

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong Kong
Trade finance
Loans for use outside Hong Kong

Gross advances to customers

121

2020 2019
MR E SR E
e SR Ty
S RO Hie SRE B
K Classified or JREHERE  Classified or
~ New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
AT AT AT T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
79,244 - 98,799 -
93,256 640 193,050 -
30,210 - 24,534 -
40 - 24 -
126,803 - 41,863 25,000
129,194 1,179 180,325 267,702
6,205 - 16,427 -
- - 8 -
5,732 - 11,188 -
32,598 - 45,922 54,749
54 - 27 -
5,484 - 1,688 -
21 - 38 -
18,838 211 17,478 1,798
527,679 2,030 631,371 349,249
154,780 - 39,187 60,653
1,002,395 1,137,495 1,522,544 860,800
1,684,854 1,139,525 2,193,102 1,270,702
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) $BE R HAMEETR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
) ZEEERERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
(i) F2z b 78 & 35 oy (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
Bz PER
“aER
THIRERZE P The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B & locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
I 5 M R R B8 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
T F T from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
TEM - LB R
JEPREERS N -
EEPERZ
¥ Or A FTAE AL
Bl 5 AT AR M
ATE - B
B RN
ZPTEH, -
e Gross advances to customers
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
T Hong Kong 177,130,215 166,065,160
o [g7] AT HE Mainland of China 87,480,107 80,923,274
HAh Others 15,112,249 16,114,798
279,722,571 263,103,232
MEEER Impairment allowances — stage 1 and
YRERIESE 2 in respect of the gross advances
—RE_ to customers
B R
{E#H 2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE: Hong Kong 653,261 658,245
o BRI P Mainland of China 550,306 544,527
HA Others 121,771 189,288
1,325,338 1,392,060
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SRERREAEREIR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€ )]
) EESERETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) 27 b P I 3 oy (il) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
Bz E A
“aE (E)
WHIERK Overdue advances
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Hong Kong 1,940,582 773,334
o [e7] AT Mainland of China 1,786,220 1,214,302
HA Others 9,084 285,141
3,735,886 2,272,777
FRAEHAERK Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in
1EE=R respect of the overdue advances
BZRE
Bl 2020 2019
BT HERETT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
i Hong Kong 287,554 243,516
o [5] A H, Mainland of China 1,060,965 559,040
1,348,519 802,556
FAHIERR Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2
{EE—R in respect of the overdue advances
PR
ZRE%E
# 2020 2019
BT BHETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHHE Hong Kong 33,057 13,268
o [ Y Mainland of China 7,252 8,332
oAl Others 15 3,655
40,324 25,255
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) SRERREAEREIR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€ )]
) ZEEERERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) F2z Hb B & 55 oy (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
BZEPFERK
HaEa ()
eSS EER Classified or impaired advances
EERK
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
&k Hong Kong 539,116 529,818
B Y HE Mainland of China 1,850,893 1,239,763
Hph Others 2,773 -
2,392,782 1,769,581
mRESE Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in
HRES respect of the classified or impaired
FIEE= advances
FEER 2K
EXHE 2020 2019
BETIT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE: Hong Kong 297,395 444,119
o [57] AT -, Mainland of China 1,405,067 871,514
1,702,462 1,315,633
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) WEEE (C) Repossessed assets
REN - KEHEEE During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
S S AT (U ] security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
B R T LA A summarised as follows:

12 A 31 HEFAME
o B R (A

Rt
2020 2019
BT ST T
HK$°000 HK$'000
Y Commercial properties 1,372 -
FEYFE Residential properties 1,683 10,852
3,055 10,852
KEEF 2020 F 12 The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H 31 HEFAERIE December 2020 amounted to HK$26,151,000 (2019: HK$20,367,000). The
GE AL E R repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired
26,151,000 572019 access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
A k2 20,367,000 concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
7T c EHEEALER
28 3 I S R
B B 1% 1 HE Y ) 5%
(anim AR T
B3E F H R A R
gz 7 HUS) i
A8 RN B {5 75
1T B RRR -
& (O] B E Y B B When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
BE I F BN R consider the following alternatives:
EEREE T
FIT5 AR
- PHEL (R - adjusting the selling prices
- EERIEE O - selling the loans together with the assets
- ZHHEREA - arranging loan restructuring
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) TESRTT B Efih Rl (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
BHIEEER R
N BAERTT R H A The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
4 A i AR 0 IR a5 other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31
{5 B 2 &8k K 17 December by rating agency designation.
At 12 H 31 HEEEE
GRtERE Z BYAR M -
2020
A3 DT
Aaa & A3 Lower fREIPAR qEzt
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BETT BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PR T Central banks 17,678,912 - - 17,678,912
AT R HoAth Rl Banks and other
financial
institutions 27,777,302 4,300,552 8,349,580 40,427,434
45,456,214 4,300,552 8,349,580 58,106,346
2019
A3 LLF
Aaa £ A3 Lower AR Y
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
HET T T BT BRTL
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
LR T Central banks 20,596,585 - - 20,596,585
AT R EoAtr R A Banks and other
financial
institutions 13,910,588 10,128,538 6,506,121 30,545,247
34,507,173 10,128,538 6,506,121 51,141,832
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) TESRTT B Efih Rl (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
HEEVEL AR R K (continued)
(&)
TR ABTERIT R A The following tables present an analysis of overdue or credit-impaired balances and
SRIEEN A E placements with banks and other financial institutions as at 31 December by rating
FH R AE 2 &85 B B A7 K agency designation.
12 5 31 Btk
TSP -
2020
A3 DIF
Aaa & A3 Lower JESPAR qazt
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BT ABETIT  BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
HRAT R H At R Banks and other
financial
institutions - - 75,380 75,380
- - 75,380 75,380
2019
A3 DI
Aaa % A3 Lower AR Hest
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
#RAT R HoAth Rl Banks and other
financial
institutions - - 70,768 70,768
- - 70,768 70,768
2020 2019
BETT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT R T R E A 45 Impairment allowances — Stage 1 and 2 in
MR 45 6 R AR E respect of the balances and placements with
BRI PR R banks and other financial institutions
EE 1,977 824
RAESRAT R LM< Rl Impairment allowances — Stage 3 in respect
MR &S i R T3 E of the balances and placements with banks
5= JRAE and other financial institutions 75,380 70,768
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MR (8
4. TRERER ()

4.1 FEER (8

(E) EHES REFE

THRBUS
7 2 s 2 R A
SRR - (EARSH T3P

RS

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

ERAEIIEILT > Al sk

1T NHIEHER R -
DI ESE(Est AR At fair value through
fir L2 other
comprehensive
income
DB ATEST B At amortised cost
DN E®(LET AR At fair value through
% profit or loss
gt Total
DI EE(EEF A Atfair value through
ESles other
comprehensive
income
DL SR A ER 2 At amortised cost
DA REE LA A3 Atfair value through
% profit or loss

Hast

Total

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

2020

A3 DT
Aal & Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower PR fast
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT AT BETIT  ENTT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5,442,141 130,056,037
- - 1,884,988 - - 1,884,988
- 6,497,759 - - - 6,497,759
6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5,442,141 138,438,784

2019

A3 DUF
Aal F& Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower ERT AR 4t
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
T BT BT OEMTT BT OEMTR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
7,918,889 45,664,815 73,876,190 10,929,257 4,472,839 142,861,990
- - 2,562,564 - - 2,562,564
- 6,662,582 - - - 6,662,582
7,918,889 52,327,397 76,438,754 10,929,257 4,472,839 152,087,136
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MR (8
4. TRERER ()

4.1 FEER (8
(E) EHES REFE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and certificates of deposit
neither overdue nor credit-impaired as at 31 December by issue rating. In the absence
of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

€:-))
TR R IEEEHEE A
TAE 2 B EE 0 AT
FEE 12 H 31 Hi%
BTEVAR 53T - (R I
BTRRRAIET A
TR T NIVEEA R
£,
PIAREEEEEF AR At fair value through
2k other
comprehensive
income
DR AR At amortised cost
AR EE{EEFAIE At fair value through
= profit or loss
DA RESE(EE A At fair value through
e Eilies other
comprehensive
income
IOR: 32D N (L At amortised cost
At fair value through

DL seESLE AR

s

profit or loss

2020

A3 DT
Aal & Aa3 A1 Z A3 Lower FERTR fast
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BETT BETT BETIT AT BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
6,693,660 32,812,662 73,128,592 11,978,982 5,442,141 130,056,037
- - 1,884,988 - - 1,884,988
- 6,497,759 - - - 6,497,759
6,693,660 39,310,421 75,013,580 11,978,982 5,442,141 138,438,784

2019

A3 DIF
Aal E Aa3 A1 = A3 Lower HESTAR 4zt
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
ey o W AT AT AT T T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
7,918,889 45,664,815 73,876,190 10,929,257 4,472,839 142,861,990
- - 2,562,564 - - 2,562,564
- 6,662,582 - - - 6,662,582
7,918,889 52,327,397 76,438,754 10,929,257 4,472,839 152,087,136
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MR (8
4. TRERER ()

4.1 FEER (8

(E) EHES REFE

(8

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

TR R 5 R 2
B s 2 B TRY
BT - AR SR TTRV AR
HIBEDLT Al ddfT
ANHIEFR S -

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of credit-impaired or overdue debt securities

by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the
issuers are reported.

DA e st AR
it &2 T U 28 2 £
s

Her : Ret B EEE

LI el E A BET A
it < T U 28 2
R

Hor s BaEtiE

Debt securities
at fair value
through other

comprehensive

income

Of which
accumulated
impairment
allowances

Debt securities at
fair value
through other
comprehensive
income

Of which
accumulated
impairment
allowances

2020
FRTEME Hr:
Carrying values Rt RE £
Of which

A3 DIF accumulated
Aal & Aa3 A1 Z A3 Lower SESEAR gzt  impairment
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BT AT BT BT BETT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
- - - - - - 181,024

- - - - 181,024 181,024

2019
IR Horp s
Carrying values BRI E A
Of which

A3 DI accumulated
Aal ¥ Aa3 A1 ¥ A3 Lower SESEAR AEs impairment
Aaa Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BECTIL BT BT BRI BRI BRI BN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - - - - - 181,868

- - - - 181,868 181,868
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(E) BB HENETE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
€:-))
#2020 £ 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2020, there were no impaired or overdue certificates of deposit (2019:
H > 9HB{EEESE Nil).

ke (2019 48 14 )-
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MssRitsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRRRER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 R (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)

F o B AR
LH AP IR H It 22 el
HArEht - SEHE
LY -

REEEE RS T4
i 2B % EE R E
H > BRI
EEHEFHE -
EERIHE TH - A
EEEHER(ERTTE
Al R SR A R B B
TAE > RIEEHTEOR
B REUE VTR -
IsEAE & B P
e R ) 1 G
EFEYE > RIS TR
REEREFARES
b - BEeEEz
BT FEEY
IR PR > BE
T FRE LK
B RS IR LR
B IR RET AL
B » S AR R
WERIRIENE > DAORIE
IRTEEZE- 5
FE2020 55 — T &
BB ARG
TE A BRI AR
T ERSNESE > 2
=F it 2019 J 1K 95 25
TREHME R ~
Wit E - RERE
HATE AT R LRy
TR

(F) 2019 FE AR TR & (F) The impact of COVID-19 on credit risk

EERRHZE

A JE 2019 75 R 9% 3 In response to the COVID-19 pandemic which spread across the world, the Group
I EAE ZEREE » actively facilitated the relief measures rolled out by the Central People's Government
REEEEEE T R and the Government of the HKSAR during the pandemic and assisted customers
o &g N R BN affected by the pandemic. Please refer to Business Review of Additional Information
T A BT BT for brief explanations of the Group's relief measures.

eI AP RS - 175

Bz ER BN

The Group continues to manage its business operations during the pandemic, and
closely monitor and reduce the impact of the pandemic on customers. For loans and
advances, the Group comprehensively strengthens and enhances pre-approval and
post-lending risk management practice, adopts appropriate measures in response to
the latest economic conditions, strengthens portfolio and customer level monitoring and
communications with borrowers in order to have better understanding on changes in
creditworthiness of borrowers in a more timely manner. For industries that are more
vulnerable to the pandemic, the Group will strengthen portfolio review, pay special
attention to the impact of the pandemic on the operation and financial status of these
borrowers, perform risk assessment in a timely manner, and take instant risk mitigation
measures to safeguard the Bank's interest. In the first and second quarter of 2020, the
Group included an additional scenario in regular stress tests to assess the potential
impact of the pandemic on credit risk, risk-weighted assets, impairment allowances and
capital adequacy ratio.
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEEE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(F) 2019 FE AR TR & (F) The impact of COVID-19 on credit risk (continued)
EEERZE
€ )
ETEEA(E AR SR For expected credit loss model, the Group updates the forecasts of macroeconomic
i REEGEFE factors and review the probability of economic scenarios on a quarterly basis. Relevant
W RSO R ZTH M economic forecasts have been updated to the expected credit loss model in response
DUR B & 5 to the latest economic environment and outlook. The management considered that
o R EEH K there are still uncertainties in the economic outlook under the pandemic and prudential
B B e B2 B A probability weights on each economic scenario have been maintained to reflect the
EORTEH - BT IEE relevant situation.
FEEE R O R
AR TEENE: -
]lwtiz it Ve G RE
SR DU
FHEATEM
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MBI (&)
4. SRERREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TEEE 4.2 Market risk

55 [ 2 15 [N <5 il v 45
{EE (BRESR ~ MR - e (H
%~ PR IR
BRI ~ I ~ BESERIPE
n B B B LT T AE
SEARTEEIT YIRS - AR
I R L 2 - Y 7 55 S B
i 0 T EE b B SR Y P
(LI

R e HAE - AR
A 552 [ B L o B 2 D <
TSRS » [RIESEEY
JRE iz " L o) FEE A fo 7 B
TB AMEHE BT
AIREE AR > (e
TR R SRR -

A5 [ L B 3
ERFAVEH TSR &
EHLREETEEE
HZRE mEEEASMN
i R RE B AT - &% =]
i > B HI - B
rEAEHEBEEA
BIET HHEHETT 81T
B2 2R 5 ] T 45 e R O
DURE B B R A IR BT
L M HECREE AR A By
T 355 J e 34 22 1 45 7 252
KA - B REE L -
H I E A A RIRED
SRERY b IR TR
At 7 FY A R 48 2 S 1 1=
JEEHA B ERTEE
R R AE - 75 RIS ) =5 e
EHA RS- FREPED
SR IR R R R
B ds YT 5 e B IR
FEETIEN » MEH AR

Ho e

T B AR -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury
business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the basis
of a well-established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk.
The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to perform
their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and compliance of
management policies and limits of the Group, to ensure that the aggregate and individual
market risks are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to monitor the
risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and loss reports
submitted to Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excess will be reported to
Senior Management at once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets up independent risk
monitoring teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

42 HBEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

KEEFH R E TSRS The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
T R PRZE - F A ~ 51 control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but not limited to VAR (Value-
B~ BE R R 47 ) T 45 at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point
fg - F SRR SIS AR EE Value). To meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are classified
ELFEERPE RS E ~ 1k into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
FEEE ~ WUOZE ~ BRTHIE Management Committee or Senior Management respectively. Treasury business units are
DR BRI S5 ( L EL(E required to conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and limits.

fE) 5 - LR RFEEEA
FRBE & AR S o By
V{4 - o B bR E
HEEE HEAREH
ZEHNSEEERAE
#iA > B EEALAIER A
1 T 455 L g 5 B AR 481
R B ETS -

(A) BB (A) VAR

REEEBRH EEE = The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
FE—f% T o Management Committee and Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group
EEEEEEZEE adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
eilsEEHE A B and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
& o REERHY— Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
RS (EE T A > limit of the Group and the Bank.

IR SRS - DL

2 S S

BRSIE > 51H99%

BEKETRAKRE

FHHINASEE G K

ASRATHY R E - A
BOE AR EERIASRT
e\ (RS -

135



) NCB #:f %% 4kt

MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4, SRRREE (8) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

42 HBEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) ERxE (&) (A) VAR (continued)
N FE AN £ EH— The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure’ of the Group.
i T 35 Jeil B 15 B Y
JEBE " -
12/ 31 e £ g
&3 H e {EEE EeEE  PeRE
At Minimum for Maximum for Average for
Year |31 December the year the year the year
AT BT BETT O BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
S E T i 2 e (R VAR for all market risk 2020 4,264 1,451 5,127 3,921
2019 1,741 897 2,941 1,584
PR E\f 2 JR s {E VAR for foreign exchange risk 2020 4,126 163 4,829 3,693
2019 169 90 1,601 420
T2 R > e\ (B VAR for interest rate risk 2020 1,056 611 2,506 1,472
2019 1,614 762 2,867 1,442
P U > R VAR for commodity risk 2020 - - 1,589 615
2019 570 - 908 489
5 Note:
1R G HE 4 R i A S 1. Structural positions have been excluded.

b e -
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MR (8
4. TRERER ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TEER (#)
(A) EBxE (2D

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

e 228 JE e (L 2 R T
T & B g iy — IHE
e BAEHRE
PRt - B

- PR EE 52 55
A5 5T R KB B
REEB KA T
REHHERAYIEM -
HIE — L R U 1
o

- —RFEPAHIRETR
Tk B AT A T
HELE—H
WNEBSE - &
TE 1 5% o w0 BE 58
EedUn
It H AT T 5 R B
FERRIKHT > FTRE
FAE— KA H
RESiEEs P
HUE

REES - EHRA
99% B (AP
BIR A 5 B AE It
B {5 K LLAN B
G HEAIRTE 5 B
K

JE Bz (B 2 DLE 2
I [ 465 o I Y B
BfEtREE > N
BEAE A — TE S Bk
2 T 1R B A HY Ja

b -

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in the context of
its limitations. For example:

— the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;

— the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of severe
illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all
positions fully;

— the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

— VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.
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MR (8
4. TRERER ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TR (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) HiE (&) (A) VAR (continued)
KEETES T fFRE The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
b (E ety IR - to assess and manage the market risk not covered by VAR. The market risk stress

L - HlE T B TH)
5 B R PR BE DR
il A0 2L Bz (8 R
REHZERT SRR -
1 35 Ja bz R 7 |0 5k
B Z A (5 b
EV- TR (E
YRR MR BAR:
B S SRRV
Parin

(B) SMEEER

AEFNEERA
ESETEET =T
RARBEEXESR
W o RoTEIRO MRS
HRAE R FF AL AT $%2
K> ALEER
BaRPRER ( BIANEEE K
JE\R B R ER ) 15 Ryl
ETH - I Ak
BITH W[ —
B EERAR
FHC » A A A
PEEEY (BIAISNE
W) BN EE
4 {5 P E AR Y S E
Jefz

(B)

testing includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors with various degrees of
severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events.

Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly the
HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the
Group is managed at an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are
used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap
between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities.
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4. TRERER ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEEE (#)
(B) FMEMRER (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)

NRYI A S E AN
HEXR S - JFHER

2 B &Rt A R

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising from
trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

A 2 E AN
FE IR RREE
BHINEBN 2 BE
B FENIEHRIE R
2020
BRTTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAthyhes AN
ET Other Total
us AR® foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 104,828,483 152,426,161 23,541,049 280,795,693
HEAaE Spot liabilities (102,885,199) (147,965,798) (15,038,893) (265,889,890)
BHIE A Forward purchases 34,429,022 16,698,101 5,155,560 56,282,683
EHE S Forward sales (34,703,679) (19,421,336) (13,400,132) (67,525,147)
ERFEE Net long position 1,668,627 1,737,128 257,584 3,663,339
sERE M E R TR Net structural position 9,436,650 14,613,792 - 24,050,442
2019
BT CEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAh o SNEELEER
e Bt Other Total
us ANE#E EUR foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi Dollars currencies currencies
IRE&EE Spot assets 95,831,319 135,879,395 8,982,786 13,605,445 254,298,945
REAE Spot liabilities (108,848,125)  (123,698,337) (7,002,592) (10,322,376) (249,871,430)
HEAE A Forward purchases 31,027,006 8,163,164 480,373 2,304,468 41,975,011
EEAE Forward sales (18,392,067) (18,418,780) (2,705,777) (5,506,334) (45,022,958)
(%) /&% 5%  Net (short)/long position (381,867) 1,925,442 (245,210) 81,203 1,379,568
SEREME AR FEE Net structural position 9,437,210 12,987,685 - - 22,424,895
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I EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEER (8
(C) FIZE bz

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk

SRAT R =R el b 2
FERFISEK A - E
B UIR A E 2

HEGRITRE W S
LR E ERZ R
AR - A B Y
FRAT R I 2 el B R
&+ SR E S
R - 4ERran
B iIESE

- IR EHURRER 1
b - HAEAM
FRINEEH A
I 1] R B
AT A s
B P 2E 2B Y R
B o =R BN R
1l b AV A2 FE A
A B AR
IREE RS2 E)
SEA— B R
T R A Sz 2 2R
P17 R ) =k
FEMREAR
FIGEATEER) 5

SR AR
ENEERZ T b=
EERE 2%
FENI R A&
B T RE &
T [F—E T EK
HARS DAK [F A9
FEgL s K

- SRR - FRRYA
RUIELTAE TR
WA AR
SMEEFTEE A
HEEENTR
5 [RE AT 5 SO B
BRI K R
HRFTE] S L b T
R B — 2
53 By B Eh b
FE Jee iz e 3 M S
R -

Interest rate risk in Banking Book (“IRRBB”) means the risks to a bank’s earnings and
economic value arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s
asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures in Banking Book are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk in Banking Book from structural
positions are:

- IRR Gapping risk: arising from the changes in the interest rates on assets, liabilities and
off-balance sheet items of different maturities and different repricing tenors. The extent
of gapping risk depends on whether changes to the term structure of interest rates occur
consistently across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by period (non-parallel
risk);

Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same repricing
period;

Option risk: arising from interest rate option derivatives or from optional elements
embedded in an Al's assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, where the Al or its
customer can alter the level and timing of their cash flows. Option risk can be further
characterised into automatic option risk and behavioural option risk.
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4.2 mEER (8
(C) FIEE (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management
in banking book. The Asset and Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight
of interest rate risk in accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management
Policy” approved by Risk Management Committee. Asset and Liability Management
Division is responsible for banking book interest rate risk management. With the
cooperation of the Treasury Division, Asset and Liability Management Division assists the
Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform day-to-day banking book interest
rate risk management. lts roles include, but are not limited to, the formulation of
management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits,
assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and limits,
and submission of banking book interest rate risk management reports to the
Management and Risk Management Committee.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department acts as the independent audit on interest rate risk
in banking book, supervises the related departments to execute the interest rate risk
function according to the policy in order to effectively control the risk. The Group’s Model
Validation Division preforms independent model validation regularly for interest rate risk
in banking book.
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4.2 TBER (8)
(C) FiZEk (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 “Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book” issued by the HKMA in 2018, the Group sets interest rate risk
indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The
Group’s key risk indicators, the Net Interest Income impact and the Economic Value of
Equity impact, reflect the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
income and capital base respectively. The former assesses the impact of interest rate
movement on net interest income as a percentage to the projected net interest income
for the year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic
values as a percentage to the latest capital base. The risk appetites and limits of these
two indicators are set by the Board and Risk Management Committee respectively to
monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk. In addition, the Group
monitors the interest rate risk in banking book through indicators and limits including, but
are not limited to, interest rate sensitivity gap limits, basis risk, duration and price value
of a basis point (“PVBP”).
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4.2 TgEM (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEERE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

R 2 ] 1 3 T The Group’s indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are approved by
FEIEFIR S > = the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and Chief
{4k > 57 A1 Financial Officer respectively. Risk-taking business units are required to conduct their
EHEEG - BEA business within the banking book interest rate risk limits. In addition, risk mitigation
BEHEEEY M measures including, but not limited to, the use of interest rate derivatives, adjustment of
TEAERAE A - K YESR portfolio duration, etc. as approved by ALCO, are effectively used to mitigate the IRRBB.
1T HR A3 g 1Y 2% Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant
TS B AL A EAEF] departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
R J g 5 12 R 4H & assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current
BB risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on banking book interest rate risk noted
EEEREHKEE during the risk assessment process will be submitted to Risk Management Committee
EHAEZEEX for approval.

AR ERERE T A

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses and
stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from the
optionality of savings deposits.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TgEM (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIRmbx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

B H] 3 T The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
SIRE WS I N il interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2020, according to the new standard IRRBB
g - #iE 2020 framework of HKMA, the Group assesses the impact of changes in the Group’s net
F12 A3 H & interest income (“ANII”) and economic value (“AEVE”) respectively under 6 interest rate
BEESHMEHE shock scenarios, in which optionality and behavioural assumptions of certain products
SR 1T HE A1) 2= will also be estimated in the exposure measurement. The 6 interest rate shock scenarios
FEAEEHEZEEEK BT include: (1) Parallel up; (2) Parallel down; (3) Steepener; (4) Flattener; (5) Short rates
f57E 6 {EFREE up; and (6) Short rates down.
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4.2 TBER (8)
(C) FIZEkx (&)

TEat BB AR When calculating AEVE, commercial margins and other spread components are included
RS M SRR in the cash flows and discounted by the risk-free rates. The key behavioural assumptions
YT 5L & R SE A include:

R EAMAEIEE

A DA J e A1

ST EP T

FT R s

(1) =y #T M E (1) Partofthe current account and savings account deposits (“CASA”) in HKD and USD
L E R EE TR are classified into core stable deposit based on historical data which would be
& DU S B8 % assigned a longer interest rate sensitive tenor while the interest rate sensitive tenor
ZOBEERILE of other non-maturity deposits is considered as “Next day”. As at 31 December
FH & R BURL AR 2020, the average interest rate sensitive tenors of HKD and USD CASA is 1.65
> HepfmsEHH months and 1.22 months, and the longest interest rate sensitive tenor is 3 months.
SR 22 RN A A
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2020412 431>
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

& -

(2) BIRHEEATEE (2) For retail term deposits and retail fixed rate loans subject to early redemption
=] fE H 4 5 KSR without significant penalty, early redemption rates are calculated under different
HYZE & 7 BAFRCE portfolios.

TE BB g s R &

SHEHITEATIEE 3

SEEEEENEG: Methods of aggregation across currencies strictly follow the IRRBB Standardised

RS REENE
FIERAE(LAEZR - HU 6
EFREREFT
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Framework. The aggregate EVE losses across all applicable currencies are calculated
as the maximum loss across the six interest rate shock scenarios.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TiEEE (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
2020
LEEEPE HFE U A S
AEVE ANII
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT Parallel up 3,739,133 (633,076)
TR Parallel down 40,229 633,461
R Steepener 865,250 A (NIA)
kA Flattener 421,928 A (N/A)
KR LTt Short rate up 1,244,498 NIEA(NIA)
FR TR Short rate down 52,683 A F (NJA)
B Maximum 3,739,133 633,461
2019
OB EERE FA S A )
AEVE ANII
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SEATRE L Parallel up 1,773,666 (745,846)
SEATEE Parallel down 266,548 746,309
AR Steepener 391,746 A (NIA)
kA Flattener 379,359 A (N/A)
R LTt Short rate up 935,369 NI (N/A)
FR T Short rate down 531,202 A F (NIA)
BE Maximum 1,773,666 746,309
i FERATYE
Remarks: Positive values indicate losses under the alternative scenarios.
#2020 &£ 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2020, the net interest income impact for all currencies is HK$633
H » FEFZR 4R T million (2019: HK$746 million) under the interest rate parallel down scenario. The
HTERT > A& maximum negative impact on AEVE is 3,739 million (2019: HK$1,774 million) under the
N BLUL A B interest rate parallel up scenario. Compared with 31 December 2019, the Group’s net
ARk 6.33 (BT interest income impact for all currencies is dropped by 113 million and maximum
(2019£|£‘;‘%¢1§‘7 46 negative impact on AEVE is increased by 1,965 million with investment in fixed rate
fBor) - &REEN bond
BR é THI 5 B 3% 4
TR B 48 47

B EOREER
R 37.39 1
gt (2019 £ i%m
17.74 55T ) -
2019 £ 12 [ 31 El
HEE > AR
WA E R 1.13
i e S A8 B 1 o
K& &
19.65 & » LRl
HERRS
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Mg MtEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4.2 TBER (8)

(C) FIEEE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

R T A The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
W12 H 31 H 2 &#E as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
B 15 R A ) 2 JE amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.
bR o TN LRI

EYIRERE AR

Wz & L EET B
HEAECEIEAE (A
FERE) 8-

HE
A e B A U BRAT B LA
HetBE S ER
HESRIT R E i — 2+ =
1 EIH 2 SE I
DR EE( L AR SREE
{TheR T A
BRI AR
ERE
- DA fEg M Est AR 2
e
- DeRp AR B
Bk
Yk ~ 250 Rkt
Bt (BEEIERITRE )

HEM

2020
—= = FatR
—EARN =fEH +=@EA —ZHE  AEME Non-
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over interest qEt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETIL BT BT BT BT BRTT BN
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 52,778,399 - - - - 5,394,911 58,173,310
Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 337,676 218,303 - - - 555,979
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,498,520 3,874,604 17,540,189 - - - 22,913,313
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,031,063 1,031,063
Advances and other accounts 193,234,131 35,384,885 31,891,916 14,600,174 1,974,027 - 277,085,133
Financial investments
- At fair value through other
comprehensive income 15,383,276 28,527,507 28,514,033 55,862,458 1,768,763 54,109 130,110,146
- At amortised cost - - 2,779,095 - - - 2,779,095
Investment properties - - - - - 341,080 341,080
Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 8,220,738 8,220,738
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) - - - - - 4,488,304 4,488,304
Total assets 262,894,326 68,124,672 80,943,536 70,462,632 3,742,790 19,530,205 505,698,161
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2020

—= = FatR

—BAA =fEH +=@EA —ZEAE  BEFME Non-
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over interest qExt
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AT BT BMTT BT B%T ¥t BN
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
14,010,156 12,007,788 4,568,817 - - 2,477,555 33,064,316
2,159,973 2,576,898 1,914,116 - - - 6,650,987
- - - - - 1,882,953 1,882,953
181,768,498 67,449,733 76,009,321 11,339,764 95,348 14,967,264 351,629,928
- 9,664,888 4,682,608 9,666,939 - - 24,014,435
3,157,297 3,719,697 5,855,254 1,418,081 22,155 5,838,947 20,011,431
- - - - 5,416,390 - 5,416,390
201,095,924 95,419,004 93,030,116 22,424,784 5,533,893 25,166,719 442,670,440
61,798,402 (27,294,332) (12,086,580) 48,037,848 (1,791,103) (5,636,514) 63,027,721
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 g (%) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIRmpx (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
2019
—F =%
—(EAN ={EH +ZfEAH —ZhF HAELLE et
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over Non- interest 4=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

HEBETIT AETIT HHETIT HHETIT HHETIT HHETIT HBETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HE Assets
[EEAFIR 4 R AR R TT e HoAth 4@ Cash and balances with banks
R4S ER and other financial institutions 35,513,372 - - - - 5,813,889 41,327,261
HEHRIT R H M &Rt —Z% 1+ Placements with banks and other
{6 B N EIHE > B BB financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 6,917,705 3,538,642 - - - 10,456,347
NEB LR A &RiEE  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 3,033,958 2,549,381 8,987,958 - - 83,050 14,654,347
AL THE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 589,616 589,616
SR HAMIETE Advances and other accounts 187,111,392 40,417,704 25,006,280 8,389,106 1,488,698 - 262,413,180
BEE Financial investments
- AR EE st AHA 2 - At fair value through other
fheny comprehensive income 16,263,111 28,807,011 46,996,284 48,610,048 2,185,536 31,163 142,893,153
- DUkeRpA TR - At amortised cost - - 1,171,679 2,694,105 - - 3,865,784
B Investment properties - - - - - 355,230 355,230
W ~ 250 R Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 8,602,036 8,602,036
HitrgRE (AERERRIE RIBIER Other assets (including current
THEFE ) and deferred tax assets) - - - - - 4,431,893 4,431,893
R Total assets 241,921,833 78,691,801 85,700,843 59,693,259 3,674,234 19,906,877 489,588,847
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from banks

and other financial institutions
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits from customers
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities)
Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2019

—F =% Rt

—(EAN ={EH +ZfEAH —ZhF HELLE Non-
Upto 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over interest Y=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BT BT T BT T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
15,079,279 10,069,439 3,758,472 - - 2,076,931 30,984,121
3,789,576 913,499 345,484 - - - 5,048,559
- - - - - 587,563 587,563
149,873,210 74,133,540 96,134,192 14,216,178 346,180 11,184,482 345,887,782
330,652 2,154,910 2,863,001 10,122,553 - - 15,471,116
3,265,249 2,103,980 5,696,282 1,024,600 79,755 15,210,662 27,380,528
- - - - 5,438,386 - 5,438,386
172,337,966 89,375,368 108,797,431 25,363,331 5,864,321 29,059,638 430,798,055
69,583,867 (10,683,567) (23,096,588) 34,329,928 (2,190,087) (9,152,761) 58,790,792
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B mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REESER 4.3 Liquidity risk
RENE SRR fEIRT Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
R AR M E S obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk
JESE E M INSETTE] appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs
HAZSTS o MR ERZ under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
IR AR FEZIEE - K cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the lender
EEEER IR EIE of last resort.
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MgsRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 msrgeEkE (8) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of on-
and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to
achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds, in which 44% is retail deposits. To ensure stable and
sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the
core deposit and obtains supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to
different term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios,
the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank
placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in
support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost
to serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the
source of funds and the use of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and
liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem
occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has established intra-group
liquidity risk management guideline to manage the liquidity funding among different entities
within the Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy
to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collateral, intra-
day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and has
formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk
management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RMC, the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its
oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in accordance
with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Asset and Liability Management Division is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to
assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (\LCR”), net stable funding ratio (“NSFR”), loan-to-
deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO”), liquidity buffer asset portfolio
and depositor concentration limit. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the
Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs a liquidity stress test
(including institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis) at least on monthly
basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, the
Assets and Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data and the preparation
for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.
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Mg MtEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2016, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In cash
flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-
balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items (such
as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual maturity
date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group
establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30-day maximum cumulative net cash
outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group has
sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to achieve the objective of
continuing operation. As at 31 December 2020, before taking the cash inflow through the
sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank’s 30-day cumulative
cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to HK$5,893,712,000 (2019:
HK$4,670,594,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit requirements.
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Mg MtEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

FEFEE iz R 7 A
Arh o AEEROLTH
Setk - fiseks
PHEER > Siffak
HREGH SR
Bifetk > MM —EE
ERE AL - PASHE A
SEE T RIS R BN
SR TR SAE
77 o BRI R R REE
BEEER - #HEX
R EEFRZREE
SR S L 2 1 ]
HYSUAR A Z R HUR
BRI L P s B
LS - FISEHFE R A
BRI IS - 7
2020412 A 31 H &
FEEEL E=TEBIE
FNHREER ER
I FRALEARE
JE(TEE SIS S T HIR A
TR - AN AEEEYE
BEUREOR AR B4R
BN > EPE
N EE RSB RS
EHEEFBHENTE
B~ PO RTT S N EEAL
BRI THITER
YErR - T b FEEE
0% =( 20% - Ik
e TEE R - K
HMNES(E I RFARAHERY A
BLLE o DAHEGRAEEE T
B THEEFER - 1°
2020412 A 31 H &
TR E g (I
nmn ) K
41,405,089,000 It
(2019 4 @ & ¥
61,246,448,000 7T )- &
et SN T R IRIR R
TGS RO TH B TR
&t 5 By B U7 ZEHY IR
- a7 AHRATTE
STE] - R AR A AHRE
HFIIE - EEEE
BB R - HER
STEIEY AR R AR H]
ik

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2020, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or
above to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2020,
the Bank’s liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$41,405,089,000 (2019:
HK$61,246,448,000). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions
to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans
and relevant procedures and responsibility of various departments. The Group tests and
updates the Plan annually to ensure its effectiveness and operational feasibility.
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M HwEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
BN E B LR ERE The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
#2015 1 F 1 Hie4: January 2015 and the NSFR is effective from 1 January 2018. The Group, being classified
Ry (ER1T3E ORENME) as category 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to calculate LCR and NSFR
AN HE > MiEEES on consolidated basis. The Group is required to maintain LCR and NSFR not less than
JFEALERY 201841 H 100%.

1 HHEAE R - AR E
EREE R
A - AR LI ST A AR
ST ATEE R AR
MEELRABEARE
FFEEERA DY 100% -

AR PN A B By maintaining a ratio in excess of minimum regulatory requirements, the LCR seeks to
(/KRS RENMEEZELL ensure that the Group holds adequate liquidity assets to mitigate a short-term liquidity stress
ESHI EESESPE b and the NSFR ensures the Group maintaining sufficient stable funding sources to cover
B 5 T Y A R B their long-term assets.

PEEEST > AR B 80
EoR b fr e E T e 5
HIFEIE & AR LA
RUIHE -

EHSTTETLESY In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
o XS TFERERR additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

HHEEE I (E AR IR
SR T ) B EE U BR MY
A o
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Mg MtEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to Risk Management Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies. On the basis
of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity
management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management processes
independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.

The information of liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio disclosures are
available under “Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information — 1. Liquidity Coverage
Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio” and section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s
website at www.ncb.com.hk.
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A ERFENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRLEREE (8)

4.3 mEESEE (8

(A) ZEBAES
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(A) Maturity analysis
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Assets

Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other
financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Trading
- Debt securities
- Mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss,
non trading
- Others
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
- Advances to customers
- Trade bills
Financial investments
- At fair value through other
comprehensive income
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Atamortised cost
- Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Others
- Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

2020
-7 =
g —ERA =ER +ZER —ZRF AEFME FHEE
On Upto 1t0o3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 H#A fE=t
demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BT BT BTt BT BT B¥Trx
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
27,565,169 30,608,141 - - - - - 58,173,310
- - 337,676 218,303 - - - 555,979
- - 2,739,339 3,758,420 - - - 6,497,759
- 1,498,520 1,135,265 13,781,769 - - - 16,415,554
266,944 98,118 154,500 385,639 125,862 - - 1,031,063
27,085,817 5,688,998 24,194,159 47,302,076 115,168,007 56,624,608 631,106 276,694,771
6 112,788 262,373 15,195 - - - 390,362
- 5,098,969 10,971,693 26,019,602 76,552,439 1,792,106 - 120,434,809
- 1,150,375 4,243,333 3,319,765 907,755 - - 9,621,228
- - - 1,768,208 - - - 1,768,208
- 1,006 - 115,774 - - - 116,780
- - - 894,107 - - - 894,107
- - - - - - 54,109 54,109
- - - - - - 341,080 341,080
- - - - - - 8,220,738 8,220,738
2,694,513 1,261,574 30,083 105,781 365,301 - 31,052 4,488,304
57,612,449 45,518,489 44,068,421 97,684,639 193,119,364 58,416,714 9,278,085 505,698,161
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M= (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) FIEAE 4T (&) (A) Maturity analysis (continued)
2020
- =
B —ERR =EA  +ZER —EEF AR FHEE
On Upto 1to3 3t012 1to5 Over B yat
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total

BETT  BETT BT BT BETRT BTt ARTT  EB%TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000

j=Ti=d Liabilities
TR HA R 72 K. Deposits and balances from banks
4EER and other financial institutions 3,136,326 13,351,254 12,007,919 4,568,817 - - - 33,064,316
ARl EE AJBS 2 $Ri&  Financial liabilities at fair value
& through profit or loss - 2,159,973 2,576,898 1,914,116 - - - 6,650,987
e TR Derivative financial instruments 87,292 374,686 334,686 597,326 487,056 1,907 - 1,882,953
BB Deposits from customers 135,638,027 61,105,318 67,449,562 76,002,051 11,339,622 95,348 - 351,629,928
L TERE S TR Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 139,761 119,247 2,065,633 8,022,045 13,667,749 - - 24,014,435
HAMBETE KR (RfEFE(TFR  Other accounts and provisions
TR IRERRTEAE ) (including current and deferred tax
liabilities) 5,541,771 1,879,592 3,956,498 6,263,966 2,191,071 155,092 23,441 20,011,431
REERA Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 5,416,390 - 5,416,390
A {ERE Total liabilities 144,543,177 78,990,070 88,391,196 97,368,321 27,685,498 5,668,737 23,441 442,670,440
TREE St Net liquidity gap (86,930,728) (33,471,581) (44,322,775) 316,318 165,433,866 52,747,977 9,254,644 63,027,721
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 mEESERE (8
(A) ZEAE ST (8D

=73 Assets
IR E RATSR T R At 4@t Cash and balances with banks
HRETSEER and other financial institutions

TESRAT A SRt —% 1+ Placements with banks and other
{8 5 NEBIHA . E AR financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months
INES BT A B 2 &Ri& % Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) Maturity analysis (continued)

- G - Trading
- (B - Debt securities
- LIS ST AdES 0 - Mandatorily measured at fair
Fldid value through profit or loss,
non trading
- A - Others
- RdneEss - Equity securities
THem TR Derivative financial instruments
SR AR Advances and other accounts
- BPERK - Advances to customers
- HOEE - Trade bills
BREE Financial investments
- DUAES st ARt 2 - Atfair value through other
WS comprehensive income
- (B - Debt securities
- FAGE - Certificates of deposit
- DA TR - Atamortised cost
- EHES - Debt securities
- ke - Certificates of deposit
- Hot - Others
- Ml - Equity securities
EYE Investment properties
VIE - Bh el Properties, plant and equipment
HArERE (EHERERIE FIRIER Other assets (including current
THARE) and deferred tax assets)
HEWH Total assets

2019
—& =%
g —EAN =R +ZER —EAF AFEME O FHEE
On Up to 1t03 3t012 1t05 Over 5 HEA 4=t
demand 1 month months months years years Indefinite Total
AT AT AETT AETT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
25,185,000 16,142,261 - - - - - 41,327,261
- - 6,917,705 3,538,642 - - - 10,456,347
- 2,230,031 1,138,024 3,294,527 - - - 6,662,582
- 519,625 798,985 6,590,105 - - - 7,908,715
- - - - - - 83,050 83,050
253,681 39,863 164,303 64,387 62,154 5,228 - 589,616
23,406,408 6,959,463 16,311,040 50,977,315 111,145,709 51,318,441 277,163 260,395,539
2 299,658 1,417,740 300,241 - - - 2,017,641
- 8,901,448 12,222,634 36,106,293 61,646,059 2,232,465 - 121,108,899
- 1,307,132 4,644,197 12,759,261 3,042,501 - - 21,753,091
- - - 385,784 2,020,340 - - 2,406,124
- 1,011 - 39,854 115,575 - - 156,440
- - - 490,930 812,290 - - 1,303,220
- - - - - - 31,163 31,163
- - - - - - 355,230 355,230
- - - - - - 8,602,036 8,602,036
666,974 3,560,535 27,853 (62,888) 162,837 1,338 75,244 4,431,893
49,512,065 39,961,027 43,642,481 114,484,451 179,007,465 53,557,472 9,423,886 489,588,847
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRLEREE (8)

4.3 mEESERE (8

(A) ZIERHS T (8D

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2019
—& =F
g —EAN =@A +ZEE —EAF AfFbME FHEE
On Up to 1t03 3t0 12 1t05 Over FIHA 4=t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
ARTT BT BT BETIT BNTOT BT B¥TT BETT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
j=Ti=d Liabilities
TR HA R 72 K. Deposits and balances from banks
#E6 and other financial institutions 3,135,046 14,021,165 10,069,438 3,758,472 - - - 30,984,121
ARl EE AJBS 2 $Ri&  Financial liabilities at fair value
& through profit or loss - 3,789,576 913,499 345,484 - - - 5,048,559
e TR Derivative financial instruments 86,597 56,593 171,971 100,310 172,092 - - 587,563
BB Deposits from customers 111,516,860 49,354,429 74,057,087 96,400,034 14,213,192 346,180 - 345,887,782
L TERE S TR Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 330,652 2,155,133 2,862,778 10,122,553 - - 15,471,116
HAMBETE K (RIfEFE(TFR  Other accounts and provisions
TH (including current and deferred tax
RIEERTEE S ) liabilities) 4,888,661 11,877,126 2,358,736 6,210,505 1,961,316 79,755 4,429 27,380,528
%iEamk Subordinated liabilities - - - - - 5,438,386 - 5,438,386
A {ERE Total liabilities 119,627,164 79,429,541 89,725,864 109,677,583 26,469,153 5,864,321 4,429 430,798,055
REE & Net liquidity gap (70,115,099) (39,468,514) (46,083,383) 4,806,868 152,538,312 47,693,151 9,419,457 58,790,792
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) ZIEEE ST (&) (A) Maturity analysis (continued)

At g HEH 5y 8815 The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
J IR CPRATSE (I E8) provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
BRI MBI as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
4l o AREE A as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
R 1 [HEHZE instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as overdue.
B Bl S B Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual maturity unless
SR TR, & the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is reported as
i o BN AR EIE R “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

BT HAE R EE

REZEEPEE

AR 2 oy AR AR

A o HAREHE

B8 53 ATy 4 AR 35 K1
BRI (B
HZAEZHEF
HEERE > AR SRR
WY T ARHEE R
iy o BMTRZE
7E E B A 7] 45
B (AFE) -

¥ e B HA H HHE The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order to
BEss2othE R comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure
G (BRI () does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

A Z AERAR S

e FRH - PfEH R

R IS5 5

HZRFHY -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRLEREE (8)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REESEE (8
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for

non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

2020
—z =
—ERAN =@ ‘@R —ZEHEE HEMLE Fmg
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over HEH ft
1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT B¥TT BT BETa
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 16,498,604 12,024,268 4,577,299 - - - 33,100,171
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 2,160,000 2,577,000 1,914,500 - - - 6,651,500
Deposits from customers 196,887,366 67,954,496 77,757,984 12,341,969 95,705 - 355,037,520
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 274,734 2,105,599 8,593,438 14,730,677 - - 25,704,448
Subordinated liabilities - - 206,191 824,765 6,217,672 - 7,248,628
Other financial liabilities 6,721,793 3,723,043 5,863,079 1,287,821 155,092 22,345 17,773,173
Total financial liabilities 222,542,497 88,384,406 98,912,491 29,185,232 6,468,469 22,345 445,515,440
2019
—F =
—{E#AA =#A +ZEA —ZFAF AFEME REE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over H#A Hast
1 month  months months years  5years Indefinite Total
BT BNTOT BT BT BETor BTt ABNTT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 17,164,124 10,094,531 3,758,196 - - - 31,016,851
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 3,791,500 917,000 350,000 - - - 5,058,500
Deposits from customers 160,919,553 74,366,567 97,547,445 15,694,024 408,382 - 348,935,971
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 331,073 2,165,041 2,901,837 11,265,385 - - 16,663,336
Subordinated liabilities - - 207,140 828,558 6,450,493 - 7,486,191
Other financial liabilities 16,218,685 2,107,455 5,704,523 1,024,600 79,755 4,353 25,139,371
Total financial liabilities 198,424,935 89,650,594 110,469,141 28,812,567 6,938,630 4,353 434,300,220
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M= (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 FsrEeRkE (8E) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) #HEWNBEAH T HT (B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRITHEBESR
(&)

(b) $TETE S (b) Derivative cash flows
i
N T A The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
B 12 A 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DU a5 & 49 5 2 be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
HY R Z &7 will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
BRI F AR A AR or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
SEE TR undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
Bl KTA A fair value.
HAEAEGEH 1T
L T 2R
AHEaNBAERE
A < BRESTY
TAETEMAR
EFIRIN NS
By H M e
BARKIHN G
[EIFER -
IR [E R AR The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
HEEE 4% mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
BT E F AR will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
R T 4R swaps.
ARG E 1T
EEMTHYYE
BE & W R
B -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRLEREE (8)
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(B) HEHEHH 2T
ZRFBEBAER
(8

(b) PTAETEF 4

gt (8)

T EAAESS
B4
Fhe (R

TRURERE RS
B2

T H

4

=
St

A

o
C
=it
EE

P EAAESS
B4
R (A

TR ARG
B2

flTH

o
B

A

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

2020
—% ==
—@HK  ZER B —EAF AFLE
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to 5 Over st
1 month months months years 5 years Total
ARTIT BETRT BETT BETR B¥TrT B¥Tr
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis (93,648) (9,546) (53,811) (122,757) (290) (280,052)
Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis
Total inflow 20,162,296 16,529,023 19,825,166 - 56,516,485
Total outflow (20,446,247) (16,748,791) (20,071,073) - - (57,266,111)
2019
—F =5
—EAR  =EA FSEA —ERF EEUE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 4z
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BT BT BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$O000 HKS$'000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis 168,387 92 (90) (41,534)  (2,172) 124,683
Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis
Total inflow 20,828,220 9,548,509 13,895,141 3,144,846 - 47,416,716
Total outflow (20,886,517) (10,136,847) (14,260,317)(3,133,199) - (48,416,880)
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. RiEfEET (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) #&HNTIEHEH O (B) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

ZRITHARAER

(&
(c) & E & & & /b (c) Off-balance sheet items

HH
EHORYE Loan commitments
H A &£ E P The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2020 £ 12 H 31 at 31 December 2020 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
H [[] % 7 7K 5 other facilities totalled HK$127,569,218,000 (2019: HK$123,699,299,000). Those
A5 & e H Al loan commitments can be drawn within one year.
& 2RI ERT
B HE%e8k
e s
127,569,218,000
TC(2019 4F 1 H&H
123,699,299,000

7LD WEERHUK
BT —E AR

HY

U 75 45 £ Rz oAt Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

M smE

AREEFY 2020 £ Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
12 § 31 H2Z W% 2020 totalled HK$33,002,671,000 (2019: HK$24,500,563,000) are maturing no
5 Or R H At B 75 later than one year.

Tl < BH R BN

33,002,671,000
Tt (2019 4@ g
24,500,563,000
gT) > HEEIAD
At
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Mg MtEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 HHREE 4.4 Capital management
REHEAREHFH The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
B P A o7 B [ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk

JE B AR AR TR Y B A TS
JeIK» [RIH R SR 2K
Kl - HE AR
Z A8 s AR
BARGEE WAL R
FTEEE LAOR R ~ [l
BB AT R MR R P
fhy o

AL I R
—ERHBNEAEHE
SN2 - PR
PRt SR SRy SR %
[EEVEIRS MR R EEA
FERRHIER - BEAR
EHZRGAREEE
BB AT e M - AL
R 5 B B P ik RT3
BTG &HEERIA
BABUE AT

AEEEBEERERH
EBEANE SRR E
ERtERE S IEE IR
S5 L AR HE 45 T
W B AR R BRI D
T FARH FAMNE &
HZRAY— e T 5 i 5
AR - AR (BRIT3E
(AN 55 317C 1
EEE R AR RE
Gt R M 4/ N i 1 2R Y
SRR E AR -

profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

In prior years, the Group adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to
calculate the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and
the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general market risk capital charge for
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the approval from the HKMA,
excluded its structural FX positions pursuant to section 317C of the Banking (Capital) Rules
in the calculation of the market risk capital charge.
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Mg MtEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

/f 2020 £ 1 B 1 H
L - A BRI Ry PR A AR
((E R et A B A
# (M) StEES
AllEt B R A
SRR R A EEK -

AEHEHERAEERE
B EREEATER
A E G E R b Y
T EA TR A
A CEBRERR) 5T HE
EEt EAREE R A
ke

FREEET 2020 FEAEATIR
MW ESE A TE e e (G 12
P& 28 RSB
T TEEEERET
WEYER - 8 AR
ZEHATES D NEEA
7R Sl R P 1 %A 2
PSS ST RA
HE B TR M E RV E R
JEBG T RE BRI NE AN » 7
111 3% T A~ 252 [ e K 3 2
P — SRR ~ fif
— A ARE R R R4
BALER o [\ - AL
JRHE A ALY B A EE R 3%
TETHEIFER > DR
BREFEE L RETA
HYEROE - AEER R
WE B AT e sF il
EEFENEAEH
WBRE - M E R E SRR
B JE gz DA OV 1T E P 2 A
Bt R A R A AL
-

From 1 January 2020, the Group has migrated to adopt standardised (credit risk) (“STC”)
approach and standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital
charge and the market risk capital charge respectively.

The Group continues to adopt the standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method
to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the counterparty and the standardised
(operational risk) (“STO”) approach to calculate the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA’s requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2020. Based on the HKMA'’s guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been established
which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation. The
Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management and periodically
reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.
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M HwEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREH (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)

AN AREEEEHEE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the Board
EEAHE hEEAE for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the implications
EHHZEOERERESE of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return on equity,
EEihf BB risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital
FEORME ~ R o [m13 ~ JE b requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the
fRdT ~ (S FERaR - Bt Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align with its
SR o FE BT E AR business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk, return and
T MEAYRZ AL T TR capital adequacy.

RIRE AT K EATK

W DRI SR AR 4R B

HHTEAT R R E R

HEEHE - ook
JE& > Prf R ~ (Rl ELE

A7 MR R -
(A) BEEB4r o (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

BB EN A A The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the Bank

BRI ($R1T¥% and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
(&4 #HAT) f\A Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with

RIT R EE & B HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

[ E Z i A E]

GHEY - R TR EE T

1] - A7 B AR

et AR QAT & I S

NF D HAREER
I 5 — AT Z
WS AT -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRLEREE (8)

44 BAREE (8

(A) EEBErOERE (&)

BLFEAE & 5T 4 A&
E#E > M EREE
BB RUE S A #lE

4.4 Capital management (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of

consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as follows:

PR I 2 2
BT
2020 2019
HEELEA HAREH BN BN
sy i3 Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
BT AT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R T(EAR Nanyang Commercial Bank
JNH] Trustee Limited 16,746 16,637 16,678 16,561
EAEREEHEARA Kwong Li Nam Investment
G| Agency Limited 4,914 4,561 4,948 4,551
FEVEREESR T (fRH Nanyang Commercial Bank
N) ARAE] (Nominees) Limited 1,441 1,441 1,449 1,449
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREBERE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREH (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(A) BEEE4raER (8) (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)
ML EM B A SR FE The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
SIS T e — of the Bank”.
AT Z M B A
e
#2020 £ 12 H 31 There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
H » s consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
H N EEEEEH December 2020 (2019: Nil).

SESFEHIE . TR
G EAIGS
FlE (2019 £ 45 )-

#2020 £ 12 H 31 Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope
H » JRaEEa] s A of consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
H EFEEAEs consolidation differ as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
#E HIRD B A L E 4%
5 i B f {55 A R
&R 7774 (2019 41
fie) -
(B) EAEER (B) Capital ratio
2020 2019

R RE — 4B A CET1 capital ratio

Btz 12.89% 14.58%
—IREARLLR Tier 1 capital ratio 15.61% 17.99%
SRR Total capital ratio 19.26% 21.73%
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. SRLEREE (8)

4.4 BREHE (8)
(B) ®EALER (4

MREEM EER
b 2 SR 1 HY &5
EERELED L
T

R - S
Bkt
HERTHIGER S

Pt — SR AT
OB
[EEi -GN Ea

B BT A E S
—HEA

HIHRE AR BEE
E{V:

(GREECE
EATERIE AR IH & A
BEERIE S

A HEESERE
RIA S5 R 2
BIFE LAY

A 43 s (HA
FIEER®) #TE
TE AT E A R
AR EL e

— R TR RS
et

BRI E A
BT EE

LR —SE A

BYN—E

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital

ratios is analysed as follows:

CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
instruments

Retained earnings
Disclosed reserves

CET1 capital before regulatory deductions

CET1 capital: regulatory deductions

Valuation adjustments
Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
risk on fair valued liabilities

Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
investment properties)

Regulatory reserve for general banking risks

Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital

CET1 capital

Additional Tier 1 capital

172

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

3,144,517 3,144,517
40,738,381 37,165,269
9,821,320 9,157,646
53,704,218 49,467,432

(118) (39)

(430,257) (58,000)

(2,133) (1,420)
(6,781,431) (6,899,837)
(2,453,479) (2,694,377)
(9,667,418) (9,653,673)
44,036,800 39,813,759
9,314,890 9,314,890
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Mg MtEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BREHE (8)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) ®EALER (4

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
— 4B Tier 1 capital 53,351,690 49,128,649
THREAR B R RS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BEM T HREARTEM Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any
AT AR B Ry k (E related share premium 5,392,907 5,414,796
EEKETAZBERD Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
EEHG G (TR R — reserve for general banking risks eligible for
SRAT B L inclusion in Tier 2 capital 4,020,931 1,697,544
BRI AT L&A Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 9,413,838 7,112,340
TREAR IR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
holEl&a &g A & Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
AN RS - o R g from the revaluation of land and buildings
Y (EF M ASER®) (own-use and investment properties) eligible
EITEE B ELE for inclusion in Tier 2 capital
HY BB EE U 3,051,644 3,104,927
B B AR AR Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
ZE@E 3,051,644 3,104,927
ZHER Tier 2 capital 12,465,482 10,217,267
[ F=9iN Total capital 65,817,172 59,345,916
Fﬁw%@%ﬂitb?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:
# 2020 & A 2019 4
12831 H 12 H31H
At 31 December At 31 December
2020 2019
PhELR ETE AL Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%
R AR ETE AR LR Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.61% 1.11%
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M HwEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SREREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

44 EREE (&) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) FEALER (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)

g (SR1T% (& In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the phase-in from 2016 to 2019 of the
A HRAY > 74 2016 Capital Conservation Buffer (“CCB”) is designed to ensure banks build up capital outside
Z 2019 F[ 5P periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets (“RWAs”). The Countercyclical Capital
Bl A EEEE Buffer (“CCyB*“) which is set on an individual country basis and is built up during periods
A ("CCBEEZE ) of excess credit growth to protect against future losses. The HKMA announced a CCyB
B2 ERIRITIE for Hong Kong of 2.00% and 1.00% of RWAs from 14 October 2019 and 16 March 2020
ZERHASN - I respectively.

i EE 2.5%

ZER - BEER
EEA (TCCyB tb
) AEHERIE]
FEEERE M
DIEEEERBE
I B R AR AV R
% BEGREH
JRI o A 7 A M e 7
FH By 55 o ) 4 e
A > 2019 4 10
H 14 0} 2020 &=
3 A 16 HEEsT A K
el Bz o i B E 2
2.00%}2 1.00% -

FRHEANEZEN The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
=g S ST I Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.

KR T H H

www.ncb.com.hk

T EEE R

B -
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BRI (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRUERREE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

44 EREE (&) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(C) fEMREE®R (C) Leverage ratio

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
— 4B Tier 1 capital 53,351,690 49,128,649
FEFREER R Leverage ratio exposure 533,313,515 512,744,692
FEARELE Leverage ratio 10.00% 9.58%
B RATEIR LR B 5 The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section

YA TR R AT A A “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.

w7 #® H
www.ncb.com.hk
il G
B -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENABIAMME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

A LA BT ESEME Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
HWEANBNEENEE are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
R AV BHSXERIZE13 measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
T AMESTE JWIESK FY significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input
NERBEERANSIE - %% thatis significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

SRS SRS E DT AP R

MR Z AT 2 1 R E R

P A AR A R EET

BHEAVEZ REEHRE

EX v
- BB HEEERE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
EEER TS Iy HE This category includes listed equity shares, debt instruments issued by certain governments,
(RECHEL ) - /@4 Fs certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious metals.

bR RS~ B BUT
ETHEB TR - 515
AR GINTEGH R E S

& o
- FEY s ThEBAMEETD - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
TP EE A B (R 4l R 2% the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
(B FE RS N\ BT majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote
EHEREE) g ERE from pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
e ik el = &2 insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

TR N AT
EE -~ RS E RS BER
TERUBERS IR 55 R AT
KRG o [EIRF IR EAE T
BTSN ZRET TR E
RAHEEH T R S5 -

- B ThEERME(ER; - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

(oiEE 35 0) AN RS ES the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes unlisted equity

([FHFEE B pE O\ o fE s investment, rediscounted bills and forfeiting with significant unobservable components. It also
EHEEAEE) BRa4 includes properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

BZ - IEREEAER
NP ZZRZRYIE iR
R BRI R AR -
CiliEYINOER SRk =i
GNZRHETT TGN
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

0 AR 1 BB TERE A A S
WERNEE A AEE
G E R4S
HHEHHEESE (ER
HREACHEFTEFEAY
8 RRERRER) > LIEE
AEIEAREESZ L
W -

51 DAARENENERT
23

KREMEIL TREENS
FEE G AR >
FOAE B B IL A RTAR
PRI B T E B -
B PR B A WL
BRI AR 2 (G E A5 R
FERA AR - HA
FrE IR P BEEE
HEZERIEESE - R
i B B IR 1) L g P
-

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front offices.
Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation results from
front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific controls
include verification of observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to
the Management.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

51 DAREENSRT

& (8

B AT A B T 5 JEHL
PRI > AR L
fEER L K5
7 - 3 {8 AR R E <z T
BN A -

BN AREBFRAN
A > HAG ER A
NEHESBEERRE
&~ SR ~ HERR - RS S
HESEERS ~ 0 ~ XS
FEENE M %
Fo i N BH T 5B 2% R
TERAI 25 -

M LA E LT &/ T A
DAERIEETTENT -

BB TE - {FikES - #L

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt instruments, certificates of deposit, rediscounted bills and forfeiting

W tREE

BT HEAYA B BEA
Gt ~ A PSS NE 1L
fili (L AR % B IE R TR (it Y
17255 % 8 = (o0 P G 3 3
SRR IARTE © i
TR B A A — {8 A
FITHETARAER 20 PA—
] 7T 52 Bk T 3% AR
R b TR R EER
7= Z BE AR — i LLA
K[ BE E i B SR By
A RS HREAE
T RERAL A IEER AR « S5 L8
SR TS LB %25
EEIN R IE R
TS EEEE -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market
for instruments with similar risk or a discount rate which is referred to the transaction
interest rate of instruments with similar risk as at the end of the month and inter-bank bid
rate as the final discount rate. These inputs are observable or can be corroborated by
observable or unobservable market data.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

51 PARMESFENSET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
2 (&
TTETE Derivatives

BN ST T RS
HYELAESNAE ~ FIJ AR B
HYE - s R RS
- U1 TR EWIHIEHE
5 e R R AR A
B SR s R I
FAHEE - FrfsE A BV 28
Fy i B Z A m B g T
L - MRS
TR ~ PR ~ P an(HAS
B0 « R TR 28
WK Bh AR | P R R
il 17 45 1 PE AR RN P IR AL
DRI i -
—EMERICTE TR S
1 D AERHRELS K
DB R -

AREEESIN BT
ATEFHTEESE
R S AR S E AR - 5
Sl S SR NS
Bt RAHTEERE
HESEERENME -
EHHE T EEEE—
o T LIRACTAMIAL
O~ YRR U B R

=

i

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate or commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured using
valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The
inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest
rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such
as volatility surface may be used for less commonly traded option products which are
embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values
are determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

51 DAREENSRT
& (8

(A) BAMERIER

EREE
NAEE LR ABR L
semEE (i 20)
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—{ERE IR
— S DL o fE 8
bt AdHzS -
IS id
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PTEERTH
(BfFsE 21)
LA e lE B BT AEAD
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(FF3E 23)

(IR

b2 Gt
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SRbEE
SR (fE 27)
B

PTEERM TR
(KFEE21)

(A) Fair value hierarchy

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2020

FE—RER

Level 1

F£ER
Level 2

F=B%
Level 3

HEET
Total

BT
HK$°000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading
- Debt securities -
- Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss, non trading
- Others -
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Financial investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
(Note 23)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 1,162,689
- Equity securities -

267,649

AT
HK$°000

6,497,759

763,414

128,893,348

AT
HK$°000

16,415,554

54,109

BT
HK$°000

6,497,759

16,415,554

1,031,063

130,056,037
54,109

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or

loss (Note 27)

- Trading -
Derivative financial

instruments (Note 21) 88,464

6,650,987

1,794,489

6,650,987

1,882,953
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

51 DAREENSRT
& (8

(A) BAMERIER
(&)

EREE
NfEE LA ATBRZ
semEE (i 20)

-
—{ERE IR
=SB LA 2
bt AdHzS -
IS id
-y sR
—E A
PTEERTH
(Bt 21)
DAA e B bat A A
EHEEH R A
(FF3E 23)

(IR
E =3

TFkee
el sz

SR
A REBIER AR
SMEf (i3 27)

s
PTEERMTA
(KFEE21)

REEM R N
BENFENIEIAS
—JEAR R AR
[l (2019 4 ¢

i)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2019
=t FE gk R HHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

AT BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading
- Debt securities - 6,662,582 - 6,662,582
- Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss, non trading

- Equity securities 83,050 - - 83,050

- Others - - 7,908,715 7,908,715
Derivative financial

instruments (Note 21) 257,665 331,951 - 589,616

Financial investments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

(Note 23)
- Debt securities and

certificates of deposit - 142,861,990 - 142,861,990
- Equity securities - - 31,163 31,163

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

(Note 27)

- Trading - 5,048,559 - 5,048,559
Derivative financial

instruments (Note 21) 88,985 498,578 - 587,563

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
Group during the year (2019: Nil).
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. BEENEENARE
(&8

5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

5.1 DARESTEHIERT
5 (8)

(B) E=BHATHEE

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

g
2020
SMEE
Financial assets
IVOASIMIEE PN
FEHIMEDLA S HoAtr 2 HE WS
b I (g Ni=t=3 KSR
Mandatorily Financial
measured at fair  investments at fair
value through profit value
or loss through other
XSt comprehensive
Non trading income
Hoth, Betragisz
Others  Equity securities
BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
%2020 41 51 H At 1 January 2020 7,908,715 31,163
e Gains
- Yazssk - Income statement 450,003 -
- HAth2muLss - Other comprehensive income
- A RER AR - Change in fair value of financial assets at
4 T U %5 7Y fair value through other comprehensive
EMEEZN income
AEEL - 22,946
- PEREEE - Exchange difference 545,912 -
HA Purchases 100,853,300 -
= Sales (93,342,376) -
#20204F 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 16,415,554 54,109
2020 12 H 31 H Total unrealised gain for the period included
FFEReRE R in income statement for financial assets
Wt AR R ARE held as at 31 December 2020
Bz 4E % 21,583 -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
51 DA RMESENSELT 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
2 (&
(B) E=|E@4kHEEHE (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
g (&)
2019
Rl
Financial assets
IDVASINIEET N
HAth 2 mzs
st e E By R
F{LEt AR Financial
Mandatorily measured investments at fair
at fair value through value
profit or loss through other
|7 comprehensive
Non trading income
HoAr* W RS
Others* Equity securities
SEHT T BT TT
HK$°000 HK$'000
20191 H1H At 1 January 2019 3,786,290 31,833
Wezs,~ (E5H8) Gains/(losses)
- YazssR - Income statement 145,053 -
- HA s - Other comprehensive income
- A RERF AR - Change in fair value of financial assets at
4 T U %5 Y fair value through other comprehensive
ESRIEEZ A income
e - (670)
- [ERAEH - Exchange difference (187,440) -
HA Purchases 77,273,560 -
i Sales (73,108,748) -
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 7,908,715 31,163
2019412 H 31 H Total unrealised gain for the period included
FIAN SR A in income statement for financial assets
T AU G RV AR E held as at 31 December 2019
AW A A EE 17,032 -
* BECEARFERY] ) BRI S * Certain comparative amounts have been restated according to the current year presentation.
FHCEY] -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

5.1 DARESTEHIERT
5 (8)

(B)

FEEREHE S
(8

#2020 4£ 12 B 31
HR 2019 4£ 12 H
N IEAES=E
BV TREE R
IVOAYINIER 1 N
L EREENIEE
THRAE

PR H R B
LADNAIRIEE=( 53 N
BRI SR ERFA
ot U g R
HE - AR S
HTEAHE  Han
EAETEARERA T
WG EELEATE
EOENEIE R v
I A B 45 <
THEZEHE=)F
G o AR EIM
oAl P D PR B A
FEEH ISR TR
B -

IE BRI A E
J9275 a] LRI -
HaE 2 P
BAIEE %

& i A R A
m] > AR ERHE
BEE - ASEER L
DAnEEEEE
SFET AHAN SR AU
IR R R E
TETRANERS
HEZESET

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, financial instruments categorised as
level 3 are mainly comprised of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
unlisted equity shares.

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss
and fair value through other comprehensive income, the Group obtains valuation
quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable inputs with
significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been classified
by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control procedures to control
the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted equity shares are determined with reference to multiples of
comparable listed companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios of
comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are not available. The
significant unobservable inputs applied in the fair values measurement of the Group’s
unlisted fair value through other comprehensive income equity shares are as follows:
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
51 DA RMESFENSR T 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
2 (#
(B) E=|E@4kHEEHE (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
g (&)
TR SH N R EN A
EANAEHESH Relationship of
IR=maprs Significant unobservable HE unobservable inputs
Valuation method inputs Range to fair value
K= chilfi=2 4 7.0 - 527 ifH/ EA e
Price/earning ratios (2019: N/A) ARERE
The higher the price/earning
ratios, the higher the fair
value.
RSEEEMEITE 0.08 - 34.29 RIEEEMEITE
RigLLEE Fe KA (2019: NIA)\ st moes A S A S
Market comparison approach EV/EBITDA The higher the EV/EBITDA
ratios, the higher the fair
value.
TREEREK 2016: I%I(I)A/) REER KA > A ERE
Liquidity discount ’ The higher the liquidity
discount, the lower the fair
value.
EHEFE N EN A
Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
AREHEBEERHZ The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios and EV/EBITDA of
w R E S B appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the significant unobservable inputs
RAMEEEFR BT applied on the valuation techniques increased/decreased by 5% (31 December 2019:
B R RSN AT B0 5%), the Group’s other comprehensive income would have increased/decreased by
EETHEFALE AR (G - HK$2,705,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,558,000). When the fair value of the
75 11 P Ak (B Bz iy B unlisted fair value through other comprehensive income equity shares is affected by
EOENE NG k=2 more than one unobservable input, the aforesaid impact reflects the most favourable
R 5% 0 R or the most unfavourable change from varying inputs individually.
B2 () LA 4 T S 2 F

W D
2,705,000 77( 2019 4
12 H 31 H : #&ig
1,558,000 7¢) - ELL
AN fEEEH
et A Afth 2 L
Z Ik R GRS Y
AN AfEEZE S —
IR T Z S H
RG> Rl R B R
R {8 1 (] 2 e 2
1Y B A RS AN Fl 2
g1k
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

5.2 JEDAN RfEETBHIER

IA

I8 AR DU TE — B
B 1 R 1 85 0
F 4T 8 AT
i DUF 2 75 R
BT B 50 B S A
SEERTHZARE -

BB 1 R SRAT e HoAth

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods and
assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument
as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

A A ] = )
ESid
KRy 2 Rl B Fe B
RN SR B R —EN
FHL > HARHE{EBLN 7
EREE -

FEERK

Rk oy 2 % B R0
R S ERR
IR HARHEI{EE A S E
M -

LA e A B 5T 8 6 {5

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers
Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear interest at
prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

BIE
DUB eRp A fE T BRI
BLEZ N o a e E
Wi 5.1 LA e fEET 2
BB AR ZJ5%
GEIE

EEGH
K5 2% PRI
EEE te—FNEI H
BB AR -

BT EHE 5 R AFHK

The fair value of debt instruments at amortisation cost is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

i
LT R 2N e EE
BIFEE 5.1 M PAA sufEET
B EH LR RGN
BRHZI7EME -

RIEEE
LT R 2N e EE
BifEE 5.1 BAAS e fEET
B EB LR RGN
BRHZI7EME -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note
5.1.

Subordinated liabilities
The fair value of the instrument is determined by using the same approach as those debt
instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.2 JEDIA RMEEFESER 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

TH (&
DA B HAEEME LA o The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
EMENEM T AN T not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being
LRIFIA NEETER approximation of fair values.
ST HZEEHEMNA
E -
2020 2019
WREE ARE - FRHEE FAYNEE
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
BEETIT BT T AT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
DR A ER T & Debt instruments at
B TAE amortised cost 2,779,095 2,859,873 3,865,784 3,934,640
SRLE R Financial liabilities
ERTERSE SR Debt securities and
FEy certificates of deposit in
issue 24,014,435 24,178,199 15,471,116 15,659,408
®BIEAE Subordinated liabilities 5,416,390 5,622,606 5,438,386 5,514,042
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B HENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.2 JEPIARMEET ERER
IH (8
TRIVREHEL S S
SR TEZAREEN -
ERIEE
DABgeR kA fEt BV (R

BIA
ERER
ES TSI
i
®RIEEM
ERIEE
DABgeR kA EST BV (R
BIA
ERER
ES TSI A
i
®RIEEM

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.

Financial assets
Debt instruments at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities

Financial assets
Debt instruments at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Subordinated liabilities

188

2020
FES%  BER F=EHR e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT BT BN
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 1,898,476 961,397 2,859,873
- 24,178,199 - 24,178,199
- 5,622,606 - 5,622,606

2019
BBl BB E=EH HEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT AT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 2,578,375 1,356,265 3,934,640
- 15,659,408 - 15,659,408
- 5,514,042 - 5,514,042
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

5.3 DIAAREETEHIFEER

IR

A — e {E R
iy BT B8 T 255 (3 2K T
TEFEER TEAYA fE -

B R R
REE 2 YT 5y Btk
BV - FrEAS
M2 B R B EE
HEFTEAS - (HE AT
FP R BT WS BT
AIRAFHET AR
1 7 B MR B o
HEGENHEGRE
BZ NG WAESEYIFE
Fit g 4t 6 e T L
K - B fEENEEER
FAEARE T AEEE
i Je &y PRON B Al A S A
7% ~ [ EBE R G (E
SR o fEETERFNZ
Hs -

(i) @R fEE
BRI E T A
KRz

B BRE B
YRR ARE ) TS
SE AR
A RS (T
Btk ) eH
B A AR
(BAERE) B
$ AT LR LI K
RRLEIE At
SAF B - It
FHR B B R
BE T = N E
N7

RN Sia 7/ S=kin
P& BN E
B ER RS
B R B R P T
15 - HIELiE 2
B - S NE
LRI AE
PESE 5 b E B
SRS T -

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to determine
the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises
The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the

Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued. The valuations were carried out
by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited, who have among
their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The Group’s
Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods during the year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where the
property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and
capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
indirectly in these markets.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
5.3 DA EETBATIERR
TH (8

YRR ()
i) HWE=BRA
CHE

B RS =B

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined using

NAREEYFE N either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted
NEEEH TSR for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared
WAL AE AL to the comparable properties.
HiEAERY M
E2pNGINEw (U
B EHT i (5%
REEE ©
IR BEENEST The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
EEEWE O EESE measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
=gz REEY)
SEFTER H S 1E 77
oYU NTR RS
R% :
AHEBRFREADENR G
fEETTE BERFIHERE pill: SR s] Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
HAthpE THGLLEOER | VISR AT e I2E e -4.3% PriEbke > A EE -
Other B ABEARE B (Gl Rl (2019: +2.4%) The higher the discount,
properties Market (Discount)/premium the lower the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to RS - A EE
income comparable properties The higher the premium,
capitalisation the higher the fair value.
approach

VAR AT LE RIS AE
MWHE EZEE G
H) Ty BEAATLRE
VEEAEAR RN R LAYZE
£ PIAIRA R Z 5
BE) -~ rE - EEE
TR0 ~ U -
i~ e S imEE -

Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account various

factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition,

floor level, size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with comparable

properties.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

5.3 DIAAREETEHIFEER
IH (8

f

HEE 2N R EREEE
BTG E A T
AT E R AR -

il

(A) AARMEFIEFR

FFEREE
RAEYEE (M5 24)

VIS ~ 250 Beasets
(BF&E 25)
- BiE
HitrgE (M 26)
- B

FEERERE
REYEE (i 24)

VIS B R
(lHf3k 25)
- R
SEE (i3 26)
- B

KEE IR BEER
FPAA B
— B4R RIS (2019
) -

Precious metals

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 24)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 26)
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
(Note 24)
Properties, plant and equipment
(Note 25)
- Premises
Other assets (Note 26)
- Precious metals

2020
E—fEk Bk F=Ek 4HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 13,400 327,680 341,080
- 1,621,200 5,598,890 7,220,090
157,558 247,160 - 404,718
2019
E—lBal B V= HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETE BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 6,810 348,420 355,230
- 327,345 7,154,208 7,481,553
81,541 183,224 - 264,765

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2019: Nil).

191



65 NCB #15F 4% 444

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

5.3 DIAAREETEHIFEER
IH (8

(B) E=BHAHEED)

K2020E1H1H
[hen
- gk
- REVERAERAE S
HETE
- B IR
- HAra s
- FBEEES
WE
I
BT
i
VST 22

2020412 H 31 H

Jt 2020 £ 12 [ 31 HHPARY
IR RN NET AU
RHIAREH R
- WEYISEA EREZ S

i
- Bl FEZIFEE

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2020
Gains
- Income statement
- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Additions
Depreciation
Reclassification
Transfer out
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

Total unrealised losses for the year included in
income statement for non-financial assets held as
at 31 December 2020
- Net loss from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2020
JERIEE
Non-financial assets

Wik ~ B
Bkt
Properties,
plant and
&Y% equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000
348,420 7,154,208
(2,950) -
- (6,686)
- (101,107)
- 6,341
- (103,833)
(17,790) 17,790
- (1,415,143)
- 47,320
327,680 5,598,890
(2,950) -
- (6,686)
(2,950) (6,686)
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

5.3 DIAAREETEHIFEER
IH (8

(B) E=/BHAITHE B
(8

H2019E1H1H
e
- Wrzs#k
- BN ERERE
Rl
- EFE P
- HArgmuizs
- FEE
es
o
E
PR 27240

R 2019412 H 31 H

7 2019 4E 12 H 31 HEAN
S TBE P A
SR BB
- RN R AT F

W zs
- EffiERE 2

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2019
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer out
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2019

Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2019

- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2019
e E

Non-financial assets
VI - gt
B did
Properties,
plant and
EYE equipment
Investment R
properties Premises
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
331,942 7,334,171
16,478 -
- 2,384
- 130,022
- (124,472)
- 74,801
- (251,400)
- (11,298)
348,420 7,154,208
16,478 -
- 2,384
16,478 2,384
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAME 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&8

5.3 DIAAREETEHIFEER
IH (8

(B) E=EBHAREEE

(8

BAREEE =g
ESEUE FETSEE
WAl (B V) SE AR 2 H
A LE AR
EZEE GiFED
PAHE A B AL P
FIE - ME B2 E
/7 (T8 THHURRY
W fili B 1) 5 BLAT )
A 2 AT L 3
FEMHE EAVZES - i
PA AR AR E AT
B 2 ] L)
SEHGTHRAARE B
fifi (B 9 5 B ] B
VIEEME B2k
&/ (irfE) efE

s o I 2 1 T S R
TR R
AT G
b BIEERAA
RS = -

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable properties
during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with reference to
differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent
market transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable market
inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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MR (&)
6. JEFIEWA

FIRUA

TRIBO [FI2E e ELth e R
YRR

=R

ERE

oAt

FIEZ

[FI2E R HoAth R A iy
I

HEFR

EE TR 25 R kS

®RIEAMA

HEAHA

HoAth

FFRIEWA

#Z 2020 £ 12 A 31 Hik
R MM A B FEHE
Ry B BT RERT AR WA
HEHE 3,179,000 71 2019 4::
% 1,351,000 7T) ©

FELAA EE LS ARG Z
<k R B < S (R T E 2R
RIS WA R FI S S 5 7
Fy AR 12,499,239,000 T
(2019 4 : & ¥
14,936,075,000 1) K&
6,130,752,000 7. (2019 4 :
i 8,285,886,000 T ) °

6. Net interest income

Interest income
Due from banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers
Financial investments
Others

Interest expense
Due to banks and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
Subordinated liabilities

Lease liabilities

Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

546,025 1,174,566
9,067,041 10,120,750
2,864,290 3,621,916

21,883 18,843
12,499,239 14,936,075
(332,917) (1,010,619)
(4,788,758) (6,461,391)
(615,134) (539,384)
(209,386) (24,007)

(18,838) (23,233)
(165,719) (227,252)

(6,130,752) (8,285,886)
6,368,487 6,650,189

Included within interest income is HK$3,179,000 (2019: HK$1,351,000) of interest with respect
to income accrued on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$12,499,239,000 (2019:
HK$14,936,075,000) and HK$6,130,752,000 (2019: HK$8,285,886,000) for financial assets
and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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B mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
7. FREERAESWA 7. Net fee and commission income

2020 2019
BETT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REE RASWA Fee and commission income
=i Loan commissions 611,581 527,406
R AT Securities brokerage 304,096 184,513
Fbs Insurance 200,961 268,683
i Bills commissions 158,908 167,856
BT Funds distribution 130,461 125,507
s B S Payment services 44,788 53,953
LREFE Safe deposit box 40,570 38,865
(LRGBS Trust and custody services 24,535 12,738
EHFER Credit card business 6,120 20,969
HE G Currency exchange 391 714
HoAth Others 184,855 198,787
1,707,266 1,599,991
REERASTH Fee and commission expense
R Securities brokerage (41,205) (26,665)
ERHFREE Credit card business (3,284) (6,368)
BIERHRTS Payment services (1) 3)
Hoth Others (43,320) (37,833)
(87,810) (70,869)
R E M S Net fee and commission income 1,619,456 1,529,122
HeHE Of which arise from
- JEDLA UEE AT B - financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
2 EREENSRMAR through profit or loss
- B e e A - Fee and commission income 615,823 528,743
- B E R AE T - Fee and commission expense (4,699) (1,635)
611,124 527,108
- (SR HAN Z R EE) - trust and other fiduciary activities
- R s A - Fee and commission income 24,535 12,738
- IR RS - Fee and commission expense (1,351) (1,293)
23,184 11,445
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MEHmENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8. B H MW 8. Net trading gain
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Files S () RE Net gain/(loss) from
- HNPERS B K I NERT ) E - foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products 130,523 154,656
- FIZETH KA e fE B - interest rate instruments and items under
IHH fair value hedge (47,150) 54,354
- B - commodities (2,506) (26,495)
80,867 182,515
9. HWEREEFKZ: 9. Net gain on other financial assets
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
DA ESE bt A KA 2 1E Net gain on financial investments measured at fair value
UL ST & B & 2 7R UL S through other comprehensive income 261,805 221,044
ot Others* (12,036) (1,981)
249,769 219,063
* EHo RS EE R EE * Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through
DA REE LG AR ZE profit or loss to conform with the current year's presentation.
Bl T BRI IR & AR
By -
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146,000 7T (2019 4 : &
% 103,000 jT) -

FEWLH A& BHEE
TREYHEZHSEW
A1 (2019 42 < ) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10. Other operating income

Dividend income from investment in securities

- Unlisted investments
Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties
Others

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

2,165 2,315

10,071 11,790
(980) (979)
7,332 9,586

18,588 22,712

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$146,000 (2019:
HK$103,000) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let

during the year.

There was no contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from investment properties”

during the year (2019: Nil).
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M. BEREE R

T ICRAT e HoAth 5 R e A

Hy&EER
Bk b HAARTH

ERE
HApth g
AR

THURYE

IRAE R ()

T ICSRAT e HoAth 5 R e A

H4kER
Bk b EAMARTH
SRR
HAth#
AR
BHORIE

IRAE SRR ()

Balances with banks and

other financial institutions
Advances and other
accounts

Financial investments
Other assets
Financial guarantees

Loan commitments
Net reversal/(charge) of
impairment allowances

Balances with banks and

other financial institutions
Advances and other
accounts

Financial investments
Other assets
Financial guarantees

Loan commitments
Net reversal/(charge) of
impairment allowances
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11. Net charge of impairment allowances

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2020
IR EFEE E=MEEE &t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(1,116) - - (1,116)
120,711 (13,388) (1,377,044) (1,269,721)
29,623 (55,322) 844 (24,855)
(995) (18) 12 (1,001)
(38,484) (26) - (38,510)
(23,351) (593) - (23,944)
86,388 (69,347) (1,376,188)  (1,359,147)
2019

E—TEEL B FEIEE HHE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
640 - (70,768) (70,128)
152,344 93,870  (1,423,578) (1,177,364)
(49) - 1,039 990
(162) 11 (5,647) (5,798)
61,615 - - 61,615
30,624 (18) - 30,606
245,012 93,863  (1,498,954)  (1,160,079)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12. Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- Salaries and other costs
- Pension cost
- Supplementary retirement benefits

Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
depreciation)
- leases of short-term or low-value assets
- Information technology
- Others

Depreciation
Auditor's remuneration
- Audit services
- Non-audit services
Other operating expenses
- Outsourcing activities fee
- Others
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2020 2019
AT AT T
HK$’000 HK$°000

1,640,892 1,694,620
184,355 187,193
4,910 5,240
1,830,157 1,887,053
3,801 8,244
63,071 90,834
62,929 87,506
129,801 186,584
519,134 495,555
10,349 10,335
3,276 7,447
350,418 390,081
341,476 405,509
3,184,611 3,382,564
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MsEENTE: ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. BN EFHE  13. Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on investment properties
Z# (R /=

2020 2019
AT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BV N EFE Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on
¥R s investment properties (2,950) 16,573

14. HE EEY#% - 28 14. Net (loss)/gain from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
MREHEZR (B equipment

B s
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HE B e Net loss from disposal of premises - (608)
R ~ [E]E S5 5 2Fe g Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
ZEES1R fittings (1,213) (1,411)
HiEFEZF (BE) I Net (loss)/gain from revaluation of premises
% (6,686) 2,384
(7,899) 365
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MRERIH
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BB FRIEE

BRI A A
SHESRLGEFHRIIER 16.5%
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BB IER R Z BT

55 -
AR AR EE A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

2020 2019

AT AT

HK$°000 HK$'000

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax

- Current year taxation 449,802 453,743

- Over-provision in prior years (19,497) (11,384)
430,305 442,359

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation 221,747 88,283
- Under/(over)-provision in prior years

4,043 (3,888)
656,095 526,754
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
and unused tax credits (252,959) (1,357)
403,136 525,397

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2020 2019

AT AT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

Profit before taxation 4,218,406 4,476,693

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)

696,037 738,654

Effect of different taxation rates in other countries (21,723) 21,219

Income not subject to taxation (190,507) (186,038)

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 10,215 44 453

Tax losses not recognised 2 1

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 9) 7)

Over-provision in prior years (15,454) (15,272)

Foreign withholding tax 1,323 (10)
Adjustment in respect of distribution payment for

additional equity instruments (76,748) (77,603)

Taxation charge 403,136 525,397

Effective tax rate 9.56% 11.74%

202



65 NCB #15F 4% 444

IeERFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
16. &S 16. Dividends

2020 2019
S5 ] 52 HE%R
P BEETIT A& AT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$’000 HK$ HK$’000
i35 Dividends - - - -
2020 4F 3 f% H Ok B B No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
(2019 4F 4 ) »
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs

(a) FEftakatEl

RS T AREEE TR
FEBLRRE #] 1 2 R (o8
TR )& 2 B 2ER IR
ST R T SR Or i 2 s i
st o MBS RIRET
# 8 SR A RS R ARG T
AR H AR A
Z 5% e X2 &k
RRERAHHZ 5%E
15% R (1 PR B Z IR
HH) - (B RARERNER -

FEATR IR & H.
MR AR g 10 SR bl B 55
BT 100% 2 g F
P - IRES 3 FEE 9 4
By R T NEAR R A 4%k
(i PO RN AR PR AT )
TTULHL 30% % 90% 2 {& T
PR~ (R B UL £ £
Oz CGREIM AT ES

HIRBT) PR -

W Saf R B )it 2000
F£12 51 Ot A%
T2 B e §R Ot 5 2 5ea it
Bt ED a2 ZEE AR
R B RSB R (S 5T A
PRAE] R EH A Sl
BB R B E A

R -

% 2020 £ 12 31 >
FEALRRETEY 560,000 T
(2019 4 : &%
1,684,000 JT.) Z32 Utk
(R 2 E Sy Pl
¥ LY By B M8 46,822,000
gt (2019 4 © &E %
42,182,000 7T.) - i A< 42H]
17 SE e < 2 R A
JI& Ry S 13,199,000 7T
(2019 4 : B %
12,696,000 7¢) -

(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted
under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.
Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other
than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are subject to
MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is
BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounting to approximately HK$46,822,000 (2019: approximately
HK$42,182,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$560,000
(2019: approximately HK$1,684,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$13,199,000 (2019: approximately HK$12,696,000) for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its retired employees. Under
the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits which included fully redeemed
medical care, housing allowance and other retirement benefits.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in the life expectancy for

pensioners.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined benefit obligations
were carried out at 31 December 2020 by using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation

method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Discount rate (%)

Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%)

Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases
(%)

Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases
(%)

Expected rate of rental increases (%)

Expected rate of withdrawal (%)

Expected death rate
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2020 2019

1.3 1.8

6.0 6.0

0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0

3.0 3.0
3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0
FEAOEGR FEAOSEGER
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Life Tables Life Tables
2019 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the end of the reporting

period is shown below:

Discount rate
Expected rate of medical
insurance cost

Discount rate
Expected rate of medical
insurance cost

206

2020

FUEFIZEER] FEFIZEER]
AEZ AR/

B B
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
BRI in defined EE R in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
AT AT
% HK$°000 % HK$°000
0.1 (3,130) 0.1 3,450
0.5 15,790 0.5 (13,720)

2019

FUE RIS 1@ FUE &
HRYEZ B/ HRYE B/

CR) CR)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Bzl in defined EEE D in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
HRETIT AT
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
0.1 (2,660) 0.1 2,740
0.5 13,450 0.5 (11,690)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates
the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the plan

is as follows:

Defined benefit schemes
- Current service cost
- Past service cost
- plan amendment
- Net interest cost

Total expenses

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000

3,020 2,540
(440) 120
2,330 2,580
4,910 5,240

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

respect of the plan is as follows:

Defined benefit schemes
- Actuarial gains arising from changes in
Assumptions

- Actuarial losses arising from experience
adjustments

Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in comprehensive income
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2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

21,720 15,760
21,720 15,760
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs (continued)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Benefit liability
At 1 January 131,330 113,900
Current service cost 3,020 2,540
Past service cost
- plan amendment (440) 120
Net interest cost 2,330 2,580
Actuarial losses on remeasurement 21,720 15,760
Benefit paid (3,800) (3,570)
At 31 December 154,160 131,330
Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future
years are as follows:
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$000
Within the next 12 months 3,210 3,260
Between 2 and 5 years 14,380 14,200
Between 6 and 10 years 19,920 19,690
Over 10 years 271,740 255,380
Total expected payments 309,250 292,530

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period is

21 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in respect

of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group

during the year are as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments
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2020 2019
AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

2,912 2,737
11,754 11,124
14,666 13,861
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

KEZANEHE (continued)
(&)
(b) CG-5 THIREH A (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
SPE-INENG

HEEE#HZ CG-5
R f P 7 T o) 2 5
500 ARERALEEZ
EREHANR R EE
AN B HIFEEATT

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the HKMA,
details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group
during the year are as follows:

(i) PEEPHZTHIHTH

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

2020
EHREEAR EHAER
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRAE . JEIRAE .
Non- HRIE KRt Non- RIE KEEt
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BAETT BETT BET BAETT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(& 7 s i Fixed remuneration
B Cash 27,101 - 27,101 30,649 - 30,649
HAF = Other forms 3,963 - 3,963 2,835 - 2,835
EZ k| Variable remuneration
W& Cash 10,483 5,972 16,455 13,714 3,996 17,710
41,547 5,972 47,519 47,198 3,996 51,194
2019
EETEANE B YN=
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEIRIE JEIRIE
Non- IEHE 4Gt Non- JEIE 4Gt
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT Mt BT BT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[ E i Fixed remuneration
B Cash 24,965 - 24,965 21,742 - 21,742
HAt Other forms 4,180 - 4,180 1,938 - 1,938
T Variable remuneration
birke Cash 8,494 9,887 18,381 10,066 4,225 14,291
37,639 9,887 47,526 33,746 4,225 37,971

DLERFBELSE 1 4 (2019
13 ) BRI A B
174 (2019 :12%) &
AR - #2020 4 12 H
31 FIAGAEN A R
it

The remuneration above includes 11 (2019: 13) members of Senior Management
and 17 (2019: 12) members of Key Personnel. The list of members is as of 31
December 2020.
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AseERFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X - 5@EE AE 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

P& YN (continued)
(&)
(b) CG-5 TEH&EH A (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
BREEABHTET (continued)
(&)
(if) FRIEFTEN (ii) Deferred remuneration
2020 2019
RSEHEAE EREHAR
Senior FEAR Senior FEAR
Management Key Personnel Management Key Personnel
BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR Deferred remuneration
EE Vested 8,172 3,691 6,625 2,544
KT Unvested 17,343 8,086 19,543 7,781
25,515 11,777 26,168 10,325
wW1H1H At 1 January 19,543 7,781 16,281 6,100
[t Awarded 5,972 3,996 9,887 4,225
Sk Paid out (6,217) (3,194) (5,396) (1,989)
E#B(TAEE  Paid out for members
EJE@ZEA]  notin this category at
AE) the end of this year (1,955) (497) (1,229) (555)
w12 431 H At 31 December 17,343 8,086 19,543 7,781
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5
(continued)

(&)

BRI R ARt
M EEEEANR R E
TANBHIRBEER
A3 f By 37 M o) 52 5
50) E#E -

- BEEAR EEY
HEEHEHEE
A AR RS TRNE 5L
HEEEE BRI TE
3~ G BIEE - T
B - s &
SRS R A& R
W EREEWE RIS
ILHBHRELEE -

FEEAR {HAEBE
W e R R
HEEREAERY
2 o B E S
EHAER - EAE
2 RN EEEY
BN R - WG &
H RO Y B £
(EREEE S ASiE S
FEA KB B
HaLH, (e A
KL HrE AR E R
ERAELKHE, RS ETARAL
H BB AR
H o B EE L

Hi - GEEI  E HR A
S NS TE AR EE o

%S A B R
EREW - LgiTE
F-BEREHEARRE
A B#ZE 2020 & 12
A 31 HIkFERILERr
B i R SR T - AREE
BEMHE - R
AR B S HE A 2R
e EAEE R R
B L AT -

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel mentioned in this

section are defined according to the HKMA’s Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

System.

Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
Executive Director, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Risk Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief Human Resources Officer, Board
Secretary and Head of Audit Department.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
material business lines, heads of major subsidiaries, General Manager of Risk
Management Department, General Manager of Credit Management Department,
General Manager of Basel Management Department, General Manager of Finance
Department, General Manager of Information Technology Department, General
Manager of Operation Management Department, General Manager of Chief
Executive's Office as well as General Manager of Human Resources Department.

As of the date of these issuance of consolidated financial statements, the above

compensation packages including performance based bonus for executive directors,

senior management and key personnel for the year ended 31 December 2020 has not

been finalised. Management of the Group believes that the difference between the final

emoluments and that disclosed above will not have significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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19. EFEHEE - FHEE 19. Cash, balances and placements with banks and other financial

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

JRUSRAT R HoAt Sl
eSS

institutions

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI 4 R R T e Cash and balances with banks and other financial
S RiSRE ISR institutions
- EEHRSE - Cash 624,920 642,600
- E SR TSGR - Balances with central banks 17,678,912 20,596,585
- TFERUSRAT B oAt & Bl A - Balances with banks and other financial institutions
TR 9,261,377 3,945,837
- TESRTT R A < R i — - Placements with banks and other financial institutions
{i& H NEIHA 2 B HATR I maturing within one month 30,685,326 16,213,179
58,250,535 41,398,201
JRAE Impairment allowances (77,225) (70,940)
58,173,310 41,327,261
T SRTT R Al R i — Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Z+{EAANEHE > E maturing between one and twelve months
A 556,111 10,456,999
VB E Impairment allowances (132) (652)
555,979 10,456,347
58,729,289 51,783,608
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. Cash, balances and placements with banks and other financial

TBUSRTT R HoAt Sl
R (8D

M BERAR 4 2 BB oA
Wk

institutions (continued)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

B B E=PEE gt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 (824) - (70,768) (71,592)
W0 Addition (1,916) - - (1,916)
28 PSR BB 2 (N RSl Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 803 . - 803
SR (B EEE Changes to model used for
impairment calculations (1,618) - - (1,618)
VRS R Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations 1,615 - - 1,615
BE 17 254 Exchange difference (37) - (4,612) (4,649)
2020 12 H31 H At 31 December 2020 (1,977) - (75,380) (77,357)
FIEE HIEE E=ISEL &5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT AT HERETIT
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
»2019F1H1H At 1 January 2019 (2,518) - - (2,518)
i Addition (803) - . (803)
4% IR BB (N B T Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 1,302 . . 1,302
S = FER Transfers to Stage 3 142 - (142) -
AP P B 2 s J b K 4 Impact on period end ECLs of
TR HA K TR HATE 21 exposures transferred between
o= stages during the period - - (70,626) (70,626)
VEREE S SR LY Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations (1) - - 1)
PR 2 72 %H Exchange difference 1,054 - - 1,054
2019 12 531 H At 31 December 2019 (824) - (70,768) (71,592)
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MERN=E () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. AnfEE{EET AIEZE  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ZERIEE

B AR
HE LT AR
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

o FEX G Bt

Trading Non trading Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
BT AT AR BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HARMESIE  Atfair value

[E£=3 Treasury bills 6,497,759 6,662,582 - - 6,497,759 6,662,582
He {25 Equity securities - - - 83,050 - 83,050
HAth Others - - 16,415,554 7,908,715 16,415,554 7,908,715

6,497,759 6,662,582 16,415,554 7,991,765 22,913,313 14,654,347

720204212 H 31 H 2 As at 31 December 2020, there were no financial assets designated at fair value through
B RE BN EEE profit or loss (2019: Nil).

AN$Ew 2 eRl&E (2019

fiw) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. AnfEE{EET A$EZE  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

ZEREE (8)

AV =k oy WA=
HE B T

esEtesd

- JEEH

Rtz

REELSN B

HAtr
- JEEH

AVINIER o NPty
BER TS Z 00
:

BIiHE
HRAT R A AR

DNERE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by place of listing as follows:

Debt securities
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed outside Hong Kong

Others
- Unlisted

R AR
EZ(bat AtBeR
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

R IS

Trading Non trading
2020 2019 2020 2019
AT AT T AT ATT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
6,497,759 6,662,582 - -
- - - 83,050
- - 16,415,554 7,908,715
6,497,759 6,662,582 16,415,554 7,991,765

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns

Banks and other financial
institutions

Corporate entities
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LA
EE( et AtBeR
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through
profit or loss

e IS

Trading Non trading
2020 2019 2020 2019
AT BT T BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
6,497,759 6,662,582 - -
- - 16,415,554 7,908,715
- - - 83,050
6,497,759 6,662,582 16,415,554 7,991,765
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. FTEEFI T H %M 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Zh

T FHIBER  FI
PSR BRO ST 4 S T
SUIFEE R R G
H

BRI R R RS —
BRI C =P

B R R B b R
T BCHAAS [ B < 7 P i
AR s - e HAAS R AT
KI—J’D”’Q M= CAnEER
RELUZENFR) HE 6
(s e e L R
RS GRS FilES
H1) - BRI A1
EL G R

ah

SN IR T ST R 55 5
(307 ) BEITFATT)
TRBHE ARG — e H 4
SR —E RN E
HYEAE E e (FRESIRE ) 24
i (SR ) —E8E
R T EEYRER (T TER
) By — TR - R Eh
VEE R » AR T TR
TS —E SR S - A SR
I S 402 U T U7 A
GNP EEK ©

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate and commodity related
derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a future
date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, gold swaps)
or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants
the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a
put option) at or by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount of the financial
instrument at a predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange
risk, the seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-
counter between the Group and its counterparty.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by the
Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these instruments
indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and certain of
them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on the balance
sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved
or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
market interest rates or metal prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of
derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer business. The Group strictly
follows risk management policies and requirement in providing derivative products to our
customers and in trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A derivative
instrument must be included in the approved product list before any transactions for that
instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional amount of exposure arising
from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative
transaction must be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation,
reporting and control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

st (@)

(@) TAESRTE (8

RSB SR TR
212 B 31 HZ &8 /%%

$Ee -

EEREG
RIS K a0
110
HNEXZ i HIRE

- HAE
- B

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency

options
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Commodity contracts

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each class of derivative
financial instrument as at 31 December:

2020

FFERA

HieEtA

Not qualified for
HE [ hedge Hst
Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
10,760,031 - - 10,760,031
56,549,856 - - 56,549,856
2,499,871 - - 2,499,871
2,499,871 - - 2,499,871
72,309,629 - - 72,309,629
84,751,010 7,060,413 - 91,811,423
219,806 - - 219,806
157,280,445 7,060,413 - 164,340,858
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. (TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

et (@)

(@) TAESRTE (8

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2019
TREERA
dEEtA
HE JE g e Not qualified for Hast
Trading Hedging hedge accounting Total
BT BT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
[EREL Exchange rate contracts
BIHA Rz 223 Spot and forwards 11,329,574 - - 11,329,574
A Swaps 36,650,129 - - 36,650,129
SNERT S HARE Foreign currency
options
- H AR - Options purchased 387,576 - - 387,576
- e - Options written 387,576 - - 387,576
48,754,855 - - 48,754,855
IESEYY Interest rate contracts
A Swaps 58,101,554 5,886,578 - 63,988,132
ey Commodity contracts 1,159,194 - - 1,159,194
108,015,603 5,886,578 - 113,902,181

FrratRAEPEts
R GRITSE () M
A B0K > I EE AT
GERAETE AR H
B E DL e (B (B S s
BARNE# T HE—HE
BT TREY -

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do not qualify as hedges for

accounting purposes but are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments

designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with the

requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative financial instrument

as at 31 December:

R R

=5
SRR Z 3

- HAHIE

B

HIFREL

0

SRR

Exchange rate
contracts
Spot and

forwards
Swaps
Foreign
currency
options
- Options
purchased
- Options
written

Interest rate
contracts
Swaps

Commodity
contracts

2020
DRERE DREEE

Fair value assets Fair value liabilities

TRERA TRERA

A B A

Not Not

qualified qualified
BEE [EkfHd  for hedge &st HE ReHMH  for hedge &5t
Trading Hedging accounting Total Trading Hedging accounting Total
AETIT  RRTT BETIT EBTRT EETT BETT AEBTT BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
350,164 - - 350,164 (225,290) - - (225,290)
404,544 - - 404,544 (1,002,025) - - (1,002,025)
104,597 - - 104,597 (17,786) - - (17,786)
192 - - 192 (87,146) - - (87,146)
859,497 - - 859,497 (1,332,247) - - (1,332,247)
170,885 - - 170,885 (184,707) (362,268) - (546,975)
681 - - 681 (3,731) - - (3,731)
1,031,063 - - 1,031,063 (1,520,685) (362,268) - (1,882,953)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. (TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

et (@)

(@) TAESRTE (8

BEREL

R RS

fwiH

SIS Zh

- HAHIE

- TR

Exchange rate
contracts
Spot and

forwards
Swaps
Foreign
currency
options
- Options
purchased
- Options
written

Interest rate
contracts
Swaps

Commodity
contracts

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2019
ARMEERE AYIRIEN =T
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
FEERA R ERA
HiHEA gt
Not Not
qualified qualified
HE T for hedge HEET HE  JEEd for hedge Hat
Trading Hedging accounting Total Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT B TT AT BT BT gt BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
358,527 358,527 (169,442) (169,442)
77,474 77,474 (240,102) (240,102)
4,104 4,104 (87) (87)
2,696 2,696 (6,715) (6,715)
442,801 442,801 (416,346) (416,346)
41,188 10,183 51,371  (41,540) (126,366) (167,906)
95,444 95,444 (3,311) (3,311)
579,433 10,183 589,616 (461,197) (126,366) (587,563)
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- HAMRE

ESSES
st

LR
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F o IEBEHUR A L S T
N B A IR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the derivative financial
instruments and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of capital adequacy ratio.

2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Exchange rate contracts
Forwards 130,271 218,327
Swaps 285,633 195,473
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased 105,236 8,163
521,140 421,963
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 151,110 24,529
Commodity contracts - 7,884
672,250 454,376

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics of each type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting agreements for the
Group amounted to HK$376,298,000 (2019: HK$292,678,000) and the effect of valid
bilateral netting agreements amounted to HK$192,426,000 (2019: HK$116,171,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. (TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

et (@)

(b) g

Pk
SR R R
SERELE R Tk
B 4 B E 05 F M 9
5
TFREELT 7 2020 45
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H 2R {51l

(b) Hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair value of financial

assets arising from movements in market interest rates.

The table below summarises the contract/notional amounts of the hedging instruments

as at 31 December 2020 by remaining contractual maturity.

2020
—& =&
—EAR =Z@A +ER —EHE AFENUE
Up to 1t0 3 3to12 1to 5 Over LE=t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
AETIT  BETT  BWTT BT B¥TT  B%TE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Interest rate swaps - - 863,794 6,018,333 178,286 7,060,413
2019
—F =%
—®{HRN  =EA +ZSEF —204F BFENE
Up to 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over 4EET
1 month months months years 5 years Total
BETIT BT BT BN ToT OBNTIT BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest rate swaps - - - 5,425,887 460,691 5,886,578
The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as follows:
2020
AE PSRRI+
Fair values AE ST Z
DREES)
&8/ Change in fair
LZHEBEE value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional BE =l hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities ineffectiveness
BT AT AT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Derivative financial
instruments
Interest rate swaps 7,060,413 - 362,268 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. (TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

et (@)

(b) B gst (&)

ARER (8

PTEERTH
GRS

BRI H 2 AR 240
LA

SRR
B RE IR M AFiKRE

(b) Hedge accounting (continued)

Fair value hedges (continued)

Derivative financial
instruments
Interest rate swaps

The amounts relating to hedged items are as follows:

Financial investments
Debt securities and
certificates of deposit

225

2019
AV W= FH DABfE S
Fair values Ry 2
N AEE)
a4/ Change in fair
P S gl value used for
Contract/ recognising
notional HiE =i hedge
amounts Assets Liabilities  ineffectiveness
AT AT AT AHETIT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
5,886,578 10,183 (126,366) -
2020
FHARREERN
DAAERH
BRITEH FADARERS
Accumulated THEERER
amount of fair Z (EE &)
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
EEE{E  included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
AT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
7,497,077 307,522 -
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AseERF=NEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
21. (TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

=t (%)
(b) EHezt (&) (b) Hedge accounting (continued)
N EERE (&) Fair value hedges (continued)
2019
st AJRAIERY
O FAE SR
BRI FH DA E
Accumulated RSy
amount of fair Z (E{HEH)
value hedge Change in
adjustment value used for
HETHIE included in the recognising
Carrying carrying hedge
amounts amounts ineffectiveness
BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
EREE Financial investments
B8 75 M AT Debt securities and
certificates of deposit 6,102,166 106,946 -
T 20 S b 4 480 3ET 43 40 Hedge ineffectiveness recognised is as follows:
T
2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FR MW Net trading gain - -
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21. (TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(c) ZEEF R E

(c) Interest rate benchmark reform
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Following the decision by global regulators to phase out the existing interest rate
benchmarks and replace them with risk-free rates (“RFRs”), the Group is evaluating the
impact on its existing hedge relationships. The Bank forms a team to manage the Interest
rate benchmark reform process and reports to Chief Risk Officer twice a month. The
Group has adopted the temporary reliefs provided by the amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which enable the hedge accounting of the Group to continue
during the period of uncertainty, which is before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an RFR.

The Group’s hedge accounting relationships are exposed to the following significant
interest rate benchmarks subject to cessation: US dollar LIBOR. In addition to interest
rate risk, the Group is also exposed to foreign exchange risk and potentially in the future,
additional basis risk as market conventions develop and evolve.

IBOR reform exposes the Group to various risks, which the project is managing and
monitoring closely. These risks include but are not limited to the following:

Conduct risk arising from discussions with clients and market counterparties due to the
amendments required to existing contracts necessary to effect IBOR reform

+ Financial risk to the Group and its clients that markets are disrupted due to IBOR reform
giving rise to financial losses

Pricing risk from the potential lack of market information if liquidity in IBORs reduces
and RFRs are illiquid and unobservable
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Fair value hedges

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(c) Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

Operational risk arising from changes to the Group’s IT systems and processes, also
the risk of payments being disrupted if an IBOR ceases to be available

+ Accounting risk if the Group’s hedging relationships fail and from unrepresentative
income statement volatility as financial instruments transition to RFRs

The hedged items that are affected by the adoption of the temporary relief in hedge
accounting relationships are presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as financial
investments. When identifying the hedged items that are affected by the adoption of the
temporary relief, judgement has been exercised by the Group in determining when
uncertainty is expected to be resolved and therefore when the temporary relief will cease
to apply. As at 31 December 2020, the Group believed that the uncertainty continued to
exist and so the temporary exceptions apply to all of the Group’s hedge accounting
relationships that reference benchmarks subject to reform or replacement.

The contract/notional amounts of interest rate derivatives designated in hedge
accounting relationships represent the extent of the risk exposure managed by the Group
that is directly affected by interest rate benchmarks reform and impacted by the
temporary relief, which is presented as below:

2020

=L

HEBEE
Contract/notional
amounts

BT
HK$’000

6,620,413

228



) NCB #:f %% 4kt

MBI (&)
22. B HAMRIA

VN
INEERK

FEE
B

S
TR{E A {f

SRAT B A R EEK

TREE

202012 31 H %
PR AT RS R
792,508,000 7T (2019 4 :
sl 601,512,000 7T) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. Advances and other accounts

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Personal loans and advances 57,858,670 52,313,862
Corporate loans and advances 221,863,901 210,789,370
Advances to customers 279,722,571 263,103,232
Impairment allowances (3,027,800) (2,707,693)
276,694,771 260,395,539
Trade bills 390,401 2,017,812
Impairment allowances (39) 171)
390,362 2,017,641

Advances to banks and other financial
institutions 102,121 95,873
Impairment allowances (102,121) (95,873)
277,085,133 262,413,180
As at 31 December 2020, advances to customers included accrued interest of

HK$792,508,000 (2019: HK$601,512,000).

229



65 NCB #15F 4% 444

BRI (8D

22. EFREMARIE (4) 22. Advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

T2 UK B 2 i < K
B EAHRIRZ N B S JEY

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are analysed by internal
credit grade and stage classification as follows:

BB AT
2020
P BEREER  B=EREE &t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT AETIT  AB¥TRI AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ZEEERK Advances to customers
=S Pass 273,673,886 1,244,428 - 274,918,314
YR Special mention 682,851 1,728,624 195 2,411,670
REPELLT Substandard or below - - 2,392,587 2,392,587
274,356,737 2,973,052 2,392,782 279,722,571
HEERE Trade bills
=S Pass 390,401 - - 390,401
SRAT R LAt SRR ERX Advances to
banks and other
financial institutions
REBLLT Substandard or below - - 102,121 102,121
4zt Total 274,747,138 2,973,052 2,494,903 280,215,093
2019
FPEE FUMEE BEMEE HHE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEERK Advances to customers
=S Pass 256,847,146 1,951,031 - 258,798,177
FRERAE Special mention 1,523,877 1,011,597 14,202 2,549,676
REARE LT Substandard or below - - 1,755,379 1,755,379
258,371,023 2,962,628 1,769,581 263,103,232
EOES:H Trade bills
&g Pass 2,017,812 - - 2,017,812
BRAT B At AR SR Advances to
banks and other
financial institutions
RERSLLT Substandard or below - - 95,873 95,873
4t Total 260,388,835 2,962,628 1,865,454 265,216,917
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

At 1 January 2020

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances

Changes to model used for
impairment calculations

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Recoveries

Loans written off

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Recoveries

Loans written off

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2019
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An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

FPEE FREEE E=FEE 4 E

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BT BT BETIT BT T

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(1,314,079) (78,152) (1,411,506) (2,803,737)

(715,225) - - (715,225)

694,888 37,138 360,549 1,092,575

(24,163) 23,945 218 -

7,083 (171,363) 164,280 -

24,676 355 (25,031) -

22,438 84,080 (1,687,919) (1,581,401)

. - 3,179 3,179

34,206 2,234 - 36,440

76,808 10,223 (189,141) (102,110)

- - (64,217) (64,217)

- - 1,139,525 1,139,525

(35,044) (5,425) (94,520) (134,989)

(1,228,412) (96,965) (1,804,583) (3,129,960)
ETEEL 5B F=FEEE 4z

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

BIETE  EETT BN BETT

HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

(1,465,698) (175,629) (1,256,272) (2,897,599)

(570,059) - (95,873) (665,932)

384,436 149,053 230,641 764,130

(71,636) 1,918 69,718 -

8,157 (8,157) - -

7,078 81,267 (88,345) -

67,588 (138,779) (1,384,861) (1,456,052)

- - 1,351 1,351

326,780 8,568 (154,858) 180,490

- - (41,282) (41,282)

- - 1,270,702 1,270,702

(725) 3,607 37,573 40,455

(1,314,079) (78,152)  (1,411,506) (2,803,737)
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BRI (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. &RISEE 23. Financial investments
2020

BB #{bst

AEA 2 E RS

At fair value

through other L&A IEATE
comprehensive At amortised Gt
income cost Total
AT BAETT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[EE73 Treasury bills 46,278,659 - 46,278,659
HAthE# S Other debt securities 74,156,150 1,768,341 75,924,491
120,434,809 1,768,341 122,203,150
peiEs Certificates of deposit 9,621,228 116,794 9,738,022
B8 75 AT A Total debt securities and

certificates of deposit 130,056,037 1,885,135 131,941,172
VB HEH Impairment allowances - (147) (147)
130,056,037 1,884,988 131,941,025
oAl Others - 961,397 961,397
JE A 2E Impairment allowances - (67,290) (67,290)
- 894,107 894,107
Rtz Equity securities 54,109 - 54,109
130,110,146 2,779,095 132,889,241
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BRI (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. &FISE (8) 23. Financial investments (continued)
2019

DA a8 st

A HAt 2 AU 2

At fair value

through other
comprehensive DUERECATEE & Hazt
income At amortised cost Total
BEEETIT AT AT
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[EE73 Treasury bills 60,871,298 579,912 61,451,210
HAME R S5 Other debt securities 60,237,601 1,826,661 62,064,262
121,108,899 2,406,573 123,515,472
fe2 Gtk Certificates of deposit 21,753,091 156,470 21,909,561

B8 75 AT A Total debt securities and

certificates of deposit 142,861,990 2,563,043 145,425,033
AEAER Impairment allowances - (479) (479)
142,861,990 2,562,564 145,424,554
oAl Others - 1,356,265 1,356,265
JEAE A Impairment allowances - (53,045) (53,045)
- 1,303,220 1,303,220
Rtz Equity securities 31,163 - 31,163
142,893,153 3,865,784 146,758,937
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MR (&)
23. SRIEE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

MBS R EE BT A
A Z SR E R

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of financial investments

at fair value through other comprehensive income is, as follows:

VRIS R v a |
T
SRR FTRE F=RE #st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
7% 202041 3 1H At 1 January 2020 (43,920) - (181,868) (225,788)
B Addition (35,876) . - (35,876)
4% I HERD B B (R RS Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 18,187 - - 18,187
TR BRI (S Y Changes to model used for
impairment calculations 7,045 - - 7,045
JRE S B s Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations (3,638) - 844 (2,794)
PRS2 A2 EH Exchange difference (705) - - (705)
202012 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 (58,907) - (181,024) (239,931)
EPEEE BTMEEE BEMEE “E
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT BT AW BN
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
B20194F1H1H At 1 January 2019 (31,931) - (182,907) (214,838)
b2yl Addition (28,817) - - (28,817)
28 P HERR SUE 2 (N RSl Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 14,000 - - 14,000
VEREE S YL Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 2,699 - 1,039 3,738
DB R 72240 Exchange difference 129 - - 129
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 (43,920) - (181,868) (225,788)
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MR (&)
23. SRIEE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Financial investments (continued)

TEBH A R ARt B2

LI

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances of financial investments

at amortised cost is, as follows:

g FoEE  F=REE &=t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 (53,524) - - (53,524)
4% I HERD B B (R BRI Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 89 - - 89
Ly 2 Transfers to Stage 2 13,609  (13,609) - -
HA A 2P B 2 ] R g Impact on period end ECLs of
T ST A TR TR 2R 1Y exposures transferred between
=% stages during the period - (42,213) - (42,213)
TR BRI (S Y Changes to model used for
impairment calculations 346 500 - 846
T E S B Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 29,861 - - 29,861
PEE f 7= AE Exchange difference (2,496) - - (2,496)
% 2020 £ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 (12,115)  (55,322) - (67,437)
EoTEEE BT E=FEER “E
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT BT AW BN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20191 H1H At 1 January 2019 (65,765) - - (65,765)
28 PSR B 2 (N RSl Derecognised or repaid (excluding
) written off) 43,218 - - 43,218
VRIS YGRS Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations (31,149) - - (31,149)
PR 2 72 %H Exchange difference 172 - - 172
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019 (53,524) - - (53,524)
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M= (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. &FISE (8) 23. Financial investments (continued)
SR E T E st > 08 Financial investments is analysed by place of listing as follows:
I -
2020
IO IMI=L- w3
AEAMr 2wk

At fair value through
other comprehensive DA ST E

income At amortised cost

BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
B2 AT Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- REBLT - Listed in Hong Kong 13,911,436 565,492
- AEHLISN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong 9,501,322 1,202,716
23,412,758 1,768,208
- JEEM - Unlisted 106,643,279 116,780
130,056,037 1,884,988
HAth Others
- JELTH - Unlisted - 894,107
Rt Equity securities
- JELbTH - Unlisted 54,109 R
4=t Total 130,110,146 2,779,095
HAEEREH Y Fhigks Market value of listed securities at
g amortised cost 1.780.157
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M= (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. &FISE (8) 23. Financial investments (continued)
EREETE ik 4 Financial investments is analysed by place of listing as follows (continued):
W ()
2019
IPVAVIRIER ey
AFCAM g H U 4

At fair value through
other comprehensive DU R ER T &2

income At amortised cost
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B2 AT Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- REH&LEH - Listed in Hong Kong 10,535,687 564,909
- AEHBLISN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong 9,027,000 1,261,376
19,562,687 1,826,285
- JEEM - Unlisted 123,299,303 736,279
142,861,990 2,562,564
HAth Others
- JELTH - Unlisted - 1,303,220
i Equity securities
- JEEmH - Unlisted 31,163 -
4=t Total 142,893,153 3,865,784
HEERIRH Y Fiigs Market value of listed securities at
e amortised cost 1.837.033
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M HENRsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. &FISE (8) 23. Financial investments (continued)
GRS E S TR > Financial investments is analysed by type of issuer as follows:
AT
2020
IO IMI=L- w3
ARk

At fair value through
other comprehensive DB SR ATET B

income At amortised cost

AT AT
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEHEE Sovereigns 46,358,898 -
NIRRT Public sector entities 2,631,574 -
FRAT e H A 4 Rl i Banks and other financial institutions 53,643,974 2,779,095
NEIE Corporate entities 27,475,700 -
130,110,146 2,779,095
2019
PAA refE s LET
A A2 U S

At fair value through
other comprehensive DU ERRCAER T &2

income At amortised cost
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
=5t ] Sovereigns 60,949,904 579,838
NS EEAT Public sector entities 2,461,881 -
SRTT R H M SRl Banks and other financial institutions 57,697,920 3,285,946
INEfpE Corporate entities 21,783,448 -
142,893,153 3,865,784
#2020 412 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2020, included financial investments at fair value through other
BIEE GRITE (BEA) M comprehensive income of HK$2,631,574,000 which are eligible to be classified as public
ANy N8 REEm N & B sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules (2019: HK$2,461,881,000).

(ERIPRASIRIEk-Slery N2
L 2 T 2 HY R P 1
# W 2,631,574,000 T
(2019 & : &%
2,461,881,000 7T ) =
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M HENRsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24, B 24. Investment properties
2020 2019
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
W1H1H At 1 January 355,230 331,942
Al (EHR) UEs Fair value (losses)/gains (2,950) 16,573
E¥oEERE(2) BY Reclassification (to)/from properties,

3~ B R (HIEE plant and equipment (Note 25)

25) (11,200) 6,715
»12H31H At 31 December 341,080 355,230
&Y= 2 WRIEETETHEY The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the
FlERHARR AT 20T - leases as follows:

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEERE Held in Hong Kong

FHATHEY (4 50 47 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 177,240 170,650

i HATHZY (10 424 50 On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years)
£) 163,840 184,580
341,080 355,230

2020412 H 31 H » %l As at 31 December 2020, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at

NEEARBERNZILEY valuation carried out at 31 December 2020 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
ERWLT (S VR = h=eEii] firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price
FHTHIEHET T AR A 7 that would be received to sell each investment property in an orderly transaction with market

2020 4£ 12 A 31 HUA R participants at the measurement date.
18 Ry LB P e 1T 2 LA

& - AnfEfeEsrEEHE

AT B HY S BT [

MBS ENEG—IHK

BYZEERS AR -
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M ssitat (&)
25. Y3 ~ 236 Rkt

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Properties, plant and equipment

s - B
Esdiid
B EEtE
Equipment, [ERELE
BE fixtures Right-of-use d=t
Premises and fittings assets Total
BT BETT AT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
20201 H1H>Z Net book value at
HETHDFE 1 January 2020 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
g Additions 12,706 132,272 87,524 232,502
e Disposals - (1,533) - (1,533)
&k Revaluation (190,714) - - (190,714)
T Depreciation for the year (142,280)  (127,333) (249,521) (519,134)
A Transfer in 11,200 - - 11,200
PR T A5 Exchange difference 47,625 21,608 17,148 86,381
7 20204F12 H 31 H> Net book value at
HETEDFE 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
2020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020
FRAE AL (B Cost or valuation 7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
ZEtreE Accumulated depreciation - (855,509) (429,071)  (1,284,580)
202012 H 31 H> Net book value at
REHEDFE 31 December 2020 7,220,090 553,131 447,517 8,220,738
A E 2 RAME B The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
pag ix:1l N
7202012 H 31 H At 31 December 2020
HRAE At cost - 1,408,640 876,588 2,285,228
1 At valuation 7,220,090 - - 7,220,090
7,220,090 1,408,640 876,588 9,505,318
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25. W3 - BT RRE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
St~ [EE
B
P&
Equipment,  fEHEEE
S5 fixtures and  Right-of-use 4EGT
Premises fittings assets Total
AT AT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
201941 A1 HZ Net book value at
WRIADSHE 1 January 2019
FLEATIHR ~ MR D FE Net book value as previously reported 7,420,921 387,670 - 7,808,591
AT BRI B A IS 16 Effect of adoption of
SRS HKFRS 16 - - 599,748 599,748
VIR %6 e Balance after opening adjustments 7,420,921 387,670 599,748 8,408,339
HWE Additions 74,822 240,189 265,073 580,084
e & Disposals/Derecognition (2,082) (1,718) (751) (4,551)
Hif Revaluation 142,131 - - 142,131
FEREITE Depreciation for the year (136,084) (93,384) (266,087) (495,555)
fH Transfer out (6,715) - - (6,715)
PR 3 7225 Exchange difference (11,440) (4,640) (5,617) (21,697)
2019412 H 31 H>Z Net book value at
RETAFHE 31 December 2019 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019
ID&NEESRRIE Cost or valuation 7,481,553 1,273,551 843,660 9,598,764
e Accumulated depreciation - (745,434) (251,294) (996,728)
2019412 H 31 H>Z Net book value at
HRTHFHE 31 December 2019 7,481,553 528,117 592,366 8,602,036
baliE R > A E UG E The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
Pagis: AN
2019412 H 31 H At 31 December 2019
A At cost - 1,273,551 843,660 2,117,211
F{5E At valuation 7,481,553 - - 7,481,553
7,481,553 1,273,551 843,660 9,598,764
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WA ERENEE (8) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
25. W - B R EtE 25. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
FEE 2 WEH{EIEHAFE R The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
FARR AT AU follows:
2020 2019
BETIT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEERAE Held in Hong Kong
EHIFELY (83 50 4) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,346,583 4,572,188
HAFHZY (10 50 .
Zﬂjﬁﬁ 9 (1052 On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 2,097,590 2.161.352
HEEBINFE Held outside Hong Kong
HFHZY (10 4% 50
zﬁ)ﬁﬁ 9 (1042 On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 738,542 713,786
FEHARHEY (D 10 4F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 37,375 34,227
7,220,090 7,481,553
72020 12 H 31 H» % As at 31 December 2020, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
NEERERNZFE T out at 31 December 2020 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
AYE T8 T R & BT A 8 surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
HEHER T HEPE A S 2020 received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market participants at the
H£12 H 31 HUYAREE measurement date.
FERTETT Z B E -
REEEHEEHELER
Tk P BEAZ BB LT [ T 35
SHENET —HFEE
HUSHI(ER -
R bl E LS E BE As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
HEEFHEN FEEGRE recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:
5 B o R0 -
2020 2019
BETIT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(f&) /&t ErEE R (Decrease)/increase in valuation
iz EE CRE) (charged)/credited to premises revaluation
= reserve (184,028) 139,747
(fg) /&EtlEsEz B (Decrease)/increase in valuation
i CRE) /HE{E (charged)/credited to income statement (6,686) 2,384
(190,714) 142,131

2020 412 H 31 H & As at 31 December 2020, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
B E A A R 5 the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
PrEssiiR - A BEA depreciation was HK$905,492,000 (2019: HK$863,474,000).
BERNZ FEREFEE

By A& W 905,492,000 T

(2019 & @ B W

863,474,000 7T ) »
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. HihEE 26. Other assets
2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
el & Repossessed assets 7,220 10,851
HEE Precious metals 404,718 264,765
TEUTHETE K TR 2 Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,650,770 4,074,163
4,062,708 4,349,779
JRAE Impairment allowances (4,661) (3,161)
4,058,047 4,346,618

HHBERAR A 2 BB oA
Wk -

20201 H1H

pill|
S e BB (- BT
)

L S35

B = SR

PP B e I\ AR
TR IR R AR
=

PRIk RGN

2B

b S0 A2 5
A 2020412 H 31 H

HR2019FE1H1H

= pill|

88 11 HEERE SR AE B (O Eodil
)

MR

2 55 = [

P P B 2 Pl R
TSR TR R
&

TRES B

A
% 2019412 H 31 H

An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:

At 1 January 2020

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to model used for
impairment calculations

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2019

Addition

Derecognised or repaid (excluding
written off)

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on period end ECLs of
exposures transferred between
stages during the period

Changes to inputs used for
impairment calculations

Written off

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2019

243

ETEE  FOBE F=EE 85t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BETIT ABETRT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(1,280) - (1,881) (3,161)
(1,962) - - (1,962)
25 - 1,151 1,176

1 1 - -

1 - O] -

- (17) (354) (371)

1 1 - 2

939 1) (784) 154
(499) - - (499)
(2,774) (18) (1,869) (4,661)
HPEE  BTRSEE BEIEEE HEET
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(1,201) (11) (13) (1,225)
(1,133) - - (1,133)

- 11 8 19

2 (2) - -

629 - (629) -

- - (4,345) (4,345)

340 2 (681) (339)

- - 3,779 3,779

83 - - 83
(1,280) - (1,881) (3,161)
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BRI (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. A fofE#{LE ABEZE  27. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Z SRE

2020 2019
AT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
LA E Trading liabilities
- SNERASTEB RES - Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
ySke A Notes 6,650,987 5,048,559
#2020 &£ 12 H 31 H& At 31 December 2020, there were no financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
HIE Fs LA B 1Lt or loss (2019: Nil).
A&z &Rl & (2019
Frf|) o
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MR (8
28. B EES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

28. Deposits from customers and hedge accounting

(a) FFEEK

(a) Deposits from customers

2020 2019
BT BEETIT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BIHATE = R AR Tk Demand deposits and current accounts
- N\NH| - Corporate 42,636,283 38,228,957
- A - Personal 3,914,497 2,731,596
46,550,780 40,960,553
s E K Savings deposits
- NH] - Corporate 33,746,258 29,405,951
- @A - Personal 54,070,216 40,165,185
87,816,474 69,571,136
TEH ~ FHA RO AT Time, call and notice deposits
/e
- NE] - Corporate 131,872,167 133,731,637
- {EA - Personal 85,390,507 101,624,456
217,262,674 235,356,093
351,629,928 345,887,782

(b) Bfgs

(b) Hedge accounting

BINEIEIRIRE ST Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
#2020F12 A 31 H>
AREESUEH 5 NRHE
SHEMZ FEsca
W 2,162,425,000 T
( 2019 £ : & Mg
2,030,116,000 T ) By ¥t
HLE - PRI
R E -

As at 31 December 2020, a proportion of the Groups’s RMB-denominated deposits from
customers of HK$2,162,425,000 (2019: HK$2,030,116,000) were designated as a
hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign operations.

FERIZA IR Z IR
o BORT R W e P T
(2019 4 @ fE) -

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income statement
during the year (2019: Nil).
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B HENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
29. ERB{TEBEAEE 29. Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

e
2020 2019
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
(ET5855 R ATFES o T Debt securities and certificates of deposit, at
PHRCAT IR amortised cost
- TR - Certificates of deposit 10,747,857 6,378,269
- HAhERSEE 2 - Other debt securities 13,266,578 9,092,847
24,014,435 15,471,116
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30. HAMARIA R #ef

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. Other accounts and provisions

2020 2019
AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEAE Lease liabilities 454,070 582,911
HAFE(THRIE Other accounts payable 18,052,065 25,175,498
el Provisions 54,660 60,855
BRI BAE IR ETE Impairment allowances for loan commitments
T and financial guarantee contracts 164,014 89,576
18,724,809 25,908,840
A B8 R B B > BB o AT An analysis of changes in the corresponding impairment allowances is, as follows:
LN
FTEE SRR F=RE &t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AWTT BT BETRT BETT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$’°000
20201 H1H At 1 January 2020 89,558 18 - 89,576
il Addition 152,240 - - 152,240
bR CRELIETEH) Derecognised (excluding written off) (90,681) - - (90,681)
TR PR ES Transfers to Stage 1 17 (17 - .
TR T PRES Transfers to Stage 2 (4) 4 - -
HAPY £ B R\ A 3 Impact on period end ECLs of
TR HA K TR HATE 21 exposures transferred between
o stages during the period (13) 637 - 624
BRI E) Changes to model used for
impairment calculations (11,493) (74) - (11,567)
VERIEE Y vER[ s Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations 11,769 69 - 11,838
PE G 22 H Exchange difference 11,984 - - 11,984
2020412 H 31 H At 31 December 2020 163,377 637 - 164,014
ETEEE BTREEE E=FEE dast
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
20191 H1H At 1 January 2019 184,811 8 - 184,819
B Addition 73,196 - - 73,196
X FRESE CRELFEREY) Derecognised (excluding written off) (153,780) (1) - (153,781)
L ESY Sl (1214 Transfers to Stage 2 1) 1 - -
HAPY AP B > R B i 3 Impact on period end ECLs of
T AR THER IR Y exposures transferred between
P stages during the period - 18 - 18
VRS SR Changes to inputs used for impairment
calculations (11,654) - - (11,654)
PR 2 25 4H Exchange difference (3,014) (8) - (3,022)
7 2019412 H31H At 31 December 2019 89,558 18 - 89,576
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. PRIEMTH 31. Deferred taxation
BIERIEERE R ES: Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
BHIE1258 TSR | & bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
B B E A B IR A unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.
BLE AR B R IR AIME
& 7 B PR R R R
MR R R PR -
EEBBERNZIELERIE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet, and
EE) JEAEFEAES the movements during the year are as follows:
DU HAT N~ S8
T
2020
DoEEHTE
paricic|
Accelerated YIEERN WA
tax Property a2z Impairment Hith =t
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Other Total
AT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1 2020 At 1 January
1H1H 2020 40,868 1,173,512 - (389,790) (37,466) 787,124
&Iz Charged/(credited)
* to income
statement 3,801 2,554 - (142,834)  (116,480) (252,959)
SEeHAM S Credited to other
Yezs comprehensive
income - (46,489) - - (33,751) (80,240)
PR ST 2240 Exchange difference - 7,379 - (25,276) (1,395) (19,292)
#2020 At 31 December
12 H 31 2020
=i 44,669 1,136,956 - (557,900)  (189,092) 434,633
2019
TIEEyTE
TFEH » o
Accelerated YrZEEL B
tax Property 518 Impairment oAt st
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance Other Total
TR BWTE BT BMTE BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A 2019 & At 1 January
1H1H 2019 35,163 1,165,740 - (415,874) (56,541) 728,488
i/ (E)zedEs Charged/(credited)
= to income
statement 5,705 21 - 17,640 (24,723) (1,357)
fEaeH A 4 Charged to other
Hiezs comprehensive
income - 9,529 - - 45,724 55,253
VE S AR Exchange difference - (1,778) - 8,444 (1,926) 4,740
#2019 At 31 December
12 A 31 2019
B 40,868 1,173,512 - (389,790) (37,466) 787,124
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B SRENEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. RERIE (&) 31. Deferred taxation (continued)
A EREF B A R Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
TH & 7 B A TR T A legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
$5 0 T IR AEFR IR K [5]— taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
EURERE - BT RHE RE AR offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

A FIE RS TH 4 B ARSI
FEG MR - NI EEE
BEENTIR . &5 25t

N E R
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$ 000
IREFIEE Deferred tax assets (430,257) (58,000)
IEIEFR T A Deferred tax liabilities 864,890 845,124
434,633 787,124
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
IRIEFIEEE (8 12 Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
(EVSEELVED) twelve months (337,687) (142,858)
IRIEFRIEEE (i 12 Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
{ERBEZT) twelve months 903,250 936,655
565,563 793,797
2020 412 H 31 H A& As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
FEEHREFIEERIEEE losses amounting to HK$2,214,000 (2019: HK$2,256,000). These tax losses do not expire
2R B E BB under the current tax legislation.

2,214,000 7T (2019 4 :
% 2,256,000 7T ) - FZIAER
T ARSI IEE
TEREHARR -
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32.

33.

®BREAR

TSR AFIRE R 2029
HFEF|HE> 700,000,000
EITE S BEERE

FETASRITHY 2019 4 11
A 20 H % 17 2
700,000,000 TR #
KSR L R e E2E
TATE = )MABETE By — 3R
ZRHY 10 FEHATR (T 2
% ) AR (BRIT% (B
) HAT) 250 - 1%
SRS 2029 42 11 H 20
HEH - BRMEEE N R
2024 11 H 20 H - B3
ITHEHSEMEEH £
E Ry 3.80% AN E—
Ko Hik o HEHEARIE B
PR E R TR HIAR
GEMERG 5 FHIEE
BRI S 300 218 B
EREGEE R A
PRAT H A B M 2 1 B
PRI s B i R S i ey
> SRR E BT AT Y (4T B 1
DLSR i (B ml A A (IR
o) S -

EZS

ST RSV
7,000,000 538 HE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
32. Subordinated liabilities

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
US$700 million fixed rate subordinated notes issued
due 2029 at amortised cost
5,416,390 5,438,386

This represents US$700,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year subordinated notes qualifying
as Tier 2 capital of the Bank issued on 20 November 2019 in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The Notes
will mature on 20 November 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on 20 November
2024. Interest at 3.80% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereatfter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and
the Notes will bear interest at the prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 218 basis points.
The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes at the
option of the Bank in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption date or
for tax or regulatory reasons at any time prior to maturity of the Notes.

33. Share capital

2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
Issued and fully paid:
7.000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517
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34. FIMEATH

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. Additional equity instruments

12 E3RTTR AR R R
BN RE AT

AT 2017 26 H 2 H
ST T REE 12 BT
CHOBRAH BH S T R AN 1R 55
{E WS 93.15 BT RIARA
IEREF RGP HI— &
#r (THYNEARTER ) -
ek ABINEA T ER
2022 4 6 H 2 HE{EfA
S 0] E SR SRR A ERE
172 5.00% - @l AR A T
S [l > SEEAEA R 5
FHER 5 FHREEE
R B RAV A ER A0 L
WGBS TR ZER -

EEREPFIRMN KA
IRITA MR EINE A
T HAIRRRE BUS AR
BIC TMAUHIFIER g R
1 - 280 > AERATIRER R
i ) 2 208 RE P B3 R AR S
HET—REBFE Ryl

B fF A A SRIT A
A BT Al A
s BEYNEA TR
R Gt R R
& B HoAs 5 T AT
B

fr 2022 46 F 2 H = {Ef]
HEAREH  ARTHA
S o O [ A R A 5 Y
HHNEALE (BAZES
B2 R S AR P PR A -

2020 FF(N - ARERITILAT
MINEARTHEER 6 T8
ETT B4R 2020 4
6 H 1 Hf12020 4E 12 H
1 HERZN 3 FEFET -
(2019 4F: 6 TEFET) »

2020 2019
BT A
HK$’000 HK$’000
US$1,200 million perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 9,314,890 9,314,890

On 2 June 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1
capital securities (“additional equity instruments”) with a face value of US$1,200 million
(equivalent to HK$9,315 million net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.00% coupon until the first call date on 2 June 2022.
The coupon will be reset every 5 years if the additional equity instruments are not redeemed
to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial
spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right to cancel coupon
payment (subjected to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the additional
equity instruments) and the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is
stopped from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless the next scheduled
coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down to the amount as
directed or agreed with the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would become
non-viable if there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional equity instruments from
2 June 2022 or any subsequent coupon payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in
the terms and conditions.

The Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity instruments for a total amount
US$60 million during the year 2020, for each US$30 million was distributed on 1 June 2020
and 1 December 2020 separately (2019: US$60 million).
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MGHZEHTsE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
35. 45 HEHRERMEE 35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) B2 FHEHERRAT (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash inflow/(outflow)

252

BBHEZTH/A before taxation
(FiH:) &
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
= or=y | Operating profit 4,229,255 4,459,755
Pree Depreciation 519,134 495,555
JE G R Net charge of impairment allowances 1,359,147 1,160,079
PR AE o g Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (3,179) (1,351)
TS Sk (kR Advances written off net of recoveries
EE D) (1,075,308) (1,229,420)
THE &G EZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 18,838 23,233
“EAEMNESZH Interest expense on subordinated liabilities 209,386 24,007
JEEIHE H 3 3 {E H Change in balances with banks and other
ZAFHUERTT R At financial institutions with original maturity
SRR IESER over three months
E)| 635,824 1,205,481
JEEIHA H 4 3 {E H Change in placements with banks and other
ZAESRAT R HA < financial institutions with original maturity
RS ~ TEHRTRI over three months
) 7,561,189 8,935,238
NefEg(bst AT e Change in financial assets at fair value through
ZSERE 2 ) profit or loss (10,757,524) (4,960,982)
PRl T B > S Change in derivative financial instruments 853,943 298,741
B R HA R TE > 8% Change in advances and other accounts
] (14,998,176) (9,388,449)
SRS E > S Change in financial investments 9,796,568 (30,029,254)
Hith & - 8E) Change in other assets 287,570 (1,943,882)
SRAT e E Al < A Change in deposits and balances from banks
P IERR R 45 a2 SR and other financial institutions 2,080,195 1,884,824
NEE T ARG Change in financial liabilities at fair value
SREEE 2 ) through profit or loss 1,602,428 245,283
ZETE 2 ) Change in deposits from customers 5,742,146 1,682,843
HAARTE R Rt 2 2 Change in other accounts and provisions
g (7,107,403) 6,271,651
PR R )y 2 Effect of changes in exchange rates 117,314 (235,377)
el &t e 2 m Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before taxation
A/ CGRdD 1,071,347 (21,102,025)
SR ISR e e Cash flows from operating activities included:
e
- BRI - Interest received 12,587,648 14,933,555
- BFIE - Interest paid (6,658,081) (7,928,669)
- TR - Dividend received 2,165 2,315
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. e MERME:  35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(&)

(b) HE R FRRESH
Bé&&FD

JEEAFE & e R E I H
TE 3 {8 A A Z A
RAT R HA b
FEVESER

JREIHIEAE 3 {1 5 A
ZAESAT R HoA
Rl EHIEIT

JREFIEAE 3 AN
2%

JREIHIEAE 3 {1 5 A
P CioA

(c) MEEHRAEE
L)

DT EB 7 M
FRAH1TH
FENET

12731 H

®REEE
B1H1H
e
BATRE BT
FragfTE
ST EITRE AR
HIpA
TR EAERE
FEER i)
JERT S TE A
I RETENZ
oy
HPEEZET)

12731 H

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity
within three months

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturity within three
months

Treasury bills with original maturity within three
months

Certificates of deposit held with original maturity

within three months

Debt securities and

certificates of deposit in issue
At 1 January
Issuance during the year

At 31 December

Subordinated liabilities
At 1 January
Cash flows:
Issue of subordinated debt net of cost

Cost paid for issuance of
subordinated liabilities
Distribution payment for subordinated liabilities
Non-cash changes:
Accrued expense in relation to issuance cost
Amortisation of discount and issuance cost

Foreign exchange movement

At 31 December
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(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2020 2019
BT AT
HK$000 HK$'000

48,556,255 31,073,266

- 2,339,179
1,182,972 7,683,844
- 77,483
49,739,227 41,173,772
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
15,471,116 12,192,974
8,543,319 3,278,142
24,014,435 15,471,116
5,438,386 -
- 5,447,665

(168) -
(206,187) -

- (5,338)

209,386 24,007
(25,027) (27,948)
5,416,390 5,438,386
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M HRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
35. e MERME:  35. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(&)
(c) phEERABF (c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (continued)
g (8)
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEE Lease liabilities
wW1H1H At 1 January 582,911 -
BRANER AR T o A Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16
IS 16 SRz s - 574,297
WemeE Cash flows:
TITHEA&E Payment of lease liabilities (267,165) (266,719)
e ) Non-cash changes:
g Additions 86,947 286,638
oA Others 51,378 (11,305)
w12 31 H At 31 December 454,071 582,911
36. SKAREBERRIE 36. Contingent liabilities and commitments
AR E RIE T 2B The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of contingent
BMEATRILERZEEH liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared
E R L =N ITE L SN = with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.
HIHE TR G4
J 4 AE B R B v B R
A -
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HBEEERIEH Direct credit substitutes 12,329,692 9,065,919
BAXZ S A 2 SR & (B Transaction-related contingencies 1,439,767 1,186,892
i AR 2 SR EE Trade-related contingencies 18,734,669 14,257,903
HEEENEENSE Asset sales with recourse 498,543 411,796
NSy R ENp R Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
P K without prior notice 109,315,008 105,148,404
ELARES » REHAE K Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 EWPUT - up to one year 2,251,261 2,678,142
-1 8D E - over one year 16,002,949 15,450,806
160,571,889 148,199,862
EE R ISR Credit risk-weighted amount 16,409,407 16,645,823
{5 & g i B A = RS The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
CERTTEE (BA) HiH) =t The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics
B o ILEFEEUR AR B of each type of contract.
FIEN R AR EE 2
PR
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MsaEREN=: () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

37. BEAREE 37. Capital commitments
REEAR NS HR T The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
HZEARESTNOT statements:
2020 2019
BT AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt A B S 4 E R Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 59,203 73,723
B EREY Authorised but not contracted for 2,659 2,332
61,862 76,055
DA BRI R 57 Fors The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
W A BB R {4 Rk equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
R AEEZ EFEET
TR AEHE -
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38. ETHERIE

ERUEFEA

TRIZA AN 2 BT
BHEY > M RAEE
BB HRT SRR
A B Z e

&

Reysd o2
- i 1A
-1 ELEE 5 FER

REE LK EHERR
THH B - A
WEH R 1 FE S F
AKX — R ZR

RIS -

39. R

A 55 ] I 1 3 2 TR 80T
NEARAVRIE R R -
PR E R R E AR
FFIEH S EAR -

N EER B AR
R AME A bk siE
ST R AT KA
PR BOEARBBEFRE
[LZRAEAF A -

39.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

38. Operating lease commitments

As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases:

2020 2019
AT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000

Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 8,224 12,811
- Later than one year but not later than five years 4,226 6,497
12,450 19,308

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to five years. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits.

Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the directors
believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved
in these claims are not expected to be material.

256



5 NCB #:§#1% 441

W EmRITE (48)
40. YEEEE
(a) HEBESE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
40. Segmental reporting

(a) By operating segment

AERBER R R U(E £
SIS A BB ASRAT ~
SERAT ~ B i

& o

B SRATRI A BRI T35
G At 2 ImaR TR
% (E ST ER
BEAZER > mdERT
EBRERBIEE AR
e BERMESEBGC BR T
HEEES > EHEaE
REBATEA  REE S
FSRFISMNER - A%
BE PR A BRI
TEEIRIEA > Ry H A
SRt ES > WL
ASRATRI AR SRR T S5 4%
B W F RS Bl o BT HU S
&S - R 2
NE &5 TR EEN
B0 B S WS (H A 1
TE - EAMFEESIHIN &
EBEEER > CEfEL
Al 3 g 4 2 [ R U S =
o HHEEREAMEERIL
PSS ot Pl N
(s AR &
SEBHIRR B R S
AfEREED -

R BRI E
=2 4% B A AT 66 FH 9 3%
- B A ERY)
5 HASEB R
VIRV 5 RS [ 1%
HEEBGINEM - &R
kA= - (o
Bl) ZEAEFrEENE
A Ho g IR TSR Y 5 W R
HEH CEERILES
SYHEN

PHA, RSB H A
Fe R EFEA R A SR R
B (E B L 6 U6 ¥ 75 G
RERYIHE -

—{E S H SR AU A B 32
> RS EERER
HEBGRVIHE - ZENE
HEH > SRR G EEA
#oy -

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services.
Personal Banking serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals with non-
individual customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing the capital,
liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and receives funds from
deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These inter-
segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of
the Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect the
effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss information in
relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and liabilities information about
Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting units. Charges
are paid to this segment from other business segments based on market rates per square
foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The exchange difference arising from
capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income statement, is
also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of items related to the
Group as a whole and totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items directly
attributable to the segment. For management overheads, allocations are made on
reasonable bases.
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40. EwE (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
40. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

B ASRT EEGRAT
Personal Corporate MEER BE Hith INET APEES =t
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
AETT AETT EETT BET T BET T AT BET T AETT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#HZE 202012 5 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2020
AFIEUA (SZH)  Netinterest
income/(expense)
- Ik - External (258,654) 4528931 2,098,210 6,368,487 - 6,368,487
_ A - =
BSETS Inter-segment 1,140,731 165,166  (1,305,897) ; ) )
882,077 4,694,097 792,313 - - 6,368,487 - 6,368,487
TFIRFSE U A,  Net fee and commission
(ZHH) income/(expense) 840,539 684,905 95,274 61 (1,323) 1,619,456 - 1,619,456
SRS M/ (E5HE)  Net trading gain/(loss) 39,499 436,291  (667,019) 272,085 1" 80,867 - 80,867
DI fES bt AJEZ:  Net gain on financial
Z e T EREE instruments at fair value
through profit or loss - - 435,846 - - 435,846 - 435,846
HAMpRnE E 2 Net (loss)/gain on other
(BBi8) /WS financial assets - (14,529) 264,298 - - 249,769 - 249,769
HAGEYLA /()  Other operating
income/(expense) 23,248 (67,735) 44,487 145,403 7,332 152,735 (134,147) 18,588
REUREREFERT B Net operating income
BUTA before impairment
allowances 1,785,363 5,733,029 965,199 417,549 6,020 8,907,160 (134,147) 8,773,013
TGSl (F55)  Net reversal/(charge) of
impairment allowances 371,524 (1,703,766)  (25,950) - (955)  (1,359,147) - (1,359,147)
TRERBUTA Net operating income 2,156,887 4,029,263 939,249 417,549 5,065 7,548,013 (134,147) 7,413,866
47 Operating expenses (1,065,254) (1,259,203)  (446,381) (407,186) (140,734)  (3,318,758) 134,147  (3,184,611)
KBTI (f51E) Operating profit/(loss) 1,091,633 2,770,060 492,868 10,363 (135,669) 4,229,255 - 4,229,255
EEYIEN EF%EE > Net loss from fair value
TR adjustments on
investment properties - - - (2,950) - (2,950) - (2,950)
e SEEYEE - 236 Net loss from disposal/
&GP i revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - - - (7,899) - (7,899) - (7,899)
ErganER (BE) Profit/(loss) before
taxation 1,091,633 2,770,060 492,868 (486) (135,669) 4,218,406 - 4,218,406
R20204£12H 31 H At 31 December 2020
HiE ASSETS
SEEE Segment assets 61,054,867 219,333,199 214,741,486 8,616,662 1,951,947 505,698,161 - 505,698,161
j=Ti- LIABILITIES
S EE Segment liabilities 145,604,471 221,972,695 71,631,122 3,056 3,459,096 442,670,440 - 442,670,440
HZ= 202012 F 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2020
H A&k} Other information
EAM Capital expenditure - - - 144,978 - 144,978 - 144,978
e Depreciation 54,919 33,112 3,423 407,174 20,506 519,134 - 519,134
S Amortisation of securities - - (73,790) - - (73,790) - (73,790)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

(B ASRAT T
Personal Corporate A &3E# K& FAt Nt A e
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
AT AT AT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE 2019412 H 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2019
HFEWA (2D Net interest
income/(expense)
- IR - Exteral (918,627) 4907162 2,661,654 . - 6650189 - 6,650,189
- B - Inter-segment
BRI 9 1,945,064 (273,824) (1,671,240) - - - -
1,026,437 4,633,338 990,414 - - 6,650,189 - 6,650,189
TR E RS A . Net fee and commission
(FH) income/(expense) 639,963 886,225 4,943 609 (2,618) 1,529,122 - 1,529,122
Ao /(f5#H)  Nettrading gain/(loss) 35,559 772296 (544,019) (81,251) (70) 182,515 - 182,515
DA fE8 (L5 AIEZ5  Net gain on financial
s W =hl g instruments at fair value
through profit or loss 398,797 - - 398,797 - 398,797
HA @ e 2 UL Net gain on other financial
5 assets* (3,621) 222,684 - - 219,063 - 219,063
HA &L= A Other operating income - 142,412 9,586 151,998 (129,286) 22,712
FEHUREAER AT F4E  Net operating income
A before impairment
allowances 1,701,959 6,288,238 1,072,819 61,770 6,898 9,131,684 (129,286) 9,002,398
S FEE/(JE)  Net reversal/(charge) of
impairment allowances 900,464 (1,987,542) (69,155) - (3,846) (1,160,079) - (1,160,079)
PEEAC=AVI PN Net operating income 2,602,423 4,300,696 1,003,664 61,770 3,052 7,971,605 (129,286) 7,842,319
= Operating expenses (1,152,260) (1,617,710) (119,123) (394,855) (227,902) (3,511,850) 129,286 (3,382,564)
@esfl () Operating profit/(loss) 1,450,163 2,682,986 884,541 (333,085) (224,850) 4,459,755 - 4,459,755
EYEE A EFH% > Net gain from fair value
e adjustments on
investment properties - 16,573 - 16,573 - 16,573
HE EEY)ZE - 2844 Net gain from disposal/
&l paclien revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 365 - 365 - 365
ERfanEA (FE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,450,163 2,682,986 884,541 (316,147) (224,850) 4,476,693 - 4,476,693
2019412 5 31 H At 31 December 2019
EE ASSETS
SEEE Segment assets 54,393,630 210,168,751 215,859,086 8,991,932 175,448 489,588,847 - 489,588,847
Faf LIABILITIES
A E Segment liabilities 145,867,828 212,940,069 68,325,683 3,654 3,660,821 430,798,055 - 430,798,055
#HZE 20194F 12 H 31 Year ended 31 December
H 2019
HAth &} Other information
AL H Capital expenditure - - - 315,011 - 315,011 - 315,011
e Depreciation 53,672 27,946 1,669 389,948 22,320 495,555 - 495,555
ey 5 Amortisation of securities - - 705,551 - - 705,551 - 705,551

* HotREECER T HENARESE
{Eet ARG 2 SR T AP U &4

FZEBITA -
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s EENEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. 7ERE (&) 40. Segmental reporting (continued)
(b) HEE IR E Sy (b) By geographical area
LT B RHERB I E A E] The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations of the
[y B St BE OSRE  41E subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
KT BED Bl a s reporting the results or booking the assets:
RSB EERIRZ
ST
2020 2019
REUBE A AT o TREUBMAREMRD
ZRRERA BRERRT PO AL AIN R}
Net operating il Net operating el
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT BT BT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
s Hong Kong 5,661,635 3,550,593 6,050,621 3,524,315
o [g] AT3 Mainland of China 3,111,378 667,813 2,951,777 952,378
&it Total 8,773,013 4,218,406 9,002,398 4,476,693
2020
BRARAFRE
Contingent
egE Haf JERBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
AT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T Hong Kong 336,658,287 289,806,208 7,038,442 60,975,919
o [g] ATHE, Mainland of China 169,039,874 152,864,232 1,531,652 99,595,970
&it Total 505,698,161 442,670,440 8,570,094 160,571,889
2019
ERREFIRE
Contingent
WA AR IR B E liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BETIT BT AT AT
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
T Hong Kong 333,928,237 290,086,716 7,374,231 60,761,517
o [57] ATHE Mainland of China 155,660,610 140,711,339 1,594,540 87,438,345
&t Total 489,588,847 430,798,055 8,968,771 148,199,862
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IsERFNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. BEIRHEE 41. Assets pledged as security

2020 £12 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2020, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$8,408,994,000 (2019:
N £ 7 B EE HK$7,297,290,000) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate
8,408,994,000 T (2019 settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
0 A 7,297,290,000 HK$17,562,996,000 (2019: HK$16,137,369,000) were secured by debt securities and bills
7T ) BLAERA PR related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group
S LMFEFGEE 2 EEE to secure these liabilites was HK$27,016,893,000 (2019: HK$24,233,069,000) mainly
FEAR - HhAN s AEEFEEE included in “Trading assets” and “Financial investments”.

%ol e I (R 5 58 4 K

ERERRT SR

17,562,996,000 7T (2019
4 ¢ s 16,137,369,000
L) AEEBERILE S
TR 2 B B R
27,016,893,000 T
(2019 & : &%
24,233,069,000 7T ) A E
H TR
R, PIFIAR
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BRI (&)
42. SRTHIEH

TRIRAEEERH 2
BT M R G R AR R A
B RR M TR

BE
PTEERTE

Atz

Rt

&R
PTEERTE

NUAS )

Assets

Derivative financial
instruments

Other assets

Liabilities

Derivative financial
instruments

Other liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42, Offsetting financial instruments

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,

enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

2020
FRERBEABRPEHZ
RRESEET RAEARE e
B EEAe Piriygm  Related amounts
ERET4R B (A LR BAE not set off in the balance
ZEEYE%E Gross amounts Net amounts sheet
Gross of recognised of financial BUWEZ
amounts of financial assets HEH
recognised liabilities set presented in SRTH Cash
financial off inthe the balance Financial collateral peizict
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
514,215 - 514,215 (507,535) (5,349) 1,331
1,504,891 (1,278,696) 226,195 - - 226,195
2,019,106 (1,278,696) 740,410 (507,535) (5,349) 227,526
2020
FERBEABRPEHZ
i NEEaEE HHER S
REEEMET  FIITEHE Related amounts
CHEISR BT TR =25 not set off in the balance
S ik RIZEGRIE Net amounts sheet
Gross Gross amounts of financial [Stiivg v
amounts of of recognised liabilities HEH T
recognised financial assets presented in SMTHE Cash
financial set off in the the balance Financial collateral TREE
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BRETIT BT BT BRETIT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
1,710,709 - 1,710,709 (507,535) (510,362) 692,812
1,348,560 (1,278,696) 69,864 - - 69,864
3,059,269 (1,278,696) 1,780,573 (507,535) (510,362) 762,676
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AseERF=NEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
42. &FITH S (&) 42. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

2019
*ﬁﬁ@‘é@%{ﬁ%tﬁ&ﬁﬁz
WEEAEET NEEAME T80
R ORERS DAL SR Related amounts
e il 4 4 B pag notsetoff in the balance
GiEEdusd  Gross amounts Net amounts of sheet
Gross of recognised financial BEUgEL
amounts of financial assets RS
recognised liabilities set off presented in SR T H Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Financial collateral JHAR
assets sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
HAHTIT HEMETTT HHETIT HAHTIT HERETTT HBHETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE Assets
PTEER TR Derivative financial
instruments 286,461 - 286,461 (91,650) (4,750) 190,061
HAtr & Other assets 1,233,651 (1,068,483) 165,168 - - 165,168
1,520,112 (1,068,483) 451,629 (91,650) (4,750) 355,229
2019
RENHEARRTEHZ
NEEAME Al 85
REEAMET $ylrmgRp  Related amounts
e 2 O Gffpgag  notsetoff in the balance
= R AENEAH Net amounts of sheet
Gross Gross amounts financial B
amounts of of recognised liabilities b LT
recognised financial assets  presented in SR TE Cash
financial set off in the the balance Financial collateral Pz
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
AMETTT ARMET-TT ARMETTT AMETTT ARMETTT ARMETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiE Liabilities
TR T B Derivative financial
instruments 407,793 - 407,793 (91,650) (127,243) 188,900
Hpth & Other liabilities 1,135,622 (1,068,483) 67,139 - - 67,139
1,543,415 (1,068,483) 474,932 (91,650) (127,243) 256,039
WARERESITAERSINMTAE T E For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and repurchase transactions
FIER [BIERT 5 F A4S B 4E T, entered into by the Group, related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an
R (P =i ek E O MR =X event of default or other predetermined events occur.

ERVEM > AR —RX 58T 2
IoH B B T R AAAS 5L -
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MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43. SRIEEER 43. Transfers of financial assets
#2020 £ K 2019 &£ 12 H As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no transferred financial assets of the Group
31 H REBIGAERTELL that do not qualify for derecognition.
IFHESR R M 2 A% S il
B o
44, EEEH 44. Loans to directors
REEE (ARG 5 Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
383 (&K (ANE (JEESE Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
FlZRERE) BB) 5 =20rY of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
HE o AR TE SRt
ZEFEEHEOT
2020 2019
BETIT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
PR AREEHRH Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
A5 HEER at year end 498 535
NERNREERRZ S 2 Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
= A outstanding during the year 535 572
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W wmRITE ()  Notes

to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. FE 7 FRIE A L35 45. Significant related party transactions

BN EIR AR General information of the parent companies:

B I B R N ] The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited (“Cinda

SRR AT (EaEd Financial Holdings”), the Group’s ultimate holding company is China Cinda Asset

P2 ) o AP A T Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”) which is a state-owned financial enterprise

(EE R SR AT established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by the Ministry of Finance (the
(MBI ) Wi R “MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

L chE AR AR G Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange").

(THABED ) P EEARS
FOEE (TR ) pRIZHIEDA
RS o HRIMEE
Bra X BATARAE( &
BAZAT ) EHsS o

(a) ERPAFRFFAE (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
Ve HoAth A 5 controlled by the parent companies
TR 5
REEE Y BN The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings which is in turn

RiEEel MilEEs
R hE S (F)
pAIRAE (SRS
) B hEfE R
(R AT
L o BV
ANBHBE B
SR YNGEIale )1
AP EEAE
B BB S R
5% -

o B (5 B S A P
B SHEAERIERS

KH oy 1o b5 R HE AT
R A IREE PR
1% 2020 £ 12 H 31 H»
ARG B R H AR By
5l 18,219,567,000 7T
(2019 4 : & ¥
31,036,307,000 7T ) - &
2020 £ 12 A 31 H
IR > B fE R
LR S AR 2
M R R B
388,867,000 7T (2019
W 791,727,000
T

controlled by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”).
China Cinda is the controlling entity of Cinda Hong Kong and its major shareholder
and de facto controller is MOF, which is one of the ministries under the State Council
of the PRC Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue and
expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits from customers. As
at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$18,219,567,000 (2019: HK$31,036,307,000). The aggregate amount of expenses
of the Group arising from these transactions with China Cinda for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$388,867,000 (2019: HK$791,727,000).
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W EmRITE (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. FE > ERiE A 135 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(&)

(a) BHRAFRBAHE
EH 2 H =]
TR 5 (8D

R BUE B R AT
HIZ 5 I8 8 & Pk o
#2020 12 H 31 H»
A SR B AR TR AR A Ry
e 6,917,977,000 T
(2019 4 @ & ¥
1,089,436,000 7T ) - #
% 2020 /£ 12 H 31 H
IEFERE > B HEER ERL
s mE T EL
HY S 4888 R B IS
46,160,000 jt ( 2019
0 &R 79,946,000
gL

Ry BLRE A B
At A F I 5005 E
A - 1t 2020 4R 12
H 31 B ASEEHR
H & ®E B
959,214,000 ¢ (2019
A1 1,353,269,000
JC ) E 2020 £ 12 H
31 HIEAEE - BRI
P 2 Bt mIRE Ut
SR A P A U
A BB E B E
85,080,000 st ( 2019
4 R 102,058,000
gL

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from deposits from
customers. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$6,917,977,000 (2019: HK$1,089,436,000 ). The aggregate amount of expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with Cinda Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$46,160,000 (2019: HK$79,946,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from financial investments. As at 31 December 2020, the related aggregate
amount of the Group was HK$959,214,000 (2019: HK$1,353,269,000). The aggregate
amount of income of the Group arising from these transactions with other companies
controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$
85,080,000 (2019: HK$102,058,000).
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W EmRITE (48)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. FE > ERiE A 135 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(&)

(a) BHRAFRBAHE
EH 2 H =]
TR 5 (8D

KER oy BIEE AN EI PR 2
HALAFINL ZRE P
BRAMEBEEFR - A
202012 H 31 H» &
S A A R T KA RS
Byl 49,184,000 I
(2019 4 : K ¥
439,391,000 77 ) F ki
7,656,394,000 7T( 2019
41 RS 7,415,131,000
TC ) #E 2020 4E 12 A
31 HIEHFE - SR H]
el 2 FoAh 2N SRk
BT AR TP E AL
AR HaEE Sy ) R s
#% 10,000,000 77 (2019
AF: s 37,082,000 7T )
R 139,305,000 T
(2019 4 @ # "
184,133,000 7T

bR LA EE S - B A
BEAE] BRI
A R EITHIR AL
FEK -

AEEAEIEF R
PEE T B T HRA TSRS
R EFE SR AR

BEREWTHELS -

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies

controlled by the parent companies (continued)

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
arises from advances to customers and deposits from customers. As at 31 December
2020, the related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$49,184,000 (31 December
2019: HK$439,391,000) and HK$7,656,394,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$7,415,131,000) respectively. The aggregate amount of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies for the period ended 31 December 2020 were HK$10,000,000 (2019:
HK$37,082,000) and HK$139,305,000 (2019: HK$184,133,000) respectively.

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the other
companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered material.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.
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M HRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. FE > ERiE A 135 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(b) BB ITHERS - (T (b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
R~ M B R At state controlled entities
BAEHIER S
th#E A R LRI B The Group is subject to the control of the MOF of the PRC Government, which also
EAREBEE RIS > I8 directly or indirectly controls a significant number of entities through its government
I RIS~ (A authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into
1~ B T A S HAt R banking transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
i e E e controlled entities in the normal course of business at commercial terms.

PERIA LA B4 -
S — S B
BUF U (CTL0%H - I
T 8 S B
BT R AR5
25 -

B SEEEREE These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:
A TFIETIE

- B8 RS IE - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
R

- RITHEIZE T4 - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
R 5

- HE - EE - i RE - sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
o] A R A R B controlled entities;
BEFTE T 2 (H57

- FRALINGE - PR R AR R - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

KER
- RELEEER K - provision of fiduciary activities; and

o

LEd - - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage services.

3
BIE R R

WE N
TH

o

o
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ERFNEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

45. FE 7 FRIE A L3S 45. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(c)

(d)

FEEEAR

FHEEEAERRERE
b BE B B SR H R
HESI R A~ 15
BREEEEEBZ
ANt BfEEE RS
EHAA - ALEIEE
WEBTEHT T
[EIEPN 2 VLR S
RAERU G ERE -
AR ER  AHE
A% A BLAGRAT R H
RN EZ XS E
AR EBEHA R AL
HEITEAR S ©

THEEABEZE 12
F 31 Bk
wr -

Fr B e At B
TEH
BIRER]

1 2020 4 12 A 31
H o REHTEHERE
AR b — A RS
EWRKET S E
2B FY JHE U e JRE A B
J& /X B K SR oy
A By 3 115,000 7T
(2019 4F @ g
107,000 7t ) Rl
1,663,287,000 It
(2019 4F : g
1,448,109,000 7 ) -

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including Directors and Senior Management. The Group accepts deposits from and
grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction was
conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as
well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
detailed as follows:

2020 2019
SeMeT5T AT
HK$°000 HK$°000

Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 44,377 63,868
Post-employment benefits 3,342 3,610
47,719 67,478

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$115,000 (2019:
HK$107,000) and HK$1,663,287,000 (2019: HK$1,448,109,000) respectively.
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BRI (&)
46. EUMEfAE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. International claims

LT o3t /92 S BRI
RITRGGEt 2 B ERHE
HSESE R MR - BIFE
IS S TR
P AR 1% LIS S
FrZ AR R R AR AR 5
oyt HEERIBRERTA R
W Z PSR R A 2 S
WERE - TR HEORA

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head office
is located.

Pt < 5 TRt
A - F bR R 24
PRANZFRER! - (AR
AT ZMINAT o HEbR
W G 2R T 2 HET
FRAEs -

G B (8 1 2 B g
HEsT R &R
P {4 4H 10% B0 1

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of
the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

AR
2020
FESRITRANMERE
Non-bank private sector
FESRAT
SRR FeRl
BT Non-bank AN
$RIT Official financial Non-financial st
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AT AT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o R P A, Mainland of China 34,673,834 1,476,345 4,629,391 54,192,957 94,972,527
T Hong Kong 1,443,147 16,656 12,088,085 36,578,686 50,126,574
2019
FESRATRAN IS
Non-bank private sector
IFSHIT j
RS FEl
BT Non-bank FANRE
$RT Official financial  Non-financial 4=t
Banks sector institutions  private sector Total
AT T AT T ARTT AT T AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o [5] A H Mainland of China 42,223,336 1,883,332 989,130 51,916,012 97,011,810
Tk Hong Kong 1,918,471 22,586 6,340,831 40,317,702 48,599,590
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47. JERITHINESE&$E 47. Non-bank Mainland exposures

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BIERTR S H THIAM
A B L AR 3R Z oy i T 2
RARANHEBZSER
HAEAVE RIS TR Y Z %
TS ) e B B S 51 2
3 o PLERIERT AR T I

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank

counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

HUCERTER B A
_JZV\Ti’[ﬁﬂFEz@@%
2020
BEAE BESE
S FNH AN
WFRIEE JE\BG AR R
Items in On-balance Off-balance  4&EFERRE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BETIT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RO~ tROREURHFARY Central government, central
i - HINB AT REE government-owned entities and their
iioe S subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 72.205.517 4.859.009 77.064.526
HWOFBUR ~ 5 BTy Local governments, local government-
Wi - HiN@ AT REGE owned entities and their subsidiaries
1% and joint ventures 2 30,462,602 6,444,682 36,907,374
| N E R EAMFE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland
AEEHIIAE ~ TR A or other entities incorporated in
B R EERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 87,602,705 23,597,925 111,200,630
FafEfE Fultss—IEhoEy  Other entities of central government
JF RS Al AR not reported in item 1 above 4 3,199,293 230,593 3,429,886
NeEFhfE Fass —IEHLTEL - Other entities of local governments
ISA S OEER ik not reported in item 2 above 5 764,218 - 764,218
FEFEESNE REEEESNTE  PRC nationals residing outside
RS - EHNERN Mainland or entities incorporated
EE outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 14,763,736 1,280,597 16,044,333
Hixs 55 FmEEEEE  Other counterparties where the
WA By ESRT T A A S exposures are considered to be
HRIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,994,587 449,258 6,443,845
HaEt Total 8 214,992,748 36,862,064 251,854,812
HIUBCES S 1% & FELEEH Total assets after provision 9 517,103,055
BEABEENGRKZYE On-balance sheet exposures as
(EEFEMEEEE Yk percentage of total assets 10 41.58%
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sz N: ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
47. JESRTTHIANMEfEZR  47. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

#& (8)
2019
wEal  AEAk
SER FIAH M

HRIEH JEVS A I JE\ G
Items in On-balance  Off-balance  “RMERAE

the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
T AT AT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

L R~ ROREURREAERY  Central government, central

i~ B AT REE government-owned entities and their

B3 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 75.851.240 4.153.899 80.005.139
HoREUR ~ WA BURRFERY  Local governments, local government-

T - HifB AT REE owned entities and their subsidiaries

B3 and joint ventures 2 24474600 5456847 29,931,447
FEFFEANERIVEMFE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland

PEE A ~ EbT R A or other entities incorporated in

HREGERE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 78,108,854 17,890,205 95,999,059
FEFEF FiltgE—IE iy Other entities of central government
JRF PR LAt A not reported in item 1 above 4 2.869.110 303328  3,262438
NEFEfE Bl — 15 J7Er  Other entities of local governments
JF P LA A not reported in item 2 above 5 562,859 } 562,859

FERFEESNEREEESMNE PRC nationals residing outside
MRS > HAERSEAD Mainland or entities incorporated
(== outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 12,916,034 1,636,809 14,552,843
HAth 3z G FmEEE&EHE  Other counterparties where the
BRI ESRT TN P B exposures are considered to be

HRIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,889,106 294,489 6,183,595
4t Total 8 200,671,803 29,825,577 230,497,380
HUBCEFH S 1%n & LA Total assets after provision 9 500,330,937

LEABENNER K On-balance sheet exposures as
(B ELEEHE 7L percentage of total assets 10 40.11%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. EEAEERMELSE  48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

g
(a) HESHEE
W12H31H
R
R B B A BT R e
AR

AVINIER = |w) DN i

i

rEem T A
B HA AR
ERE

it 2 =R 2
B

YIZE ~ B3 Beasds
HAth#E
BN

&

ST e R 77
Rk

AREBEH AR S
Ak

(iR T A

EEE

EBTRE

AR A

TR A

M AERE 5

el

(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Interests in subsidiaries

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Certificates of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities
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2020 2019
AT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
26,269,510 13,634,822
6,497,758 6,662,581
427,350 305,663
197,243,415 189,470,508
95,637,506 112,491,096
11,708,802 11,708,802
341,080 355,230
6,691,738 7,014,862
3,549,464 3,990,392
348,366,623 345,633,956
23,459,579 22,053,415
6,650,987 5,048,559
1,150,340 351,717
249,075,190 244,688,314
1,377,015 -
3,189,754 12,470,054
272,606 626,474
856,964 837,132
5,416,390 5,438,386
291,448,825 291,514,051
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. EEAEFREMELSE  48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)
gk (&)

(a) EEEERE (&) (a) Balance sheet (continued)
w12 H31H As at 31 December 2020 2019
BT P DT
HK$°000 HK$'000
=N EQUITY
R Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517
i Reserves 44,458,391 41,660,498
A A SR S A LA E Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 47,602,908 44,805,015
BEINEAR T H Additional equity instruments 9,314,890 9,314,890
BEARYEEE Total equity 56,917,798 54,119,905
BfENEARLEEE Total liabilities and equity 348,366,623 345,633,956
KEEEG 2021 4 3 Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board
H 23 Himziz AN L by:
TALRERESE
BRAHEH Chan Sai Ming 2185 Liu Jun
#HEH Director #=HEH Director
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(b) Statement of changes in equity

At 1 January 2019

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Premises

Actuarial losses on defined
benefit plan

Financial instruments at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income

Release upon disposal of
premises

Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments

Transfer from retained eamings

At 31 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

G
Reserves

ARME

LT AH A4

TS et A

B Reserve for

BYNEATH B fair value

BA Additional Premises through other Bk L E HFEF

Share equity revaluation  comprehensive  Regulatory  Translation Retained gt
capital _instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
AT AT BHETIT BT BT AT BHETIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,144,517 9,314,890 6,029,950 (99,893) 1,179,199 (12,144) 31,630,142 51,186,661
3,062,358 3,062,358
- - 91,192 - - - - 91,192
- - - - - - (13,160) (13,160)
- - - 263,103 - - - 263,103
- - - 70 - - - 70
- - 91,192 263,173 - - 3,049,198 3,403,563
- - (2,199) - - - 2,199 -
- (470,319) - - - - - (470,319)
- 470,319 - - 285,031 - (755,350) -
3,144,517 9,314,890 6,118,943 163,280 1,464,230 (12,144) 33,926,189 54,119,905
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At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit plan
Financial instruments at
fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income

Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments

Transfer from/(to) retained
earnings

At 31 December 2020

T 2 (EREARARAE

HAR mT R )

(b) Statement of changes in equity (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

R
Reserves

AnE

BLETAH MR

EW

EE Reserve for

WINEATIR  EfEGEE fair value

A Additional Premises  through other  ESifsfi* B HEEF

Share equity revaluation comprehensive Regulatory Translation Retained kAt
capital instruments reserve income reserve* reserve earnings Total
b awn b awn T BT T BT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
3,144,517 9,314,890 6,118,943 163,280 1,464,230 (12,144) 33,926,189 54,119,905
- - - - - - 3,098,039 3,098,039
- - (151,235) - - - - (151,235)
. - - - - - (18,136) (18,136)
- - - 334,309 - - - 334,309
- - - 54 - - - 54
- - (151,235) 334,363 - - 3,079,903 3,263,031
- (465,138) - - - - - (465,138)
- 465,138 - - (480,675) - 15,537 -
3,144,517 9,314,890 5,967,708 497,643 983,555 (12,144) 37,021,629 56,917,798
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or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised.

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses
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B SRENEE ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

49. EASIEREAT] 49. Ultimate holding company
AEEH o RS R The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-owned financial
B EEEETEA enterprise established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by the Ministry of
4L IR Bk (7 R Finance (the “MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
=) R EE AR ILFE Hong Kong Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange").

("R DRI Sl
fioe JEN BN e e
LHAAMRNE (T &E
L)) EmS -

50. IR E 50. Approval of financial statements
KA HRZER 2021 23 H The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
23 HE&EEREFEBERIE on 23 March 2021.
Al o
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

1. Liquidity Coverage Ratio and Net Stable Funding Ratio

2020 SEREEERE
2020 quarter ended
1275 31H 9H30H 6 530H 3831 H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
Average value of
liquidity
coverage ratio 149.77% 162.49% 150.00% 151.34%
2019 FRELHEEE
2019 quarter ended
12H 31 H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
Average value of
liquidity
coverage ratio 154.97% 154.48% 154.16% 173.83%

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

2020 2019

Net stable funding ratio

Quarter end value of net stable funding ratio
- First quarter 118.55% 120.21%
- Second quarter 120.00% 118.43%
- Third quarter 117.31% 118.58%
- Fourth quarter 117.92% 121.06%

Quarter end value of net stable funding ratio is calculated based on the calculation
methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of stable funding position.

The liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio are computed on the consolidated
basis which comprises the positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries specified by the
HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management

HE
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EFEEE R - FFRERE -
Sl ~ el e R
ez ~ (SR ~ SRR A
JoRzz ~ SR g ~ bR A
#HrEs o AEEERE
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The Overview

The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate risk,
market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, strategic
risk, technology risk and conduct risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholder value by maintaining risk exposures within acceptable levels.

Risk Management Structure

The Bank’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s
overall risk management. It establishes a sound risk culture and determines the risk
management strategies and the risk management structure.

To achieve the Group’s goals in risk management, the Board sets up the Risk Management
Committee, which comprises of Independent Non-executive Directors, to oversee the
Group’s various types of risks, review and approve the high-level risk management policies.
Also, Credit Approval Committee is set up under the Risk Management Committee to review
or approve credit applications and credit management related matters exceeding the Chief
Executive’s authority or as required by the policy and monitoring the credit activities of the
Group.

According to the risk management strategies established by the Board, risk management
policies and controls are devised and reviewed regularly by relevant departments and
respective management committees set up by the Chief Executive.

The risk management units develop policies and procedures for identifying, measuring,
evaluating, monitoring, reporting and controlling credit risk, market risk, operational risk,
reputation risk, legal and compliance risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, strategic risk,
technology risk and conduct risk; set appropriate risk limits; and continually monitor risks.

The Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management policies and controls to ensure that the Group is operating according to the
established policies, procedures and limits.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Risk Management Structure (continued)

Independence is crucial to effective risk management. To ensure the independence of risk
management units and Audit Department, risk management units and Chief Risk Officer
report directly to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Department reports directly
to the Audit Committee respectively. Both committees are specialised committees set up by
the Board and all members are directors of the Bank.

(i) Credit risk management
Details of credit risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(i) Liquidity risk management
Details of liquidity risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iii) Market risk management
Details of market risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(iv) Interest rate risk management
Details of interest rate risk management are set out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

(v) Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of business
operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)
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Risk Management Structure (continued)

(v) Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk
management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence are the first
parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions
of self-risk control in the process of business operation through self-assessment and self-
enhancement. The Operational Risk, Legal and Compliance Division together with certain
specialist functional units in relation to operational risk management within the Group,
including the Human Resources Department, Technology Risk Management Division,
Administration Division, Finance Department (collectively known as “specialist functional
units”), are the second line of defence. They are responsible for assessing and monitoring
the operational risk conditions in the first line of defence, and providing them with guidance.
The Operational Risk, Legal and Compliance Division, being independent from the business
units, is responsible for assisting the Senior Management in managing the Group’s
operational risk, including the establishment and review of the operational risk management
policy and framework, designing the operational risk management tools and reporting
mechanism, and assessing and reporting the overall operational risk position to the Senior
Management and Risk Management Committee. Specialist functional units are required to
carry out their managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to some specific
aspects of operational risk and its related issues. Besides taking charge of operational risk
management in their own units, these units are also required to provide other units with
professional advice/training in respect of certain operational risk categories and to lead the
Group-wide operational risk management. Audit Department is the third line of defence which
provides independent assessment to the effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk
management framework and is required to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk
management activities of various departments or functional units within the Group regarding
their compliance and effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for remedial actions.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(v) Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires the
establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The Group adheres
to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and authorisation. The Group
adopts various operational risk management tools or methodologies such as key risk
indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify, assess,
monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and products, as well as purchase
of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans are
established to support business operations in the event of an emergency or disaster.
Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.

(vi) Reputation risk management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices,
whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly
litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every
aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed its Reputation
Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to identify and prevent reputation risk proactively
at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused by various
types of operational and strategic issues that negatively impact the trust and perception of
the Group, all operational and key risks identified are assessed through the established Key
Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to evaluate the severity
of their impact on the Group, including the damage to reputation.

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the
Group to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an
incident. The Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public
image.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

2. Risk management (continued)

Risk Management Structure (continued)

(vii) Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may
disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in
reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the Operational Risk, Legal
and Compliance Division. All legal matters are handled by the Operational Risk, Legal and
Compliance Division. As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the policy for
the management of legal and compliance risk is approved by the Risk Management
Committee as delegated by the Board.

(viii)Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future negative impacts
on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of the Group because of poor
business decisions, improper implementation of strategies and inadequacies in the
response to the changing market condition. The Board reviews and approves the strategic
risk management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly
endorsed by the Senior Management and the Board.

(ix) Technology risk management

Technology risk refers to the risk of direct or indirect losses to the Group caused by improper
or inaccurate controls over Information Technology (IT), which encompasses automated
means of originating, processing, storing and transferring information, and covers recording
devices, communication networks, computer systems (including hardware and software
components and data) and other electronic devices. Information technology risks are
managed by the Technical Risk Management Division. As part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework, the policy of technology risk management is approved by the Risk
Management Committee as delegated by the Board.
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i EER (&)
2. FEEHE (&) 2. Risk management (continued)
R ErHZERE (&) Risk Management Structure (continued)
(x) #EsrEbRE (x) Conduct risk management
TR R B TR - R Conduct risk refers to the risk of customer complaints or losses, warnings or penalty issued
EHESREMS - BEEHE by regulatory bodies to the Group caused by staff non-compliance, improper selling of
JERIE 22 EBITK ~ R financial products, violation of integrity principles or corporate values, violation of code and
PRI S F RN 5 58 other conduct issues. Conduct risk is managed by Human Resources Department and
EH PR - BEHE quarterly reported to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as delegated by the
A B E P 9 O Y B Board.

SURKAYERE - #r bR A
NERE AR - WEE
FEHiE T EEGE TRV
BRFNERG -

G NIE R 55 The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation
PRI » RIS RTS R and developments.
g o
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Business Review

It has been a tough year for the global economy under the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic in 2020. The mainland of China experienced negative growth for the first quarter
first seen in years. The Hong Kong economy also recorded annual negative growth for the
first time since 2009 with an unemployment rate remained above 6% for months. During the
year, with unfavourable factors including the continuous developments of the pandemic and
the increasing Sino-US friction, the banking industry faced unprecedented operating
difficulties and challenges. By following the unified deployment from China Cinda, our parent
company, and the Board of Directors of NCB, the Group was able to carry out our pandemic
prevention and control works effectively, which not only prioritised the protection of our
customers’ and staffs’ health, but also ensured the Group to continue our operations along
with the pandemic prevention works. Attributing to the efforts and contributions from all our
employees, we were able to overcome various obstacles and adversities. The Group has
also actively sought opportunities for development, and steadily progressed various
operations and management tasks, which not only safeguarded the safety and stability of
our operation, but also maintained the healthy condition of our fundamental businesses.

Financial Review

As at the end of December 2020, the Group recorded HK$4,229 million of operating profit,
decreased by 5.17% year-on-year. Net interest income of HK$6,368 million, decreased by
4.24% year-on-year, and non-interest income of HK$2,405 million grew by 2.22% year-on-
year. Profit after tax was HK$3,815 million, down 3.44% year-on-year. Return on average
equity was 6.49% while return on average assets was 0.77%. Net interest margin (NIM) was
1.45%, down 0.06 percentage point year-on-year.

Under the drastic change in business environment, the Group has focused on resources
enhancement to boost the efficiency of our development and operating, so as to strive for
high-quality development. As at the end of December 2020, total assets of the Group
amounted to HK$505,698 million, increased by 3.29% year-on-year. Deposits from
customers and gross advances to customers achieved HK$351,630 million and
HK$279,723 million, respectively up 1.66% and up 6.32% year-on-year. As at the end of
December 2020, the classified or impaired loan ratio of the Group stood at 0.86%, which
remained at a satisfying and compliance level.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Business Review (continued)

Business Review
Personal banking

As at the end of December 2020, net operating income before impairment allowances in
Personal Banking amounted to HK$1,785 million, increased by 4.90% year-on-year. During
the year, the Group has strengthened customer relationships, and actively expanded our
customer bases in both the mainland and Hong Kong by implementing our “new theme, new
products, new services, new channels” strategies. Firstly, the Group launched “Health and
Wealth Management in NCB”, which not only highlights the professional wealth
management services of NCB but also weight on the physical and mental health of our
customers, in order to add value to our brand and strengthen customer loyalty. Customers
to the brand increased by 9.50% year-on-year. Secondly, we launched “Payroll Transfer”
service, which fulfils the RMB cross-border settlement demand of our mainland customers
in Hong Kong as well as allowing customers to enjoy the convenience of cross-border
remittance. Thirdly, the Group introduced the “Home Ownership Plan in the Greater Bay
Area”, which provides customised residential property mortgage services to Hong Kong
residents who intend to purchase properties in the Greater Bay Area. The Group also
provides personal “wealth management mutual recognition” services in the Greater Bay
Area, aiming to establish our profile as a professional bank in the Greater Bay Area. On the
other hand, we actively promoted the development of electronic trading platform. Our new
mobile security code and biometric authentication function were launched in October 2020.
In addition to enhanced customer experience, the new function can offer additional security
to our customers when they are conducting specific online or mobile banking transactions.
The Group also launched various personal support measures in response to the pandemic,
including: “Principal Payment Holidays” for property mortgage loans, personal support loans
for affected industries and exemption of handling fees for elderly making withdrawals in the
mainland with “UnionPay”, etc. in order to mitigate the financial burden of our customers
and tide over the challenging time.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Corporate banking

As at the end of December 2020, corporate loans and advances amounted to HK$221,864
million, up 5.25% year-on-year. During the year, the loan and deposit spread narrowed as
market interest rate continued to fall, net interest income in Corporate Banking reached
HK$4,694 million, and net operating income before impairment allowances in Corporate
Banking amounted to HK$5,733 million, down 8.83% year-on-year. During the year, the
Group continued to improve transactional banking supporting products and services which
boosted intermediate income and its proportion and enhanced overall loan portfolio income
by strengthening our specialised operation in cross-border connection, adopting the
strategies of “structural adjustment and efficiency enhancement” and implementing delicacy
management. Acting as the sole leading bank and bookkeeping bank, we had successfully
raised a large-scale syndicated loan for our core customers which was actively participated
by our peers. As the Group took the initiative to participate in the leading, organisation, and
distribution of syndication market, the market share and ranking for our Group to be
engaged as the lead arranger in Hong Kong and Macau in this year were both improved as
compared with the same period last year. Adhering to the development direction of focusing
on the differentiation of comprehensive financing, the Group enhanced the collaboration and
cooperation with the branches and subsidiaries of the Group. Driven by the efforts of the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area office, flexible cross-border loan solutions
meeting the business needs of our customers were launched, which created a strategic
competitive edge as the Greater Bay Area integrated operations were implemented and
collaborative customer marketing in the Greater Bay Area was further promoted in both the
mainland and Hong Kong.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Corporate banking (continued)

During the year, the introduction of “Shenzhen and Hong Kong Pass” by Shenzhen Branch
of NCB (China) offered our customers with integrated convenience. Due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic and under its continuous impact, we responded to the government
and actively imposed various easing measures, including provided stable market supply of
items and daily necessities that supported pandemic prevention, introduced express loan
approval to specific industries and waived their handling fees, participated in the “Special
100% Loan Guarantee” and other optimization measures launched under “SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS)” of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited (HKMC) with
full support and actively cooperated with the 3-phase measures under the “Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme” (PPPHS) for corporate customers launched by the
HKMA, with the aim of alleviating the financial pressure of affected corporate customers,
assisting in the operation of brick-and-mortar companies and protecting employment, which
totally demonstrated the spirits of the joint development of the Group and local corporations.

Treasury

As at the end of December 2020, net operating income before impairment allowances
generated by Treasury amounted to HK$965 million, down 10.03% year-on-year. During the
year, the overall bond return rate has increased by 19 basis points year-on-year as the
Group actively predicted the business environment, adjusted its investment strategies in a
timely manner and actively replaced its bonds. On 30 October 2020, the Group issued the
first COVID-19 Response Bond approved by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
(HKQAA) for Industrial Bank Hong Kong Branch which amounted to HK$3,000 million, and
the first Blue Bond of the PRC joint-stock commercial banks which amounted to US$450
million. The Group has acted as the joint bookrunner in the project and has contributed to
the pandemic prevention works as well as organisations and enterprises that conserve and
protect the oceans.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Mainland Business

NCB (China) totally supported the prevention and control of pandemic and the resumption
of operation and production. The quality and efficiency of our financial services were
upgraded by our continuous effort in deepening reform and innovation. We have prioritised
our processing with top efficiency based on the needs of enterprises that located in the
pandemic area. We have also improved the efficiency and convenience of our financial
services to offer tailored solutions to enterprises as a relief scheme. For the small and micro
enterprises, their repayment period was extended as appropriate and credit card customers
were offered repayment tolerance services in terms of time and amount. During the
pandemic, the Group reinforced the dynamic analysis, interpretation, and promotion of
national macro-financial regulatory policies and strictly implemented various requirements.
During the year, leveraging on the advantages brought by “Domestic + Overseas”
integration, the development of all our businesses was steadily promoted. Leveraging the
highly efficient synergy created by incorporating the parent companies’ businesses in the
Greater Bay Area, the Group has established a competitive edge in the region and has
sought development in steady progress. In order to improve the competitiveness and brand
awareness of the Group in the Yangtze River Delta region, the Group placed great emphasis
on the development of institutions in the Yangtze River Delta region. In May 2020, NCB
(China) overcame various challenges brought by the pandemic and has successfully
opened the Wuhan branch, which fully accelerated the business development in the
mainland. On the other hand, the Group participated in the 3rd Import Expo, and held 46
themed events and received more than 300 visiting customers during the Expo. The Group
has signed strategic cooperation agreements with various high-quality customers on-site
which lays the foundation for subsequent business development.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Risk management

With the pandemic continues and the tension between China and the US, it is of utmost
importance for the Group to strengthen risk control and formulate effective risk management
measures. Facing the severe social environment, the Group has made plans to tackle
internal and external risks. Regular meetings of the “Emergency Command Center” are held
to continuously review pandemic prevention and control measures as the safety and health
of our customers and staff are our top priority. The Group also maintained close monitor to
the developments of the pandemic and with measures including separate office, home
office, and staggered shift in place. Our services were able to maintain normal operation to
meet customer needs while ensuring the safety of our staff and the security of our
customers’ information. During the year, the Group has enhanced our post-loan withdrawal
monitoring and management processes comprehensively, implemented integrated risk
strategies and standards, identified the latest credit risk condition and took corresponding
risk mitigation measures in time. In response to the complex market environment and
changes in industry operating conditions, the Group, Cinda International Holdings Limited
and Cinda Securities Co., Ltd. have conducted multiple industry analysis and business
product introductions for marketing executives while took advantage of the synergy brought
by this cooperation to maintain close communication and kept abreast of market information.
For anti-money laundering, the Group continued to test the sanctions list screening system
to ensure its effectiveness and that it meets the expectations of regulatory institutions.
Quarterly reports shown that the performance of the system has been maintained at a high
level. During the year, all risk indicators of the Group remained at normal levels with no
major risk events.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Business Review (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Outlook

Under the global “quantitative easing policy”, traditional credit spreads have narrowed which
limited the asset scale growth rate of the banking industry and intensified competition.
Looking forward to 2021, as the beginning of a new five-year development plan and under
the environment with both new opportunities and unknown risks, the Group will grasp the
development opportunities brought by the new landscape of national dual circulation
development and financial cooperation in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area and further develop target businesses. Despite all challenges and obstacles, the Group
will also allocate its resources to establish a professional bank that combines cross-border
and investment and commercial banks. By employing our differentiated, regional and digital
business strategies, the Group will effectively leverage on the synergy to strengthen our
profile as a brand of cross-border banks.
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UhEzS Appendix
BERTTZ T B AE] Subsidiaries of the Bank

KETIB A S EReS41  The particulars of our subsidiaries are as follows:

T
aRiii =t
R B HEMEER e TEE B TR
275 Place and date of incorporation/ Registered capital/ Interest Principal
Name operation issued share capital held activities
FAEREIRIT (B AMRAH P FEMEAR 100% RITIERS
2007 212 H 14 H A% 9,500,000,000 7T
Nanyang Commercial Bank The People’s Republic of China Registered capital Banking
(China), Limited 14 December 2007 RMB9,500,000,000 business
R EIR T EECARAE i Eoiilits 100% {55t
1976 210 H 22 H 7% 3,000,000 ¢
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Trustee
Trustee Limited 22 October 1976 HK$3,000,000 services
BRI E EEATR AT wIE iepiilia 100% BN
1984 45 H 25 H st 3,050,000 T
Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency Hong Kong Ordinary shares Investment
Limited 25 May 1984 HK$3,050,000 agency
FEREIRGT (REEA) ARAE | &8 oyl 100% AR
1980 48 A 22 H &1 50,000 7T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong Ordinary shares Nominee
(Nominees) Limited 22 August 1980 HK$50,000 services
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Definitions

In this Financial Statements, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms

Meanings

“ALCO"

the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

the Board of Directors of the Bank

“BOCI-Prudential Manager”

BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong, in which held by BOCI Asset Management Limited and Prudential
Corporation Holdings Limited.

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee”

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which held by BOC Group Trustee Company Limited Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited.

“‘CET1”

Common Equity Tier 1

“China Cinda”

China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd., a wholly state-owned financial enterprise
established in the PRC

“Cinda Hong Kong”

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited

“Cinda Financial Holdings”

Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment
“DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment
‘EV” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“FIRB” Foundation Internal Ratings-based

“‘HKAS(s)” Hong Kong Accounting Standard(s)

“‘HKFRS(s)” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)
“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
“HK(IFRIC)-Int” Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretation

“‘HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“HK(SIC)-Int” Hong Kong (SIC) Interpretation

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards
“IMM” Internal Models

“IRB” Internal Ratings-based

“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio

“MPF” Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“Mainland” or “Mainland of China”

the mainland of the PRC

“NCB (China)’

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank
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Definitions (continued)

Terms

Meanings

“ORSO schemes”

the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘OTC” Over-the-counter
“PRC” the People’s Republic of China
“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“SEC-SA” Securitization Standardised Approach
“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)

“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)

“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Exchange”

“the Bank” Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cinda Financial Holdings

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group

“‘us” the United States of America

“VAR” Value at Risk
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